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About This
Report

This report presents the annual information about the University of
Kelaniya for the year 2021. It employs the integrated reporting approach
and covers the strategy, governance, performance and prospects of the
University from January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021.

Reporting Framework and Scope

The report consists of information on students, graduate output, human
resources, research and innovations, awards and achievements, sports
activities and achievements, welfare facilities, infrastructure
development projects and financial performances and annual accounts.
The data and information provided in this report have been collected from
the administrative departments and academic departments, units and
centers of the University of Kelaniya. The report is compiled by the
University Statistics and Data Monitoring Unit and the Research
Publications Division of the University of Kelaniya.
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To become a centre of excellence in the creation

and dissemination of knowledge for sustainable
development.

Mission

To nurture intellectual citizens through creativity
and innovation, who contribute to national
development

Objectives

01

To create a high quality
and flexible teaching and
learning environment.

03

To create a high quality
and flexible teaching and
learning environment.

05

02

To develop the highest
quality faculty and staff
to attain the strategic
goals of the University.

04

To develop the highest
quality faculty and staff
to attain the strategic
goals of the University.

To develop an excellent system of governance
through efficient and effective administration and

financial management

Aunual Report & ecounts 2021

i



Senior Professor
Nilanthi de Silva
Vice~ Chancellor,

University of Kelaniya
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Message of the
Vice - Chancellor

We are all determined to contribute in many
ways to serve our country and nation; to
provide opportunities for an excellent
higher education and to conduct high-
quality research.

As one of the largest universities in Sri Lanka, the
University of Kelaniya remains committed to national
development through the delivery of higher education
programs of outstanding quality, the conduct of excellent
research and the delivery of expert consultative services
to the public of Sri Lanka.

The University continued with its academic and research
activities throughout 2021, turning to online platforms
when required. Although many routine face-to-face
activities had to be curtailed because of the COVID-19
pandemic, we were successful in finding solutions to the
inevitable problems and crises that occurred from time to
time. In 2021, we registered the highest annual intake of
internal undergraduate students to date and forged
ahead with plans to improve our presence in international
university rankings.

We were particularly proactive in rising to the challenges
brought about by the pandemic. Under the guidance of a
COVID-19 Response Committee that met fortnightly, the
University adapted guidelines issued by health
authorities regarding essential health and safety
precautions, provided free testing facilities for diagnosis
of COVID-19 infection, carried out numerous drives to
vaccinate students and staff, and set in place several
measures to support those affected by COVID-19,
particularly among our staff members.

| thank all those who worked enthusiastically and
tirelessly during a very challenging time and made 2021
into another successful year for the University of
Kelaniya.
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Highest Qualifications Achieved by Academic Staff; Academic Support Staff and
Adminsstrative Staff
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New Entrants Across Years
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COVID-19 cases reported from students and staff of the University
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UNIVERSITY OF KELANIYA

The University of Kelaniya has its origin in the historic Vidyalankara Pirivena, founded in
1875 by Ratmalane Sri Dharmaloka Thero as a center of learning for Buddhist monks. With
the establishment of modern universities in Sri Lanka in the 1940s and 1950s, the
Vidyalankara Pirivena became the Vidyalankara University in 1959, later the Vidyalankara
Campus of the University of Ceylon in 1972, and, ultimately, the University of Kelaniya in
1978.

The University has seven faculties including 56 academic departments, three other
academic units and two affiliated institutes, namely the Postgraduate Institute of Pali and
Buddhist Studies and the Postgraduate Institute of Archaeology. At present, the Gampaha
Wickramarachchi Ayurvedic Institute, which was also an affiliated institute of the UoK,
has become a separate university.

All the faculties except the Medical Faculty at Ragama Premises and the Faculty of
Computer and Technology at Peliyagoda Premises are located at the Dalugama Premises.
The University of Kelaniya is the first university to start teaching science in Sinhala. It also
took the lead in establishing academic departments in relevant study streams: the
Department of Industrial Management and Department of Microbiology were the first of

their kind, established in the Faculty of Science; the Department of Linguistics, the

HAnnual Report & /ecounts 2021 2



Department of Fine Arts, the Department of Modern Languages and the Department of

Hindi of the Faculty of Humanities were established at UoK first; the Faculty of Social

Sciences pioneered the establishment of the Department of Mass Communication and

the Department of Library and Information Sciences for the first time in Sri Lanka.

Senior
Assistant
Librariasn

Assistant
Librarian

The University provides a range of vital services to its students via a specialized set of

university centers and units. Key among them are the Student Counselling Service, Career

_.,
+

Guidance Unit, Personal Counselling Unit (Kalana Mithuru Sevana), Medical Center,

Physical Education Center, Cultural Center, Arts Council, the Library (including Faculty

Senior
Assistant
Internal
Auditor
Assistant
Internal
Auditor

Libraries), the Information and Communication Technology Center and the International

Student Affairs Unit. In addition, several other units and centers have been established to

offer other services related to the effective administration of the university: among these

Assiatant
Bursars

are the Internal Quality Assurance Centre, University Statistics and Data Monitoring Unit

(USDMU), Media Unit, Staff Development Center, Technology and Innovation Support

Centre, Sustainable Development Centre, Centre for Distance and Continuing Education

Assistant

Repstrars

(CDCE), Centre of Excellence for Strategic Brand Identity Development (CEBID) and the

Inter-Faculty Center for Coordinating the Modular System (ICCMS).

=
Non-Academic Staff

The University of Kelaniya has introduced a free insurance scheme for students and staff

Officer

asitis concerned not only with the quality of the graduates but also with the well-being of

Unrversity Council
Vice - Chancellor
v
Chief
Secudty

the students and the staff. It is the first-ever university in the country to offer up to five

Aszistant

Statistician

million rupees for the doctoral studies of the staff members. In addition, a large amount of

money has been allocated for aesthetic and sports activities of the university.

The bhikku hostel and the women's hostel complex are located within the university

|l Curator I

premises, while the men's hostels and some of the women's hostels are located in the

v
Wodks

. surrounding area outside the university premises. Mahapola and Bursary scholarships are

.' .| given every year to students with financial difficulties. Apart from these two main B&

scholarship schemes, the Alumni Association of the University also supports students #& i

with financial difficulties who are not eligible to receive Mahapola or Bursary R

Heads of
Departments

Deeans of Faculties

scholarships.

" . ‘I.'.: e A
| The human resources of the university include the academic staff members, the FEE R .

administrative staff, the academic support staff, and the non-academic staff. The

. following diagramiillustrates the organizational structure of the University.

Student Affairs
Chief Student
Counzelor
Counselors
Marshals

Figure 1-1: Organizational Structure of the University of Kelaniya




Names of the Members

Vice-Chancellor

THE COUNCIL

Table 1.1 : Council members

Period of

Appointment

Number of
meetings
attended during
the year 2021

Senior Professor Nilanthi De Silva

28.08.2020 - 27.08.2023 12
Deans of Faculties
Dr. P N. D. Fernando/Faculty of Commerce
& Management Studies 10.06.2020 - 31.12.2023 12
Dr. P. G. Wijayarathna/ Faculty of Computing
& Technology 06.05.2019 - 31.12.2021 11
Snr. Prof J. M. D. Ariyarathne/Faculty of
Graduate Studies 09.03.2019 - 08.03.2022 12
Dr. U.S. Senarath/Faculty of Humanities
Snr. Prof. (Mrs) S. J. de S. 10.06.2020 - 09.06.2023 12
Hewavisenthi/Faculty of Medicine 23.09.2020 - 22.09.2023 11
Snr. Prof. S. R. D. Kalingamudhali/Faculty of
Science 03.01.2020 - 02.01.2023 12
Prof. M. M. Gunathilake/Faculty of Social
Science 15.12.2019 - 14.12.2022 12
Senate Nominee
Ven.(Snr. Prof.) Induragare Dhammarathana
Thero 26.01.2020 - 25.01.2023 7
Prof. P. M. C. Thilakeratne
Snr. Prof. N. A. K. P. J. Senavirathne 26.01.2020 - 27.07.2021 5
28.07.2021 - 25.01.2023 5
Member Appointed by the University
Grants Commission
Prof. H. Abeygunawardena
Mr. Rakhitha Shri Dharshana 11.02.2020 - 15.01.2023 9
Abeygoonawardana 11.02.2020 - 15.01.2023 11
Prof. Ranjith Arthanayake 11.02.2020 - 15.01.2023 12
Mr. Sanjaya Bandara 11.02.2020 - 15.01.2023 9
Mr. S. M. Gotabayalayarathne 11.02.2020 - 15.01.2023 12
Prof. Nimal Perera 11.02.2020 - 15.01.2023 12
Prof. Rohan Rajapakse 11.02.2020 - 15.01.2023 8
Mr. L.E. Susantha Silva 11.02.2020 - 15.01.2023 12
Mr. S.K. Cyril Suduwella 11.02.2020 - 15.01.2023 12
Mr. Upali Wijayaweera 11.02.2020 - 15.01.2023 10
11.02.2020 - 15.01.2023 11
Secretary to the Council
Mr. W.M. Karunaratne
Mr. K.K.K. Dharmathilaka(Ex-Officio) 01.01.2021 - 01.07.2021 6
02.07.2021 - 31.12.2021 6

' Mr. W.M. Karunaratne, retired on 01.07.2021
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YEAR IN
REVIEW - 2021

INTRODUCTION

s the COVID-19 pandemic extended into its second year, the University of
Kelaniya rose to the challenge of delivering online education for all its
students, and expedited transition to digitalized systems and processes in
the management of its affairs. Throughout 2021, the University continued to
strengthen its digital infrastructure to support the enhanced need for online delivery
of learning activities and materials, the conduct of various forms of assessment, the
use of video conferencing platforms for meetings and conferences, and recruitment
procedures. At the same time, the University used the opportunity provided by the
physical absence of students to renovate and refurbish hostels and other common

amenities.

Several significant transitions took place in the year under review. In March, the
Gampaha Wickramaarachchi Ayurveda Institute, which had been affiliated to the
University of Kelaniya since 1995, became an independent university known as the
Gampaha Wickramaarachchi University of Indigenous Medicine. Senior Professor
Janitha Liyanage of the Department of Chemistry in the Faculty of Science of the
University of Kelaniya was appointed as the first Vice-Chancellor of the new

University.

At the end of June, Mr. W.M. Karunaratne, who had served as the Registrar of the
University of Kelaniya for 17 years, retired from service. He was succeeded by Mr.
K.K.K .Dharmathilake, who is an alumnus of the Universities of Colombo and

Kelaniya.

In October, our much venerated and beloved Chancellor, the Most Venerable
Welamitiyawe Kusaladhamma Thero, who had served in this capacity for nearly 25
years, passed away. The University was pleased to welcome Aggamahapanditha
Ven. Kollupitiye Mahinda Sangharakkitha Thero, the Chief Incumbent of the

Kelaniya Rajamaha Viharaya, appointed by His Excellency the President, as the new
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STUDENT INTAKE AND GRADUATION

Atotal of 3,959 new internal undergraduate students were enrolled in the first half of 2021
for the academic year 2019/20, and the total enrollment of internal undergraduates in the
University of Kelaniya in 2021 rose to 13,673. The total number of students enrolled in
external undergraduate programs was 95,692, while 2,970 students enrolled in

postgraduate programs offered by the University of Kelaniya.

Because of delays caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, only 2,655 students graduated
from internal undergraduate degree programs. However, 5,596 students graduated from
external undergraduate degree programs and 1,408 students graduated from
postgraduate degree programs. Four convocations were held during the year, and
students were encouraged to obtain their degree certificates in absentia due to the

difficulty of holding convocations physically in the earlier months of 2021.

STAFF

During the year 2021, 25 academic staff members of the Faculty of Medicine and 2
academic staff members of the Faculty of Science received President's Awards for
Scientific Publications in the year 2018. To motivate academics and appreciate their
research efforts, 270 Senate awards and cash prizes were awarded, and 77 academic staff
members received Vice-Chancellor's Awards. Several faculties and academic
departments had organized 14 research conferences inecluding 10 international

conferences to promote the research culturein the University of Kelaniya.

Moreover, five researchers of the University of Kelaniya, Senior Professor Nilanthi de
Silva, Senior Professor Janaka de Silva, Professor K.T.A.A. Kasturirathna, Senior
Professor Asita de Silva and Professor Sachith Mettananda were ranked among the top
2% of scientists in the list of outstanding researchers prepared by Elsevier BV and
Stanford University, USA.

The University of Kelaniya was ranked 2nd place among the local universities and 754th
place among the global universities by the SCIMAGO Institutions Rankings.in 2021.
SClmago is an interactive open-access platform that analyses research performance,
innovation outputs and societal impact and the university has shown good progress in

Scopus Indexed publications during the past five years.
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In addition, the university was ranked in 6th place in Sri Lanka, in 137th place in the South
Asian region and 2,557th place globally in Webometrics ranking (July edition). Moreover,
the University of Kelaniya has ranked 2nd locally and 124th in the Asian region and 247th
globally in Ul Green Metrics ranking 2021.

Apart from the research activities, the film, Viyasiduru, produced by the University of
Kelaniya has won awards in Paris International Film Awards 2021, Calcutta International
Cult Film Festival 2021, World Film Carnival - Singapore 2021, Golden Sparrow
International Film Festival 2021, and in Halicarnassus film Festival Turkey 2021. Apart
from that, the movie has been officially selected in Port Blair International Film Festival
2021, Indo French International Film Festival, Vanilla Palm Film Festival & Art Competition
California 2021, Druk International film Festival 2021, Tagore International Film Festival
O,

The official website of the University of Kelaniya, www.kln.ac.lk won the gold award for
the Best University and Education Institute website and the silver award overall at the
BestWeb.lk competitionin 2021.

The University of Kelaniya has seven Faculties, 56 Departments of study, and several
units and centers. Table 2-1 illustrates the student capacity, number of degree programs,

number of academic staff, graduate output, and staff to student ratio of each Faculty.

Table 2.1 : Statistics and Figures

Q
Qo
o0 =
B 5 5
Y— -E Y— Y— n Y “— (9p)
58 59 59 %5, 58 "
Faculties L @ c 2 E 25 8 SuEl
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Z 0 Za z2< =20 26 0
FSOSC 05 12 133 3189 110 23.98
FCT 03 03 30 892 58 29.73
FGS - 54 - 2970 1408 -
FHU 10 28 118 2749 548 23.29
FMED 18 04 133 1301 209 9.78
FSC 09 18 138 2439 419 17.67
FSOSC 12 18 134 3103 888 23.16

? Including Molecular Medicine Unit
* Including Software Engineering Teaching Unit
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OUTLOOK FOR THE
FUTURE

he University of Kelaniya is

striving to look beyond 2030

despite the extraordinary
circumstances created by the Covid-19
pandemic. Key among its many initiatives
the most prioritized is the goal to qualify to
be ranked in the Times Higher Education
World Ranking. The University of Kelaniya
has already entered the QS Asia University
Rankings 2022.

Most future programmes and activities
shall be developed to look beyond 2030
and align with the university ranking
expectations. An information and
communications technology (ICT)
roadmap will pave the way for; introducing
and embedding ed-tech to improve the
student learning experience; and improve
administrative efficiency. The University of

Kelaniya recognizes the importance of

Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) and will be working closely with various
stakeholders to increase its contribution to achieving Sri Lanka's SDG footprint. The
University recognizes that it's imperative to increase student intake and graduate
employability as we approach the next decade. Limited building facilities remains a major
obstacle to introduce new programs and increase student intake. Moreover, macro-

economic conditionin Sri Lanka may also affect graduate employability.
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UNIVERSITY
GOVERNANCE

The University of Kelaniya follows the organizational structure and line of responsibilities
laid down in the Universities Act No. 16 of 1978 and is bound to comply with the

regulations and guidance provided by the UGC from time to time through its Circulars.

The Council, the Senate, and the Faculty Boards are statutory bodies that formulate
policies at different levels of operation. The organogram of UoK illustrates the position of

all the officers with their duties, responsibilities and the line of reporting.

The Chancellor and Officers of the University

The Chancellor is the Head of the University who presides over convocations, while the
Vice-Chancellor is the principal executive officer, the principal academic officer, and the
chief accounting officer of the University. The Vice-Chancellor is an ex-officio member
and Chairperson of both the Council and the Senate of the University and bears
responsibility for implementation of the decisions of the Council and the Senate. The
Deans are the academic and administrative heads of each Faculty and the ex-officio
Chairperson of the respective Faculty Board. They are ex-officio members of the Council
and Senate. The Dean of the Faculty of Graduate Studies is responsible for coordinating
and regulating postgraduate studies as well as specialized or multidisciplinary research

carried out within the university, subject to the direction and control of the Senate.

The Registrar is responsible for the disciplinary control of its non-academic staff and has
the custody of the records and property of the University. He is the ex-officio Secretary to
the Council and the Senate. The Librarian is responsible for the administration of the
libraries of the University and is also an ex-officio member of the Senate. The Bursar is
responsible for the management of the University's finances and the maintenance of its

accounts.
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THE UNIVERSITY COUNCIL

The Council is the executive body and governing authority of the University. The Council of
the University of Kelaniya consists of the Vice-Chancellor, the seven Deans of the
Faculties, two members elected by the Senate from among its members and eleven
members appointed by the UGC. The Vice-Chancellor chairs the Council, while the
Registrar is the Secretary to the Council. Council members serve on all Selection
Committees for recruitment and promotion of academic staff, and on the following

statutory committees:
*  Finance Committee
* Audit Committee

+ Management Committee of the Centre for Distance & Continuing Education

THE SENATE

The Senate is the academic authority of the University and comprises of the Vice-
Chancellor who is the ex-officio Chairperson, the Directors of the PGIAR and PGIPBS,
Deans of Faculties, Heads of Departments, Senior Professors and Professors, the
Librarian, and two academic members from each faculty who are elected from the
permanent academics of the respective faculty. The Senate, in the exercise of its duties,

has appointed several Standing Committees in the following areas.

* Quality Assurance * Research and Publications
« Curriculum, Learning, Teaching and Evaluation + Admissions
« Library * Honorary Degrees

 Leave and Awards
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FACULTY BOARDS

The Faculty Boards regulate matters connected with teaching, examinations and
research in the respective faculties, subject to the control of the Senate. All academic
departments come under the purview of the respective Faculty Board. The departments
of study are responsible for the development of curricula, teaching, assessments,

research, and other relevant academic matters of each department.

GOVERNANCE DOCUMENT : STRATEGIC PLANE &
ANNUAL ACTION PLANE

In 2021, the University of Kelaniya decided to change fromits previous practice of working
with a b-year rolling Corporate Plan and adopted a 3-year Strategic Plan. The Strategic
Plan for 2022-2024 is designed to be pragmatic, real, and relevant, influencing the
university's vital institutional decisions and addressing the prioritized requirements of
both staff and students while sharing the overall vision of the university with its partners
for the next three years. This also sets the platform for articulating a set of values guiding

the University's work over the next three years. The Action Plan is the proposed activity

plan for a specificyearandis based on the Strategic Plan.
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STATUTORY COMMITTEES

Finance Committee

The Council of the University of Kelaniya has appointed a Finance Committee (FC)
to make recommendations with respect to finance-related matters to support the

Council. The composition of the FCis as follows.
* Vice-Chancellor—Chairperson

« Deansof Faculties

+  Two members of the Council

* Registrar

+  Bursar-Convener

FC meets once a month and takes decisions on all matters related to the finances of
the University. All financial matters, including program budgets, are properly
evaluated in line with governing regulations and as per the university development
plan. Recommendations of the FC are submitted for approval of the Council. FC
receives matters referred by the Vice-Chancellor, Deans of Faculties, Registrar,
Bursar, Heads of Departments, Heads of Divisions or Senate. FC is one of the

subcommittees of the Council.

Procurement Committee

The University of Kelaniya has its Department Procurement Committee (DPC)
which is appointed by the Secretary of the Ministry of Education in line with
Procurement Guidelines of 2006 and its subsequent amendments. Thus, the
University has two types of PCs: the DPC (Major) and the DPC (Minor). DPC (Minor)
takes up the procurements below Rs. 5 million while DPC (Major) takes up
procurement up to 200 million as per current guidelines. The composition of the DPC
(Major) is the Vice-Chancellor as chairperson, a member appointed by the Secretary
of the Ministry of Education and the Bursar as member. The composition of the DPC
(Minor) is the Vice-Chancellor as Chairperson, Registrar— as member and Bursar as
member. Meanwhile, a Supplies Committee (SC) is also appointed by the governing
body to assist the procurement of the University. SC supports the DPC, and it takes
up procurement up to Rs. 500,000/-. In addition, the University has its Project
Procurement Committee (PPC) appointed by the Secretary of the Ministry of

Education.
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Audit Committee

As per the Public Enterprises Circular No.PE.D./31, the Audit Committee meeting
should be held at least four times a year. The main objective of the Audit Committee
is to assist the Council to carry out efficient financial functions an related

management activities of the University.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are the review and supervision of
financial statements, financial reporting, and the continuation of the audit process,
the examination of any matters related to the finance of the University, the approval
of the annual internal audit plans and programs, the supervision of the Internal Audit
Plan and Program, the investigation of the external and internal audit reports and the
follow up on recommendations. Their review, supervision, and examination of
compliance with system controls to ensure effective performance, the review of
performance at regular intervals for cost-effectiveness and elimination of wasteful
expenditure etc., ascertaining whether statutes, regulations, rules, and circulars are

complied with are all responsibilities of the Audit Committee.

Table 4 - 1 : Number of meetings held during 2021

Student Committees Number of meetings held
Council 12
Senate 11
Finance Committee 12
Audit Committee 4

ETHICAL AND SAFETY STANDARDS

The University has two Ethics Review Committees (ERC). The Ethics Review Committee
of the Faculty of Medicine was established in 1995 to promote research ethics among
undergraduates, postgraduate students, academics, and the wider community of
researchers. Its primary objective is the protection of humans participating in biomedical
research. This is achieved through review and monitoring processes carried out in
accordance with the guidelines of the Forum of Ethics Review Committees in Sri Lanka
(FERCSL guidelines) and other relevant national and international legislation and

guidelines.

The Ethics Review Committee of the University of Kelaniya was established in 2016, with
the aim of promoting high quality research and is dedicated to maintaining the highest
ethical standards as enshrined in its vision and mission. The ERC of the University of
Kelaniya covers several aspects of research ethics pertaining to the research conducted
by the Faculties of Commerce and Management, Computing and Technology, Graduate

Studies, Humanities, Science and Social Sciences.
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HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELL - BEING

The University has a Health Centre (UHC) to help the students and staff of the University
to lead an active life free from disease. It contributes towards the wellbeing of students
and provides a comprehensive, preventive health service. All registered students and staff
are entitled to free consultations, free basic medicinal drugs, laboratory service and other
services. The UHC functions as an outpatients' department (OPD), attending to the
health needs of all internal students and around 2000 academic and non-academic staff,
as well as their close relatives. The UHC provides OPD consultation, day treatment and
emergency treatment for the university community. Patients are referred to relevant
clinics or transferred to tertiary care hospitals as relevant. The UHC has qualified staff, a
well-equipped laboratory, a pharmacy, and other required facilities to provide these
services effectively. A Dental Clinic & Ayurvedic medical facilities are also available at the
UHC.

The University Medical Officers are well trained in student counselling and student
health, especially in areas of sexual & reproductive health and psychological problems of
youth. In addition, UHC conducts medical examinations, certifying the fitness of students
involved in sports activities and of academic staff and/or students who go abroad for
study purposes or international conferences or tournaments. The Chief Medical Officer of
the UHC isresponsible for the medical confirmation for service and granting extensions of
service to the staff based on the findings of medical examination. All the medical

certificates of students and staff are evaluated and certified by CMO.

GRIEVANCE HANDLING

The University has a grievance redress mechanism with effect from January 01, 2021
which was approved by the University Council at meeting No 485 held on 08" December,
2020.

The University has pledged to adhere to the principles of acceptance, empathy,
confidentiality, impartiality & fairness, responsibility, finding solutions continuously, and

gender equality in dealing with the grievances of its staff members.

Annaal Report & recounts 2021 15

FACULTIES OF THE

UNIVERSITY OF KELANIYA

Aunual Report & ecounts 2021

UNIVERSITY

16



FACULTY OF Introduction Of The Faculty
co M M ERCE & MANAG M ENT he Faculty of Commerce and Management Studies, University of Kelaniya is one

of the fast-developing faculties in Sri Lanka. It was established in 1976, branching

STU DI Es out from the Faculty of Social Sciences. Subsequently, it became a prestigious
faculty in the University of Kelaniya. With hard work, perseverance, and the dedication of

the academic staff, students, and other bodies the FCMS was able to achieve faculty

status in 1995. It conducts a multitude of programs under five (5) departments:

Department of Commerce & Financial Management (DCFM), Department of Human

Resource Management (HRM), Department of Accountancy (DoA), Department of

Marketing Management (DMM), and Department of Finance (DFin). The faculty offers
twelve (12) Undergraduate Degree Programs, one Doctor of Business Administration
(DBA) program, six (06) master's degree programs, five (05) Diploma and six (06) Higher
Diploma programs. The Faculty includes 147 academic staff members, 32 non-academic
staff members and 3152 undergraduate students. The faculty has a multi-cultural, multi-
ethnic student body, and it fosters social harmony and cultural diversity. The
undergraduates of the faculty have the opportunity to develop their soft-skills and have
the.character molded through extracurricular activities conducted by the respective

departments and the Faculty.

MISSION
(14

The mission of the Faculty of Commerce and
Management Studies of the University of Kelaniya is

to Foster a culture of excellence in teaching, learning

b
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and research to nurture tomorrow's leaders.




Quality of Academic Activities

The faculty is appreciated by university
community for successfully aligning with
and maintaining academic quality over
guantity. The Faculty's graduate
employability rate of 81% is one of the
highest rates among the management
faculties in the country, which indicates
the quality of the graduates produced by
the Faculty. Further, obtaining the I1SO
certification for the Department of
Marketing Management and the
recognition granted by the Chartered
Financial Analysts (CFA) Institute-USA
for the Bachelor of Business
Management Honors in Finance and
Bachelor of Business Management
Honors in Financial Engineering
indicates the quality of the degree
programs offered by the faculty.
Moreover, renewing the membership of
AACSB (The Association to Advance
Collegiate Schools of Business) for 2021
and introducing the Bachelor of Business
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Management Honors in Digital Marketing
are the key milestones that indicates the
Faculty's emphasis on quality over

guantity during the year 2021.

At present, the Faculty has converted all
the Special Degree programs into Honors
Degree programs. Additionally, two new
Centers were established to carry out
activities related to student internships
and to develop entrepreneurship among
students. In celebrating the twenty-fifth
anniversary of the faculty, The Centre for
Management Research (CMR) was
renamed as W.M. Jayarathne Centre for
Management Research, which provides
vital assistance for research in the
Faculty. The Faculty conducts rigorous
and quality research in the field of

management.
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Academic Staff Profile

Inspired by the Faculty's tradition of holding to
high academic standards, the staff members
are self-motivated to carry out research that
contributes to the development of academic
programs. Consequently, in 2021, the staff
members of the Faculty obtained a Vice
Chancellor's Award and 3 Senate Awards for
high quality research publications. In addition,
with the collaboration of the University of
Central Lancashire, UK a research project was
completed by the Center for Advanced
Marketing by the Department of Marketing
Management on COVID-19 and disaster under
the supervision of Prof. D.M.R. Dissanayake.
Further, 49 members of the academic staff
hold Doctoral Degrees (PhD) while 114
members are with master's degrees, and the
remaining, 27 members of the staff are

currently reading for Doctoral degrees.

Innovation

The Faculty has taken steps to create an enriched learning environment to provide
opportunities for undergraduates- to complete their education successfully. Online
teaching and learning are being upgraded through various infrastructural developments
such as the construction of smart classrooms to promote blended classrooms among
lecturers and students, the construction of an innovation lab to promote new product
development in undergraduate and postgraduate programs and Studio Al to help
students and other stakeholders in digital content development. Further, among the
significant innovations organized by students is the introduction of “Goraka Secret,” a

drink targeting diabetic patients, as part of acommunity development project.

In addition, launching a free financial literacy course for the public, introducing a short
course in Banking and launching the magazine Finance Outlook are some other
exceptional activities conducted during the year. Further, the Faculty also incorporated a
proctoring system for online examinations and implemented itin -all postgraduate degree
programs.
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Actions on COVID-19 Pandemic(Staff/Students)

iven the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, all in-person lectures were shifted

to the ZOOM online platform to ensure the safety of the students and the

academic staff. Further, all physical examinations that took place at the
university premises were conducted through the online platform to curb the COVID-19
pandemic. To ensure the safety of the invigilators who had on-premises duty, bio-bubbles
were created adhering to all the COVID-19 health guidelines. The majority of the
academic and non-academic staff members are fully vaccinated for COVID-19, and all the
staff members and students were continuously encouraged to get the vaccine via the

vaccination programs organized by the university.

Further, the faculty conducted academic events such as the Conference for Accounting
Researchers and Educators (ICARE) and launched the 8th volume of the case study of
accounting and some social events such as, 'Great Minds Talk series, Vesak with ASAK
2021, Virtual Poson Thorana'and Dfin Beats via online-platforms to provide opportunities
for undergraduates to relief the stress of the COVID-19 pandemic. The academic
coordinators were responsible for reaching out to support students who were affected by
COVID-19. Continuing its regular activities online whilst adhering to all necessary health

precautions, the Faculty has risen to the challenges of the new normal.

Infrastructure Developments

Despite the great challenges posed by the COVID-19 pandemic, the renovation of the the
faculty office and the renovation of common amenities in the Ananda Patabendige
building were successfully completed. Moreover, Digital Smart Interactive Boards, Web
Cams and desktops were purchased to facilitate the online education activities of the

Faculty.
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Highlights Of The Year 2021

he celebration of the 25"

anniversary of the Faculty of

Commerce and Management
Studies was one of the key events of 2021.
An online teaching and training program
titled “National Workshop on Online
Assessment Methods” was conducted for
school-teachers of higher education
institutes /National Universities in Sri
Lanka.
The faculty celebrated the 45th
anniversary of the Department of
Commerce and Financial Management
and the 10th anniversary of the

Department of Finance in 2021. Some of
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the other prominent activities organized by
the faculty during the last year were virtual
field visits, “Certified Professional
Marketing Graduate (CPMG)” certificate,
the signing of MOUs for Gold Medals with
the Colombo Stock Exchange and

k Softlogic life and initiating a teaching

appraisal program to award a “Teaching
Excellence Award” to appreciate high-
quality teachersin the Faculty.

In achieving the mission, the faculty
creates outstanding leaders who shine in
the corporate world because they have
gained the required capability, skills, and
attitudes to make essential decisions to be
successful in their careers. The Faculty of
Commerce and Management Studies has
so far produced more than 10,000
graduates and most of them are at the
managerial ranks in public and private
sector organizations, and some of our
graduates are prominent entrepreneurs in
the country.

Dr PND Fernando
Dean/ Faculty of Commerce & Management Studies




FACULTY OF Vision
COMPUTING & TECHNOLOGY

To become a centre of excellence in creation and dissemination of knowledge in

Computing and Technology for sustainable development.

New Degree Programs Commenced

The Faculty of Computing and Technology commenced the 'Master of Science in IT in

ACULT g Education'inthe year 2021. The target group is ICT teachers.
Y OF COMPUT. 5 LR A

U”“‘EHEIT‘.’ e The first batch of students was registered on 30" January 2021. The number of
ep, ' registered studentsis 27.

MISSION
(414

The Faculty of Computing and Technology strives for
excellence in computing and technology through
innovation and dissemination of knowledge and

capacity building for socio-economic development of

b

the nation.
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Annual Conference

20th, 2021. The program was organized as an

annual event that supported scholars from

allaround the world to gather and share their
technological, scientific, and socio-
economic findings while initiating
collaborations. This year's motto for the
conference was on the topic” Defining the
role of technology for the economic
development of a country”. Four events were
conducted over three days, 1st FCT- Faculty
Research Symposium, 6th International
Conference, four workshops, and Pitch Tech
90, an outreach program focused on A/L

school studentsin the Technological Stream.

This event became a platform for a dialogue
with key stakeholders of the technology field

This year's International Conference on
y in Sri Lanka and scholars from around the

Advances in Technology and Computing
world.

was held virtually from December 18th to

Industry Cell for Computing and Technology
(IICFCT)

The Faculty of Computing and Technology (FCT) at the University of Kelaniya has
established the Industry Interaction Cell for Computing and Technology (IICfCT) to
provide consultancy services for both engineering and computing industries, product
development and acceleration to the market, and to establish the industry-faculty
business linkage. Through partnerships with private and public industries, the [ICfCT
intends to provide reliable and cost-effective solutions to the industries while providing a
learning experience to university students, and collaborative research opportunities to
the faculty members. [ICfCT obtains human resources from FCT for most of its projects.
As of today, the staff members attached to FCT have provided numerous computing and
software solutions to private and public entities. The IICfCT also coordinates the
professional activities and employability enhancement programs for the students to
enhance their soft skills, knowledge, and understanding of the corporate sector. ICCfCT
received funding worth over Rs. 17 million from the Science and Technology Human

Resource Project forits operationsinthe next 3 years.
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Actions on COVID-19 Pandemic (Staff/Student)

Adhering to guidelines given by the government and the university administration, the
Faculty of Computing and Technology also took many precautionary actions to prevent the
spread of COVID-19 on the campus. The health status of the staff and the students was
continuously monitored to identify any possible cases. Cleaning and disinfection
processes were conducted regularly. Students and staff were encouraged to get
vaccinated and arrangements were made to facilitate the vaccinations process. During
the last year, all the lectures were conducted online, and students were only admitted to
the university for examinations. Only fully vaccinated staff members performed -exam
duties, while students were separated into several categories according to their
vaccination status. This arrangement helped immensely to contain the virus during the
examination period when a large number of students were admitted to the university.
Regular meetings were conducted to review the COVID-19 status in the faculty, and

faculty guidelines were updated under the guidance of the Chief Medical Officer.

Infrastructure Development

The proposed infrastructure facilities for the Faculty of Computing and Technology are
under construction at Dippitigoda, Kelaniya at a total cost of LKR 4.3 billion under the
Asian Science and Technology Human Resource Development Project funded by the
Asian Development Bank. This building complex has a floor area of more than 30,000 m*
spread in 6 buildings comprising of all modern facilities including more than 25 science

and engineering laboratories and a 1000-seat auditorium.

The proposed building complex has been designed as green buildings with an energy-
efficiency focus and will enhance the recognition of the University of Kelaniya as a green
university with a relatively small carbon footprint. This building complex is expected to
receive the platinum green rating under both the Urban Development Authority Green
Building Certification Scheme as well as the Green Building Council of Sri Lanka

Certification Scheme. This building complex will generate renewable energy through a
large solar panel installation and two [ y ' '

windmills. A sophisticated Building
Management System will monitor the

functionality of all these systems.

The laboratory in this building complex will
be ready for occupation in mid-2022, while
the rest of the buildings have been planned

tobe completed by September 2023.
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Faculty Level Research

The Faculty of Computing and Technology Research Center (RC - FCT) will act as a
principal hub through which faculty members can receive guidance on funding
strategies, proposal preparation, inter-faculty and inter-university research

collaborations, international collaborations, identification of innovative research and

guidance on commercialization of research outcomes through coordination with the
Industry Interaction Cell of FCT (IICFCT). The main functions of the RC-FCT are to.

Direct the Advisory Board of the Faculty Research Centre to
develop/promote research culture within the faculty.

Facilitate interactions of researchers with outside researchers,
institutions, industry partners and the community.

Provide guidance and support in the career development activities
of young faculty members who have aninterestin research.

Represent the faculty and report the development of research
activities of the Faculty at the Research Council Meetings.

In year 2021 the Faculty Research Center organized the following
workshops for staff and students:

'"Transferring research Skills to the Next Generation' by Dr. Dilushan
Jayasundara on the 16" June 2021

'Industry and research applications of Data Science, Machine
Learning and Al', by Dr. Rukshan Batuwita, Senior Data Scientist on
3“October 2021.
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Activities on SDGs

The new Faculty of Computing and Technology building complex is targeting to

obtain the platinum green rating certification. The performance of the built
environments greatly affects the natural environment as well as the economy and
the productivity of the country and the health of the occupants. Also, buildings are
responsible for more than one third of total global energy usage and forty percent of
the global carbon dioxide emissions. As the world moves towards sustainable
development and green concepts the new building complex is designed to use less
energy and non- renewable materials and water and to improve indoor air quality
while reducing the life-cycle environmental impacts of the materials used. All these
green features that have been incorporated will ultimately result in a pleasant and
comfortable working environment for the occupants improving their productivity

while conserving the planet earth for generations to come.

Awards Received

Dr. Pradeep Samarasekera, Senior Lecturer, Department of Applied Computing,
CVCD Excellence Awards 2020/21- Most Outstanding Inventor for all the categories

Dr. Chamli Pushpakumara
Dean/ Faculty of Computing & Technology
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FACULTY OF
GRADUATE STUDIES

Vision

The vision of the Faculty of Graduate Studies (FGS) is based on the purpose of
education from ancient times: Natthi vijjaa Samampannaa (Pali), 'there is no power
comparable to knowledge' or ipsa scientia potestas est [Latin] 'knowledge is power.'

Therefore, FGS envisages that its graduates will have the knowledge to wield power
in different spheres and make the world a better place, through their dedication to

"_” S research, opennessto newideas, and mastery of analytical skills.
M- S UDEy

———

ALUMNI RELnTmﬂs '

MISSION
(14

The mission of the Faculty of Graduate Studies is to encourage
research and dissemination of knowledge at postgraduate level.
FGS works with academic staff, students and administrative staff
in all the Boards of Study of the University of Kelaniya to promote
excellence in postgraduate education. Hence, FGS works
together with all academic departments across the University to
offer graduate programs at postgraduate levels including
Diplomas, Master's, MPhil, and PhDs to create a dynamic
intellectual climate forits students.
b b
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Programs Offered By The FGS

FGS offers a variety of programs, ranging from postgraduate diploma level to doctoral
level. Currently, there are over fifty programs offered by the FGS in association with all
Boards of Study. Some of the courses are based only on coursework, while others are
based on research, and some others are a mix of coursework and research. Master of
Business (Accounting/Finance) program is conducted online fully. The curriculum of all
postgraduate programs are aligned with the Sri Lanka Qualification Framework (SLFQ)
and approved by the University Grants Commission (UGC). These courses are usually
conducted during weekends or evenings, to enable people who are already employed to

enhance their knowledge and skills.

Postgraduate study at MPhil (Master of Philosophy) and PhD (Doctor of Philosophy)
levels are possible in all disciplines available at the University of Kelaniya. Research
students assigned to a supervisor for guidance in conducting research. The applicant and

supervisor/s work together to achieve the objectives of the research program.
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Doctoral Programs (PhD/DBA)

The Doctoral degree is the highest level of degree a student can obtain. The duration of
study fora PhD/DBA is three years, with extensions possible, on recommendations by the
supervisor/s. PhD applicants should submit a research proposal to FGS. The purpose of
this qualification is to develop a person with a capacity to generate substantive insights in
a particular area of study through high quality original research. The qualification holder
should be able to provide evidence of generating new knowledge and disseminating them
through publications in peer reviewed indexed journals. For a doctoral degree, a
candidate is required to carry out a high-level research under the guidance of a supervisor
holding a qualification of the same SLQF level or equivalent and make a significant and
original academic contribution to creating new knowledge. The candidate should submita

thesisincorporating research findings which are assessed and accepted.

The candidate may also be required to follow some course- work as preparatory work or
for value addition to research. However, this course-work shall not contribute to the
credits accumulated towards the qualification. The research may be purely discipline-
based or multidisciplinary. The qualification holder should be able to design and carry out
independent pure and/or applied research, zsupervise and evaluate original research
carried out by others in the field of specialization. S/he should be able to demonstrate
critical awareness of current issues in the subject area and apply techniques relevant to

professional practice.
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Doctoral Programs (PhD/DBA)

The duration of study for MPhil is two years, and the program consists mainly of research.
The purpose of this qualification is to develop a person with a capacity of conducting high
quality original research without supervision. Foran MPhil degree, a candidate is required
to carry out high level research under the guidance of a person holding a qualification
equal or above the relevant qualification and make a significant contribution to a
particular discipline or field. The research may be discipline-based or multidisciplinary.
The candidate should submit a thesis incorporating research findings, which is assessed
and accepted. The candidate may also be required to follow some course work as
preparatory work or for value addition to research. However, this course work shall not

contribute to the creditaccumulated towards the qualification.

The qualification holder should be able to carry out independent pure and/or applied
research contributing significantly towards the development of new knowledge,
supervise and evaluate original research carried out by others in the field of specialization
leading to qualifications of SLQF levels up to 10. S/he should also be able to make
judgments on complex issues in the area of expertise and communicate her/his ideas and
conclusions clearly to specialist and non-specialist audiences. S/he should demonstrate
self-direction and originality in tackling and solving problems and be able to plan and
implement tasks at a professional level. The qualification holder should also be able to
demonstrate critical awareness of current issues in the subject area and be able to apply

techniques relevant to professional practice.

Master's Programs - Coursework and
Coursework Plus Research Programs

Board of Study No of Programmes Offered
Commerce & Business Management 07

Humanities 14

Social Sciences 18

Sciences 13

Medical Sciences 01

Multidisciplinary Studies related to Health 06 (Not be Started)
Computing 1
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Programs offered by the
FGS at International
Education Centers

« Benhuan University, China — Master of Arts in
Buddhist Studies

« Malaysian Buddhist Academy, Malaysia — Master
of Arts in Buddhist Studies

« Cambrian International Study Centre (CISC),
Bangladesh - MBA Program

« CQ University, Australia and University of
Kelaniya — Joint degree program - MBus
(Accounting/Finance) and MPA Program

Foreign Collaborations

« Cambrian International Study Centre (CISC),
Bangladesh

« Deakin University, Australia

« Shinshu University, Japan

+ Kyoto College of Graduate Studies for
Informatics, Japan

« Benhuan University, China

+  Malaysian Buddhist Academy




MBA Program Cambrian International Study Centre (CISC), Bangladesh

FGS provides MBA program of the University of Kelaniya in Bangladesh
through an exclusive corporate partner, Cambrian International Study . e
Centre (CISC) in Dakha. The CISC is a part of the BSB-Cambrian IF B -

Education Group, one of the leading private education providers in UNICATE £
Bangladesh. CISC and UoK agreed to conduct Master of Business RESEARCH
Administration (MBA) in for Bangladeshi students commencing from oy /E 9 WO
Academic year 2018. Fourteen students were enrolled in 2018 and 20 :
students were enrolled in 2019. The program has continued during 2020
and 2021.
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Deakin University, Australia and University of Kelaniya
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A Memorandum of Understanding (MoU), between Deakin University, Australia and the
University of Kelaniya was signed on 26" of April 2018. The MoU signifies the joint

aspirations of Deakin University and University of Kelaniya to develop a strategic alliance ‘*} Th e I m p rovemen t Of R esearc h S kl l l SO f
in international education between Australia, and Sri Lanka. Deakin University hopes to '
Postgraduate Students

deliver offshore PhDs in collaboration with Kelaniya University in Sri Lanka and

exchange of staff, students, educational resources and publications, joint research,

. . . . . In 2021, the F hort- forthei f h skill
teaching and learning, and collaborative projects are envisaged through the new n 2021, the FGS commenced a short-term program for the improvement of research skills

of postgraduate research students who wish to enhance their knowledge and skills in

partnership.
research methodology and scientific writing. Fifty-seven students participated in 2017, 87
CQ University, Australia and University of Kelaniya students participated in 2018. 144 students participated in 2020 and 94 students
A Memorandum of Understanding (MoU), between Central Queensland participated in 2021.
University (CQ University), Australia and University of Kelaniya was ", "’"11'2'5%' Infor'mation
signed on 4th of June 2018. The MoU signifies the joint aspirations of CQ "::‘mt-f'_";_l -;I‘ "y
University and University of Kelaniya to develop a strategic alliance in . r':n:"""'l-'r:{] e Management SYStem

S

international education between Australia, and Sri Lanka. The University . . . . .
_ _ o _ The University of Kelaniya is moving
of Kelaniya and CQ university jointly offers an accounting degree

. : . t ds b i the first [ ity t
program. Accordingly, the University commenced a Master of owards becoming the first university 1o

Professional Accounting (MPA) Program in Collaboration with CQ
University, Australiain 2019.

successfully adopt green practices in Sri

Lanka. We are beginning to move towards a

'‘paperless' society. In keeping with the
concept, FGS established a fully digitalized

management system in 2016 for the
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), between the Kyoto College of
Graduate School for Informatics (KCGI), Japan and University of Kelaniya
signed on 23rd of May 2019 at the Vice-Chancellor's Office, University of
Kelaniya to offer joint degree programs. The education model is based on

purposes of administrative activities
related to students and online access is
available through this management

. . . . system. All online information is accessible
the professional -style school which emphasizes practical knowledge and y net ont |

aims to develop high-quality human resources who are familiar with via smart phone or iPad. In 2021, a finance

Japanese, English,and IT. module was developed and implemented.
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Document Management System

In 2021, the FGS introduced a document management system to implement a zero-
contact document handling policy and to efficiently manage the inflow of documents
received by the FGS office. Further, as an extension to the same system, SMS and email
notifications were also integrated to empower the stakeholders when submitting

documents to the office.

Senior Prof J M D Ariyarathna
Dean/ Faculty of Graduate Studies

LAV -1
CORONAVIRUS

DISEASE

S ST

COVID 19 and Regulatory Activities of FGS
in 2021

The COVID- 19 pandemic control measures imposed by the health authorities led to
challenges in the normal academic and administrative activities of FGS. The impact was
also feltin the areas of conducting in-person- lectures and conducting in-person exams.
Further, contacting the students and staff when seeking additional information due to
work from home arrangements of the staff of FGS became difficult. Therefore, FGS
revisited the existing mechanisms and changed the practices hitherto adopted, in order to
maximize the use of the available existing IT infrastructure. As a result, these new
opportunities were maximized with the staff accessing exam reports, generating letters,
conducting technical discussions, updating records and conducting exams and meetings
digitally via online platforms. Finally, FGS managed to conduct lectures and exams of all

postgraduate programs on schedule in the virtual environment.
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FACULTY OF
HUMANITIES

Vision
To become a centre of excellence in the field of Humanities.

Summary of Activities

Inclusion of new departments to the faculty/ name changes in 2021

* Introducing Education as a subject to the scope of humanities subjects covered at
the Faculty through the establishment of the Education Unit.

MISSION
(14

To strengthen human resources through education and research

b

in the fields of Language, Arts and Religion.
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Actions on COVID-19 pandemic (Staff/ Students)

The Faculty of Humanities shifted to the online mode to adapt to the new realities of
the pandemic. The teaching and learning procedures of the faculty with respect to
internal, external, and post graduate students were conducted online to ensure the

smooth continuation of the academic workload without disruptions.

The Computer Assisted Learning & Web Unit of the Faculty (CAL) facilitated the
process of shifting academic staff towards online teaching and assessment
procedure while the students were provided with a convenient virtual learning

platform with access to e-learning materials that accelerated their learning .

A series of workshops were held under the AHEAD project on the use of digital tools
for teaching and assessment in virtual education to build the capacity of the
academic staff of the faculty.

All the departmental and faculty level meetings were held virtually in order to

minimize the number of physical gatherings as a preventive measure for Covid-19.

All academic and non-academic staff members were encouraged to work from
home, and only a limited number of staff members were called for duties to attend
to compulsory activities through a duty roaster while the operational guidelines for

Covid-19 prevention in the workplace were implemented and were strictly

followed.
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Examinations for the academic year 2018/2019 were conducted both physically

and virtually according to the circumstances. The first phase of exams was done
on-site, and the students were provided with hostel accommodation and
transportation facilities under the bio bubble method. The students who have
shown Covid-19 symptoms were quarantined in separate hostels with
essentials provided and arrangements were made for them to sit for the

examinations at the hostels.

During the in-person examinations, the staff members on examination duty
were provided with personal protective equipment, and transportation to

examination halls and hostel premises where examinations were carried out.

Examination halls were prepared according to the Covid prevention guidelines
and proper disinfection stations were set up, and proper sanitization procedures
were practiced atthe main gates and entrances to examination halls.

With the rapid increase of the pandemic, examinations were shifted online and
were conducted through CAL. The lecturers who were assigned to each subject
had to report to the ICT center to supervise the ongoing examination on the CAL
platform.

The inauguration program and orientation program of the first-year students,
and the intensive English course provided by the Department of English

Language Teaching were held virtually.

All the lectures of fee levying certificate and diploma courses were adapted to
the online mode to ensure that the teaching and learning procedure was not

disrupted.
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Infrastructure Developments

Under the AHEAD project, the following infrastructure development activities were

carried out.
i o T
-i'EL

« The Construction of a two-story
building for the Department of English
Language Teaching.

* The Construction of a one-story
building for the Internship and Skills

Development Unit.

« The initiation of constructing an

auditorium with a 100-seating capacity.

+ The ongoing construction of four smart

classrooms.

« The initiation of constructing an

Inclusivity Centre.

« Constructing an assisted washroom in
the Faculty for students with
disabilities.

« Distributing 700 new chairs to existing

lecture halls.

The renovations of the following

departments were carried out.
+ TheDepartmentof Linguistics

+ TheDepartment of Hindi studies

+ The Department of Pali and Buddhist
Studies

« Constructing the film and television
production studio and a washroom for
the Drama & Theatre and Image Arts
Unit.
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Research

« The highlight of research activity in
2021 is the organizing of the bth
International Conference on the
Humanities (ICH) 2020/21 which was
a two-day event held virtually on the
29th and 30th of July 2021. ICH
2020/21 gathered scholars and
panelists from many parts of the world
and Sri Lanka, to discuss and debate
how  “Retrospection for  Future
Perspectives” could aid scholars in the
humanities to share, define and
redefine knowledge, both new and old.

+ The International Buddhist
Conference on Pali and Buddhist
Studies 2021 organized by the
Department of Pali and Buddhist
Studies under the theme "Erroneous
Interpretations  and Misconceptions
on Theravada Buddhism" was held on
23rd of March 2021 virtually via the
Zoom platform.
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Awards

Vice-Chancellor's Awards

The Outstanding Senior Researcher of
the Faculty of Humanities, 1° Place,
Senior Professor Neelakshi
Premawardhena

The Outstanding Senior Researcher of
the Faculty of Humanities, 1* Place,
Professor C.D.S. Wettewe

The Outstanding Early Career
Researcher in the Faculty of Humanities,
1**Place, Dr.S. M. Assella

The Most Successful Directors of the
Centre/ Unit/ Committee of the
University, Senior Professor Neelakshi
Premawardhena

Activities on SDG

Conducting workshops for GCE
Advanced Level students by the
academic staff members of the faculty.

A sermon on  “Buddhism  and
Environment” on the International
Environment Day by Ven. Professor
Malwane Chandaratana Thero.

Dr Prabha Manuratne was a consultant
for the project on Gender Mapping of
Political Parties in Sri Lanka carried out
by One Text Initiative and Demo
Findland.




Highlights of the Year 2021

The launch of 'PratikXa - 03', consisting of short stories translated by the students of
Translation Studies (Honors) and Translation Methods of the Department of
Linguistics, University of Kelaniya, was held on the 26th of January 2021. This was the
16th Short Story Volume published by the students of the Department of Linguistics.

The official website of the Journal of the Faculty of Humanities was launched on the
2nd of March 2021 by the Vice-Chancellor Senior Professor Nilanthi de Silva of
University of Kelaniya. The journal can be accessed at https://journals.kln.ac.lk/jhu.
The launching ceremony of the three books "Vidéda sahitya salXlgrahaya",
"Samuganimat maraXayak", and “Japan bhaXava igdnvima" written by the Academic
Staff of the Department of Modern Languages was held on the 19th of March 2021.

“Gitabhivandana”, the song appreciation program organized by SalXprasa Par[Xlad of
Department of Sanskrit & Eastern Studies, was held virtually on the 28th of April 2021.
Appreciation of music was done by Professor Venerable Induragare Dhammarathana
Thero.

In celebration of the Centenary
Anniversary of University Education in
Humanities and Social Sciences in Sri
Lanka, a series of six lectures based on
the research of the academic staff
members of the Faculty was organized.

A series of three research workshops
was organized by the Research Centre in
collaboration with the Staff Development
Centre with the aim of improving the
research culture among the academic
staff members of the Faculty.

A series of five workshops was organized
by the Research Centre with the aim of
enhancing the research writing skills of
the Final Year Honors Degree
undergraduates of the faculty.

The Research Centre website was
revamped and a new website for the
Faculty Quality Assurance Cell was
launched.
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The Confucius Institute hosted the Online Spring Festival Evening, the Mid-Autumn
Festival Online Tea party, and "Chinese Bridge" Online Ba-Yu Culture Autumn Camp by
Chongging Normal University, China with the aim of providing a precious cultural
experience for Sri Lankan undergraduates.

"Chinese Bridge", the Chinese Proficiency Competition for Foreign University
undergraduates in Sri Lanka was hosted by the Confucius Institute and a virtual award
ceremony was held where the students of University of Kelaniya won the first, second,
and third places.

Dr. Sudath Senarath
Dean/ Faculty of Humanities
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FACULTY OF
MEDICINE
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VISION
€6

The Faculty aspires to be an internationally recognized
institution of higher education in a culture of excellence and

integrity that helps to generate and impart knowledge in the

b
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medical sciences.

MISSION

* Educates medical students, postgraduate doctors, allied health care professionals and
the public,

* Provides patient-oriented medical care to prevent, diagnose and treat human iliness,
and

« Conducts basic, applied, and clinical research

* inan environment of high-quality education that nurtures a spirit of inquiry, initiative,
equality and social responsibility.

Graduates of the Faculty will have the knowledge, the skills, and attitudes to be successful

in providing services to the community, country and beyond as individuals and opinion

leadersin aglobalized health care environment.

At the Faculty of Medicine, knowledge is advanced by an academic community with a

passion for teaching, student training and scientific enquiry. By providing an excellent

environment for learning and research, the Faculty encourages scholarship at the highest

level.
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SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES

he Faculty of Medicine

commenced academic activities

for 201 students of Batch 32
under the MBBS degree program in
February 2021 and 81 students of Batch 13
under the Speech and Hearing Sciences
(SHS) degree program in June 2021. The
26th Batch of MBBS students (2014/2015)
completed their final examinations in May
and the 9th Batch of SHS students
completed their examinationsin June.
Despite the COVID-19 pandemic, the
Faculty continued all scheduled academic
activities including examinations without
major interruptions. The lectures were
conducted online whilst the clinical
training continued at the North Colombo

Teaching Hospital. All students attending
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clinical appointments were provided
hostel accommodation under strict health
guidelines. Similarly, the activities in the
faculty were conducted observing all
health precautions mandated by the
COVID committee of the Faculty and the
University.

Seven new academic staff members were
recruited to the Departments of
Paediatrics, Family Medicine, Forensic
Medicine, Biochemistry, Disability studies
and Anatomy. Two eminent and long-
standing members of the Faculty,
Professors, Prashantha Wijeysinghe
(former Dean and Chair in Gynaecology
and Obstetrics) and Prof Ashwini
Fernando (Department  of Paediatrics)

retired during the year. Professor Sachith

49

Mettananda was appointed f
the Chair Professor of
Paediatrics and nine
members of the academic
staff were promoted as
Professors. There were 13 & .
non-academic staff |
appointments made during
the year.

A student affairs division
headed by Prof Parenitharan was set
up to facilitate, monitor and coordinate the
extra-curricular, counselling, welfare, and
career guidance activities of students.
Despite the COVID-19 pandemic, the
students organized several virtual
activities such as online debates,
discussions about ethics, and webinars,
some of which were organized in parallel
with the 30th-anniversary celebrations.

The students actively participated in

several events organized by the Green
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Practice Committee of the Faculty

including a photography competition,
several webinars, and a beach clean-up
program on the Negombo beach by
partnering with the “Pearl Protectors”
environmental volunteer organization.

The building of the liver transplant  center
commenced in July 2021 delayed by
increment weather and the COVID
pandemic. A proposal for upgrading
student facilities was formulated and the
initial phase of this project was completed
with the setting up of a unisex salon and
-m washing facilities. The
k second phase to upgrade the
student canteen in the boys'
hostel, has commenced.
Several other infrastructure
development projects
- including the installation  of
an incinerator, toilets for

visitors, renovation of the
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record room and the stores, refurbishment
of the Ethical Review Committee office,
renovation of the Al4 building for the
Department of Public Health, the erection
of the boundary wall at the rear side of the
B4 building and water-proofing of the
canteenfloor areongoing.

The Faculty continued to have a
successful year in the sphere of research
with five of its members namely
Professors Nilanthi De Silva, Janaka De
Silva, Anuradhani Kasturirathna, H.A. De
Silva and Sachith Mettananda being listed
among the top 2% of scientists in the world
by Elsevier BV and Standford University.
Nineteen academics received the
President's Awards for Scientific

Publications and more than tenresearch
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awards were obtained by academics at
scientific conferences throughout the year.
There were 172 research articles published
in peer-reviewed journals and 54 abstracts
published as conference proceedings
during the year. For the first time, the
Faculty awarded research grants to staff
members. Realizing the significance and
implications of COVID-related research,
nine research grants were awarded using
generated funds from the clinical trials

unit, amounting to approximately 3.8

million LKR.

The Faculty of Medicine celebrated its'
30th anniversary in 2021 with a series of
successful events that  commemorated
international days including the World
Health day, Thalassaemia Day, Youth Day,
Liver Day, No Tobacco day, International
Day against lllicit Drug Trafficking and
Drug Abuse, Fertility and Contraception
day, Children's day and Diabetes day were
celebrated by conducting webinars,

poster campaigns short film
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competitions and several other activities
aimed at delivering health messages and
creating awareness among the public. The
key event was the academic sessions and
international research symposia held on
29th and 30th October 2021, at the Main
Auditorium of the Faculty of Medicine in
Ragama. The sessions were organized in a
hybrid manner to cater to an international
audience and participants from USA, UK,
Netherlands, Belgium, Singapore.
Australia, New Zealand, Indonesia, India
and Sri Lanka participatedin the event. The
inaugural Carlo Fonseka Memorial Lecture
2021 was delivered by Prof. Janaka de
Silva. Prof. Carlo Fonseka Memorial Inter-

Batch Debate Competition was organize -

parallel to the 30th - anniversary
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celebrations of the Faculty of Medicine,
University of Kelaniya. A free paper session
was organized to promote research among
students and 27 papers were presented by
the undergraduate students of several

faculties.

Senior Professor J. Hewavisenthi
Dean/ Faculty of Medicine
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FACULTY OF
SCIENCE

L e HETY OF SEAT
&

MISSION
(14

The mission of the Faculty of Science of the University of
Kelaniya is to produce highly motivated graduates and
postgraduates capable of making a significant contribution to
national development and the wellbeing of mankind and of
conducting research and providing advisory and consultancy
services in various scientific disciplines to foster a better

understanding of the environment for the sustainable use and

conservation of natural resources. , ,
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INTRODUCTION OF THE FACULTY

he Faculty of Science, established in 1967, is one of the seven faculties of the

University of Kelaniya. At present, the Faculty of Science consists of 8 academic
departments namely the Departments of Chemistry, Industrial Management,
Mathematics, Microbiology, Physics and Electronics, Plant and Molecular Biology,
Statistics & Computer Science, and Zoology and Environmental Management, and two
units, namely the Software Engineering Teaching Unit and the Sports & Exercise Science
Unit.
The Faculty of Science offered 3 Bachelor of Science Degree Programs of 3-year duration
and 15 Bachelor of Science Honours Degree Programs of 4-year duration. From the
Academic Year 2020/2021, the Faculty of Science successfully increased the number of
Honors Degree Programs to 18 by introducing the following Honors Degree Programs,
which ledtoanincreaseinthe studentintake by 190.
« Bachelor of Science Honors in Applied Chemistry,
« Bachelor of Science Honors in Electronics and Computer Science, and
« Bachelor of Science Honors in Sports Science
Further, the Faculty of Science has increased the studentintake by 212 from the Academic
Year 2019/2020 for all its Degree Programmes, which led to an increase in the annual

student intake to 957. Hence the student intake from the Academic Year 2020/2021 has
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beenincreasedupto1147.

The annual student intake for the Biological Sciences and Physical Sciences are 221 and
362 respectively from the Academic Year 2019/2020. The Faculty also admitted 119
students to the BSc Honors Degree Program in Management and Information Technology,
109 students to the BSc in Environmental Conservation and Management, 59 students for
the BSc Honors in Software Engineering, and 76 students for BSc in Physics and
Electronics Degree Programs through separate windows. Furthermore, the Physical
Sciences and Biological Sciences students are offered a range of auxiliary course units
from the Faculties of Commerce & Management Studies, Humanities, and Social
Sciences. At present, the Faculty of Science conducts 12 MSc Degree Programmes and 3
Postgraduate Diploma Programmes. Currently, the Faculty serves 2358 undergraduates,
138 academic staff, one academic support staff and 94 non-academic staff members. The
construction of the new lecture theatre complexisin progress, and it will further facilitate
student-centred learning activities in the Faculty of Science.

The Faculty provides services to students, the academic community and the public
through the Repair and Instrumentation Unit, National Glass Blowing Centre, The
Regional Centre for Asian Ant Research, Solar Solutions Centre, Central Equipment
Laboratory, Floriculture Research Center, Research and Consultation Centre for Coconut

oil, University-Industry Community Interaction Cell (Environment and Development

Consultants (EDCON), and the Research and Services Centre.
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Grants

The Faculty of Science secured the following external grants amounting to LKR 360
millioninyears 2019 and 2020 under the World Bank-funded AHEAD operations, and
the related work commenced in the year 2021, and are being continued:
1 ELTA-ELSE Faculty proposal—LKR 100 million
2 Development Oriented Research — LKR 40 million
ok ELTA-ELSE Department-wise proposals
a. Departmentof Industrial Management— LKR 15 million
b. Department of Plant and Molecular Biology — LKR 15 million
4. Enhancementof studentenrolmentin STEM disciplines
a. Department of Industrial Management — LKR 50 million
b. Department of Chemistry - LKR 20 million
c Department of Mathematics - LKR 20 million
d. Departments of Mathematics, Physics and Electronics,
Statistics & Computer Science - LKR 20 million
G Research Innovation and Commercialization (RIC)

a. Department of Chemistry — LKR 40 million

b. Department of Physics and Electronics — LKR 40 million
Patents

The Faculty of Science received the following patentsinthe year 2021:

1. A method of improving the shelf life and oxidative stability of bakery products
using coconut oil cake (Poonac) extract - Number 19795

4 2 A method of improving the shelf life and oxidative stability of bakery products
f using Psidium Guineense Sw. Leaf extract - Number 1979

Bz SL Patent titled “Auto Removing Regulator for Liquefied Petroleum Gas

P_ -:E'?; Cylinders and Electricity CUTOFF System at Gas Leakages” has been published in
e
H.""‘_ page no 46 of Gazette no. 2212 of the Gazette of the Democratic Socialist Republic of

SriLankaon2021.01.22 - Application No: 20365

The International Conference on Applied and Pure Sciences — ICAPS 2021 of the
Faculty of Science was held as a hybrid event on 29 October 2021 under the theme of
Green Technology towards a knowledge-based economy.

The Covid-19 pandemic prevented students from attending the Faculty of Science
physically for academic activities. However, facing these challenges and following the
health guidelines, academic activities were carried out online, and the Faculty managed
to complete all the End-Semester examinations relevant to the Academic Year
2018/2019 physically by November 2021. Examinations for the Academic Year
2019/2020 have already been commenced and academic activities for the final year
students will be completed by April 2022.

The Faculty is also planning to introduce the BSc in Data Science & Analytics Degree
program, the 3 plus 1 BSc Honors Degree program, BSc in Software Engineering
(External) Degree program, Diploma Program in Astronomy, Computer Science, and
Information Technology shortly.

Due to staff and student dedication and hard work, the Faculty of Science of the
University of Kelaniya has now become a Centre of Excellence in Tertiary Education in
Sri Lanka. The Faculty of Science has created a conducive environment to promote
freedom of thought, innovation and creativity. The graduates who are endowed to the
nation from the Faculty of Science will undoubtedly contribute significantly to the
progress and wellbeing of mankind globally.

With this capacity and in line with the mission, the Faculty of Science has been
rendering its outstanding services to prepare and produce scholars and professionals
with capabilities, skills, and attitudes to drive the economy, support civil society and

government, and make essential decisions in the interest of mankind.

Senior Professor S R D Kalingamudali

Dean/ Faculty of Science




FACULTY OF
SOCIAL SCIENCE VISION

To maintain excellence by nurturing independent thought, critical analysis, a sense of
social responsibility, respect for cultural diversity and ethical values through multi-
disciplinary and inter-disciplinary collaboration with a commitment to the development of

SriLankain particular, and South Asiain general.

MISSION
(14

To advance and promote the socio-economic, political, cultural
and academic development of Sri Lankan society through

teaching, research, innovation and intellectual leadership.

b
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Course and Action in response to the COVID-19 pandemic (Staff/ Students)

By 2021, the academic staff of the Faculty of Social Sciences (FSS), were well acclimated
to conducting lectures online and the lectures of all levels of the Bachelor of Arts Degree

Programs, MA/MSSc and Diploma Programs were carried out successfully.

The Covid-19 Response Committee of the Faculty along with a team of able and
enthusiastic lecturers worked towards conducting BA examinations in the FSS with
students being physically present at the University premises amidst Covid-19 pandemic
conditions. Separate exam halls were allocated for students to sit for the exams. The four
categories of exam halls thus allocated were A-hostellers; B-non hostellers; C-isolated
candidates; D-differently abled candidates. The FSS managed to complete a larger part of
the exam without facing drastic medical issues and the Chief Medical Officer of the
University as well as the MoH, Kelaniya who visited Examination Halls approved the exam

plan.

However, since health authorities in the country took decisions to tighten the regulations
on social gatherings and since the country was facing another wave of Covid-19, the FSS
decided to hold the rest of the exams online. Those exams were also successfully
completed, and a separate Computer Centre was converted into a central examination
center for online examinations. A set of young lecturers was trained to handle the
examination activities and the students were given the opportunity to face mock

examinations to make them familiar with this new process.

A re-sit exam was also held in December for those who could not sit for the exams due to

Covid-19 conditions.

MA/MSSc examinations were held successfully. The candidates were physically present.
They were divided into three categories as A-fully vaccinated, B-partially vaccinated and

C-those who were notvaccinated.

Apart from the lectures and examinations, each department of the Faculty conducted

various academic and cultural activities using the zoom platform.
Faculty -level research/ awards/ activities on SDGs

The Department of Library and Information Sciences held its Annual International
Research Conference (4th International Conference on Library and Information
Management - ICLIM) in collaboration with the Research Centre for Social Sciences using
the virtual space. Similarly, the Department of Geography held a virtual Internal
Conference in collaboration with the assistance of two universities in India and with the

Research Centre for Social Sciences.

The Research Centre for Social Sciences held a Research Forum commemorating
Women's Day, where researchers of the Faculty who were engaged in gender studies in

various disciplines of Social Sciences shared their research experiences.

The FSS continued the research project titled 'The Impact of Social Protection on
Sustainable Development Goals in Sri Lanka: an Empirical Analysis' under an AHEAD

(Accelerating Higher Education Expansion and Development) Grant.

The Research Centre for Social Sciences published the first volume of the research

journal,'Samajeeya Vidya'in Sinhala medium.

Several members of the FSS won Vice-Chancellor's Awards for their outstanding

contributionto researchin Social Sciences. They are as follows:

*  Professor M.G. Kularathna—Qutstanding Senior Researcher

* Dr.H.R.S. Sulochani—Outstanding Early Career Researcher

* DrNamaliSuraweera - Outstanding Senior Researcher

+ Dr.Priyanwada Wanigasooriya - Outstanding Senior Researcher

Further a team consisting of Professor M.M. Gunatilake, Dr. Roshini Jayaweera, Dr. N.D.P.
Padmakanthi, Dr. J.D.PC.D. Dhramadasa and Ms. M.Y.N. Mendis received the award for

the recipients of the highest amount of external research grants.
Highlights of the year, 2021

The FSS has been given the opportunity by the UGC to establish a Department of
Information and Communication Technology (DICT) for Bachelor of Arts undergraduates

and the FSS has initiated planning and training/recruiting staff for this new department.

The FSS has created a Quality Assurance Cell for the Faculty and has also established a
Grievances Committee and a Finance Committee. A Building and Maintenance
Committee was also established for monitoring the works, constructions and

maintenance activities pertaining to the physical infra-structure development of the FSS.

The major community service undertaken by the FSS was to raise funds for the
Kiribathgoda Base Hospital to be used in its Covid-19 treatment activities. An amount

exceeding eight hundred thousand rupees was collected.

Professor M M Gunathilake

Dean/ Faculty of Social Sciences



n 2020, the UoK Library pioneered the

development of digital information

resources over a long period of time. In
2021, it was particularly explored how
digital services could add more value than
physical collections, not only by enabling
remote access but also by enhancing
access with expert knowledge of searching,
synthesizing, and using information
competently. Overall, the response to the
pandemic has vastly accelerated this
"digital shift." During the COVID-19
pandemic, one of the university's primary
goals was to provide the UoK Library with
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THE LIBRARY

the digital infrastructure needed to enable
students and scholars to study and work
from home. The library continued to
operate remotely via the Shibboleth
gateway to provide digital resources and
digital library services such as widening the
access to research and publications in
Research Repository, Past Exam Paper
Repository, Electronic Reading Room etc.
Other highlights include LibChat Virtual
Assistance Service, Library and research
skills workshops, and Online Document
Delivery Service.

Online inquiries received by the library

were more than 2,451 via email, website,
and LibChat, and 16,563 visits took place
24/7 without interruption. Librarians
worked from home, and all staff members
were initially given intense training on how
to address the informational requirements
of students and staff remotely. It was
observed that LibChat became more
popular as the lockdown continued, with a
significantincrease over the previous yeatr.
Since 2020, in response to the national
lockdown and the global COVID-19
pandemic, the UoK Library has been
primarily developed as a virtual library
service, purchasing more than 320 e-books
for recommended readings in 2021,
bringing the library's total e
- book collection to
100,914. The Electronic
Reading Room of the
library was strengthened
by uploading
recommended information
resources in parallel with @
the undergraduate lectures
delivered at different
faculties. Informational
and instructional support
for teaching programs,
support for teaching and g
learning with e-versions of (&

information sources, open K
access books, and g
multiple-licensed
textbooks whenever
possible, providing access %3
to additional limited =
information and knowledge | &
resources were made g
available at this point to g
enhance the teaching and
learning function of the
university by uploading
more than 420

recommended readings, §
1,926 past question
papers, 2,287 research
publications and supplying
172 documents via online
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document delivery service during the year
2021. The library has partnered with the
National Digital Library of India to provide
UOK students and staff access to over 40
million items of lecture videos in different
subject disciplines, information sources,
and other educational materials. The
library has adapted its services in line with
national lockdown guidelines and
institutional requirements. In addition, a
digital wallboard was set up in the library
with the assistance of the British Council of
Sri Lanka, enabling readers to access the
Council's digital collection via QR codes.

Copyright was a significant challenge for
the UoK community, especially during the




pandemic. The UoK Library helped raise
awareness about copyright issues and the
publishing process. The webinars helped
clarify the legal and ethical aspects of
documents that can be uploaded to CAL
and which formats to be used. Librarians
also actively participated in sharing
experiences with the international
community, such as the Clarivate South
Asia's South Asian Librarians Forum 2021
in communicating the role of librarians in
promoting academic integrity and overall
corporate profile. They also participated in

many scholarly conferences, partnering
with the 4th International Conference on
Library and Information Management
(ICLIM). Various awareness campaigns
were conducted on topics such as
publication process, predatory journals,
hijacked journals, journal indexing, Impact
factor etc to create an integrity and
sustainable scholarly ecosystem.

During the year 2021, the library's primary
focus was to continue to support final year
students who sit for exams and complete
dissertations, as well as postgraduate
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students who research throughout the
year. This support was aimed not only at
troubleshooting but also at presenting
support for dissertation and thesis
preparation. In 2021, three interactive
digital media salons were established in
the library to facilitate group teaching and
learning work with national and
international collaborations. These digital
salons also allow students, faculty, and
staff to build and exhibit artistic or
research-based projects that heavily rely
on digital formats. When the university was

closed, the library was open to students
during the pandemic due to the high
demand for essential study materials that
were not available in digital formats but
were necessary for their research work.
Opening to membership was made under
the strict health guidelines imposed by the
COVID-19 Responses Committee of the
university.

When the lockdown began, the library
quickly transformed face-to-face
workshops into online synchronized
webinars. Accordingly, the UoK Library

offered online workshops and drop-ins to
students and staff to assist with distance
learning and teaching. Many training programs
on information competency development were
started and implemented. All students could
participate in more than 60 webinars in online
dropouts to help with research and referrals with
librarians via Zoom. New and continuing
students could join the “Library Orientation”
sessions through Zoom for an online library tour
and build their skills by participating in online
workshops on information literacy. Recordings
from the Library webinars were also available on
the library website, which enabled many other
students who were unable to attend these
sessions to benefit from them.

The UoK Library funded university-wide access
to Urkund: Ouriginal. It examined the similarity of
student papers, theses/dissertations, research
papers, and assignments to other sources in
order to detect plagiarism. It also took the
initiative to explore the originality of student
activities by integrating Urkund into the LMS of
the Faculty of Science and the Faculty of
Management and Finance. In 2021, these
faculties tested this system for different
courses, and it is expected to be extended the
facility to all faculties by 2022. In 2021, 11,976
papers were submitted to Urkund and
conducted similarity analysis to detect possible
plagiarized content.

National Library and Documentation Services
Board, the ISN Agency of Sri Lanka, has
authorized the UOK library to act as a facilitator
to provide ISBN and ISSN to individuals, centers,
and departments of the university that require
these. This facility has allowed the UoK Library
to serve both the commercial and self-publishing

individuals/departments in the university as a
closer destination for providing international
standard numbers for their literary and scholarly
works. This section also assisted the required
parties for daily inquiries regarding publishing,
copyright, legal deposits, barcoding, etc. A total
of 26 ISBNs and 11 ISSNs were provided during
the year under review.

In order to achieve the goal of the UK's vision, the
UoK Library serves to nurture a culture that
actively promotes innovation and creativity. This
is evidenced by the conceptual leadership role
played by the library in developing a set of new
policies and service provisions implemented
throughout the institution. An example of the
policies developed during 2021 is the OER Policy.
The Library's Interactive Media Unit started
developing the university's collection of
audiobooks, and by the end of 2021, it comprises
of 19 full audiobooks. The main objective of this
project was to facilitate library use with a remote
library service by providing access to a collection
of audiobooks that are needed on time during the
COVID 19 pandemic and for the readers with
disabilities who rely on voice-only media. The
library also developed an easy-access system
for its Braille Collection, focusing on visually
impaired undergraduates, intending to provide
reading support so that students could locate
the required books in the Braille Collection
anywhere and reserve them before arriving at
the library.

Dr CC Jayasundara
Librarian
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v THE CENTRE FOR DISTANCE &
CONTINUING EDUCATION

Introduction to the CDCE

The CDCE operates under circular provisions laid down
by the UGC circular no. 932 and the by-laws of the
University. Accordingly, it functions under a Director who
reports directly to the Vice-Chancellor. There are three
Deputy Directors manning the three divisions of,
Registrations and Examinations, Learning Resources
and Training. The academic and administrative decisions
are taken by the Boards of Study and the Management
Committee of the CDCE with the approval of the Senate

and the Council of the university as applicable.

Our Mission

Our missionis to achieve excellence in providing learners
with opportunities to develop knowledge, attitudes, and

skills to serve the world with respect for the dignity of life.

Aunual Report & ecounts 2021

~ Online Learning

In 2021, the CDCE developed significantly by teaching via the Learning
Management System (LMS) and by modifying Zoom lectures and seminars
videos on LMS pages as solution for the COVID -19 pandemic situation.
Nevertheless, the CDCE has decided to use this method continuously since it

provides the best progress for our center.

~ E-Library

The CDCE has decided to build a new E-library for the center to provide and
efficient service to the students to fulfill the current requirements. Students from
across the country are registered at CDCE and they are unable to visit the CDCE
frequently for academic purposes. By using the E-Library they can read

recommended readings online.

~ Degrees Awarded by the CDCE \

The CDCE has a 20-year history and the Bachelor of Arts (General) Degree
program has been offered through CDCE from the beginning. It is also the most
in-demand external degree program (EDP) at the CDCE. A new syllabus for the
Bachelor of Arts degree was introduced by the UGC in 2021.

Currently, external degree programs are offered by four faculties:

Faculties of Humanities and Social Sciences
Bachelor of Arts - BA (External) -3 years

Faculty of Science
Bachelor of Science - BSc (External) —3 years

Faculty of Commerce and Management Studies
Bachelor of Commerce - BCom (External) —4 years
Bachelor of Business Management - BBMgt (external)] -3 years

All the external degree programs offered by the CDCE, except the BCom degree,

are 3-years general degree programs (90 Credits) and these degrees comply with
SLQF standards (90 credits).

Ven. Dr. Dodamkumbure Dhammadassi Thero

Director/ Centre for Distance & Continuing Education
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STUDENTS OF THE
UNIVERSITY - 2021

Total Students

112,350
I
n Lr:ter;nlea es n E:'(t(:;nila es Postgraduates
o 1§,67ds t o 95,632 t R
STUDENTS IN UNDERGRADUATE DEGREE
Locallss’étzlczients Local2,89t7u(§ients P RO G RAM S

The internal undergraduate student population is distributed among 20 different

programs of study in six faculties. The number of female students is higher than the

Foreign students Foreign students number of male students in each year of study in all faculties except the Faculty of
51 15 Computing & Technology. Table 6-2 illustrates the data descriptively.

Figure 6 - 1: Students of the University

STUDENTS IN UNDERGRADUATE DEGREE TOTAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT - EXTERNAL
PROGRAMS UNDERGRADUATE DEGREE PROGRAMS

The University of Kelaniya offers a wide range of bachelor's degree programs for full-

time students. The University also has a Center for Distance & Continuing Education iaible & = 12 Votel UTIDEr e SUERS 1 @eiiel SReies BRogIes 12 (SO gl of Sudy
which offers six programs of study for part-time students reading for external Total Number of Registered Students
degrees_ Program of Study > — —
ale cemale ota.
With the enrollment of 3,959 students for undergraduate degree programs for the
2019/ 20 academic year, the total number of students for internal undergraduate railor et (Cemee) 16 184 67232 83416
degree programs has increased to 13,673 students. The highest number of Bachelor of Business Management (General) 3553 8174 11727
undergraduates belong to the Faculty of Commerce & Management Studies which Bachelor of Commerce (Special) 112 224 336
represents 23% of the total internal undergraduate population. The Faculty of Bachelor of Science (General) 76 104 180
Computing & Technology has the lowest number of students (7%). The highest Benialor @ SeiEs fn Quemiel 10 ) 1
number of students registered for external degree programs is for the Bachelor of — -
.. ; Bachelor of Science in Physiotherapy 14 8 22
Arts (General) degree program, which is 83,416 in total (Table 6-1).
Grand Total 19 949 75 743 95 692

4 . . . . .
Information on internal undergraduate students is provisional
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Table 6 -2 :Total student enrollment of the year 2021 — Local infernal undergraduates

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
M F M F M F M F M F M F

Faculty Name of the Program

Bcom - - - - TR L) 64 131 65 132 85 215

FCMS BBMgt Hons - - - - 172 327 189 298 166 330 198 441
BBMgt Hons (Financial - - - - - - 14k 35 17 55188 2241855
Computer Science - - - - 37F 2 40 9 40 8 46 17
FCT Engineering Technology - - - - 74 14 78 g/ 71 155 SRS
BA Hons Teaching English as a Second Language - - - - 46 30 SOFel 19 44 31 OBl 38

BA Hons in Film & Television Studies - - - - 1552933 16 34 148 333 784S
Humanities - - = = 93 284 112 558 109 475 107 540
BA Hons Teaching English as a Second - - - - 1 40 T 277, 2=~ 583 25136
BA Hons in Translation Studies - - - = 2 rm22 B2 7 ) g B8
MBBS 56 104 70 90 68 104 64 107 58 107 81 139
Speech & Hearing Sciences - - - - [O% 8y T et oF Tkl St 79
Biological Science - - - = 14 40 56 113 548 8125 42  1el

FHU

FMED

Environmental Conservation Management - - - - 1 7 L1g %30 15 40 I8 = Ve3)
h > Management & Information Technology - - = - 39 40 631 83 65 33 StIY.
Physical Science - - - = LSE= 30 132 136 138 144 124 161 409 580 889
Physical Science - ICT (Physics & Electronics) - - - - - - 328k 11 29 pgsl4 S | P 99 Z25?) 151
Software Engineering = = - - 41 11 3Gl 2 86 T 12 45 11 158 46 204
Peace & Conflict Resolution - - - - 8425 GERD 3 6 28 A 24 108 132
it o 2 Social Science - - - = 17 1657 100 632 75 634 78 668 380 2591 2971
Total 56 104 70 90 824 1851 1083 2294 1010 2288 1120 2829 4164 9458

M - Male F - Female
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STUDENTS IN POSTGRADUATE PROGRAMS

The Faculty of Graduate Studies has enrolled 1,279 students in 2021 for 122 postgraduate
programs out of which 3 are foreign students who enrolled for 3 programs. Out of the total
student enrollment in postgraduate programs, most are enrolled for master's degree
programs and most of the students follow the programs in which the Board of Study

belongs to the Faculty of Science. BoS Program of Study New Entrants Student Enrolment
Table 6 - 3: Students in postgraduate programs M ¥ Total M ¥ Total
MA in Drama & Theater (1 Year) 0 0 0 20 49 69
New Entrants Student Enrolment
BoS Program of Study MA in Music (2 Years) 0 0 0 18 35 53
M F Total M F Total
" MA in Dance (2 Years) 0 0 0 34 49 83
MASTER'S DEGREE kS
b= MPHIL STUDIES
Master of Commerce 20 14 34 29 29 58 ]
- — g Mphil 15 6 1115 26
= Master of Business (Accounting/Finance) 65 64 129 130 167 297 s
-]
E Master of Business Studies 29 38 67 29 38 67 DOCTORAL STUDIES
g0
g Master of Business Administration 50 60 110 206 202 408 PhD 5 7 12 17 16 33
% Master of Business Management in Marketing 22 13 35 52 29 81 Total 64 211 275 313649 962
wn
% Master of Human Resources Management 25 26 31 66 78 144 MASTER'S DEGREE
=
;‘; MPHIL STUDIES Master of Public Health 8§ 28 36 8 28 36
]
2]
g Mphil 1 2 3 1 4 5 s MPHIL STUDIES
-] [
%) .
£ DOCTORAL STUDIES 3 Mphil 00 02 6 8
=] o
© Doctor of Business Administration 22 7 29 62 16 78 g DOCTORAL STUDIES
PhD 1 0 1 9 4 13 PhD 0 0 0 5 4 9
Total 235 224 459 584 567 1151 Total 8 28 36 15 38 53
MASTER'S DEGREE MASTER'S DEGREE
Msc in Information Technology in Education 13 22 35 13 22 35 Msc in Analytical Chemistry 16 27 43 16 27 43
%n MPHIL STUDIES Msc in Biochemistry and Biotechnology 5 30 35 5 30 35
é Mphil 0 1 1 3 2 5 Msc in Industrial & Environmental Chemistry 36 65 101 59 117 176
=
© DOCTORAL STUDIES Msc in Crop Protection & Plant Biotechnology 1 1 2 1 1 2
PhD 0 0 0 12 3 (1 year)
Total 13 23 36 17 26 43 Msc in Crop Protection & Plant Biotechnology 6 21 27 10 47 57
(2 year)
MASTER'S DEGREE : —
Msc in Aquaculture & Fisheries Management 3 8 11 7 15 22
MA in Buddhist Studies (1 Year) - Sinhala 8 0 8 22 4 26 - -
51 Msc in Environmental Management (1 year) 8 17 25 8 17 25
MA in Buddhist Studies (1 Year) - English 1 0 1 5 0 5 5
in Buddhist Studies (1 Year) - Englis i Msc in Environmental Management (2 year) 16 32 48 16 32 48
i i i - Si 6 3 9 38 15 53
MA in Buddhist Studies (2 Years) - Sinhala Msc in Data Analytics (1 year) 23 7 30 23 7 30
2 MA in Buddhist Studies (2 Y - English 4 2 6 19 7 26
£ in Buddhist Studies (2 Years) - Englis Master of Information Technology 52 54 106 52 54 106
= MA in Sinhala (2 Years) 0 0 0 48 116 164
E — : MPHIL STUDIES
E MA in Linguistics - Sinhala (1 Years) 1 6 7 10 9 19
MA in Linguistics - English (1 Years) 2 14 16 2 14 16 Mphil P10 1 8 15 23
MA in Linguistics - Sinhala (2 Years) 5 14 19 5 14 19 DOCTORAL STUDIES
MA in Linguistics - English (2 Years) 27 140 167 48 267 315 PhD 3 1 4 4 9 13
MA in Christian Studies (1 Year) 4 20 24 16 39 55 Total 170 273 443 209 371 580
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FOREIGN STUDENTS
FOREIGN STUDENTS IN UNDERGRADUATE DEGREE

PROGRAMS
New Entrants Student Enrolment 10 students have newly enrolled under foreign entry to the internal undergraduate degree
BoS Program of Study M F_ Total M F_ Total programs conducted by the Faculty of Medicine in the year 2021 (2019/20 academic
year). Accordingly, the total foreign enrollment to the internal undergraduate degree
MASTER'S DEGREE

programs is updated as 51 students. The table 6-4 below shows the number of

MSSc in Sociology (Sinhala Medium) 0 0 0 2 5 7 undergraduates under foreign entry indicating their country, degree program and
MSSc in Sociology (English Medium) 0 0 0 2 4 6 respective academic year. The number of male undergraduates is higher than female
MSSc in Archeology 0 0 0 0 4 4 undergraduates under the foreign entry category. Moreover, the highest number of
MSSc in Economics (Sinhala Medium) 0 o 0 " " 5 fore|_gr_1 students have been registered to the MBBS program conducted by the Faculty of
- Medicine.
MSSc in Geography 0 0 0 5 6 11
MSSc in History 0 0 0 0 6 6 Table 6 - 4 : Undergraduate student enrollment under foreign category
v
S MSSc in Archeology 0 0 0 20 38 58 T
2 Facul P f Year of Count Year of tudent Enrolment
3 MSSc in Economics (Sinhala Medium) 0 0 0 0 0 0 aculty rogram o ear o ountry ear o
h study study Intake M F Total
-g MSSc in Geography 0 0 0 2 21 23 -
S Bangladeshi 6 - 6
MSSc in History 0 0 0 0 2 2 D —
Cambodia 1 - 1
MPHIL STUDIES FHU Humanities 2 China 2016/17 1 - 1
Mphil 4 8 12 1313 26 Myanmar 7 7
DOCTORAL STUDIES Vietnam 2 - 2
PhD 2 3 5 13 12 25 Bhutan 2 4 6
Total 6 11 17 58 112 170 1 Canada 1019/20 - 1 1
e MPHIL STUDIES Sri Lanka 2 1! 3
£ . Canada 1 - 1
23  DOCTORAL STUDIES o Lanka H— 1
a2
sl FMED Medicine Bhutan _ 3 3
= PhD in Multi-Disciplinary Studies 2 2 4 3 2 5 3 = 2017/18
= USA - 1 1
Total S~ 4 9 a1 10
P Bhutan 2016/17 = 5 5
MPHIL STUDIES Bhutan 2015/16 T 5
- - Mphil 0 1 1 0 1 1 Australia P 1
= = T e £
2 DOCTORAL STUDIES 5 Bhutan 2014/15 4o 6
%) —
. PhD in Multi-Disciplinary Studies 0 0 0 0 0 0 UAE - 1 i)
1
Total 0 1 1 0 T 1 Grand Total 32w 19 S |
|
e Grand Total OIS 1276 1202 1768 2970 |

M - Male F - Female - W‘ Qemale

2 SR T g
2 . T2 “\'
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FOREIGN STUDENTS IN UNDERGRADUATE
DEGREE PROGRAMS

3 foreign students have enrolled for the 3 programs in which the Board of Study
belongs to Commerce & Management Studies and Humanities. Thus, the total
foreign enrollment in postgraduate studies of the University of Kelaniya as at the
December 31, 2021, is 15 students. Table 6-5 describes the corresponding
postgraduate program of study, number of foreign students and their respective
country origin.

Table 6 - 5 : Postgraduate student enrollment under foreign category

New Entrants (2019) Student Enrolment
M F Total M F Total

BoS Program of Study Country

Master's Programs

Master of Business studies Namibia 1 0 1 1 0 1

Master of Human Resource

China 1 0 1 1 0 1
Management

Commerce
& Business
Management

Master's Programs

Cambodia 0 0 0 3 0 3
China 0 1 0 0 1 1
" MA in Buddhist Studies Myanmar 0 0 0 1 0 1
% (2 Years)-English Nl 0 0 0 | 0 |
<
E Vietnam 0 0 0 0 4 4
= MA in Linguistics — English China 0 1 1 0 1 1
(2 Years) Iraq 0 0 0 0 1 1
Mphil Programs
Linguistics China 0 0 0 0 1 1
Grand Total 2 2 4 7 8 15
M - Male F - Female
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EXAMINATION DATA

The University of Kelaniya holds examinations under three type of programs each
year: internal undergraduate degree programs, external undergraduate degree
programs and postgraduate programs. Out of the exams held during the year 2021,
2,603 students have passed out from internal undergraduate degree programs and
5,596 students have passed out from external undergraduate degree programs.
1,408 students have passed out from postgraduate programs.

UNDERGRADUATE OUTPUT - INTERNAL DEGREE
PROGRAMS 2021

Out of the total graduates passed out in 2021, 888 (33%) graduates belong to the
Faculty of Social Sciences which represents the highest number of graduates from
all the faculties. And the least number is from the Faculty of Computing &
Technology which is 110 (4%). Moreover, 264 (10%) of students have obtained first
class awards, 1,501 (56%) have obtained second class upper divisions, 425 (16%)
have obtained second class lower divisions and 465 (18%) have obtained general
passes. Table 7-2 indicates the graduate output of the internal undergraduate
degree programs as of December 31, 2021.

UNDERGRADUATE OUTPUT - EXTERNAL DEGREE
PROGRAMS

The undergraduate output of the external degree programs in 2021 was 5,596 where
the highest output was from the BA (General) degree program.

Table 7 - 1: Undergraduate output - External degree programs

Number of Graduates

Program of Study
Male Female Total
Bachelor of Arts (General) 509 4541 5050
Bachelor of Business Management (General) 459 85 544
Bachelor of Science (General) 2 2
Grand Total 0 4628 5596
Annual Report & /ecounts 2021
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Table 7 - 2 : Undergraduate output - Internal degree programs
First Class Second Upper Second Lower Pass Total Faculty
Faculty Program of Study Total
M F M F M F M F M F L)
BBMgt (Special) Degree in Accountancy 5 11 12 37 13 12 9 4 3926 4;
BBMgt (Special) Degree in Banking - - 2 12 7 4 - 1 OF ik
BBMgt (Special) Degree in Finance 7 14 8 19 4 - - - JI9EEE. 33
BBMgt (Special) Degree in Human Resources Management 1 9 4 23 3 9 3 2 11 43
BBMgt (Special) Degree in insurance - - 1 2 3 3 2 1 6 6
FCMS 481
BBMgt (Special) Degree in Marketing - 7 12 24 10 10 6 1 28 42
Bcom (Special) Degree 1 7 3 28 9 23 16 10 29 68
Bcom (Special) Degree in Business Technology 2 - 2 8 2 5 4 - 10 13
Bcom (Special) Degree in Entrepreneurship - 1 - 2 1 3 1 2 2 8
Bcom (Special) Degree in Financial Management - 5 7 11 = 10 - 1 Tn el 20
BET Honors Degree - 3 13 11 7 5 17 5 304
FCT 110
BICT Honors Degree 1 2 3 5 6 8 19 3 29 20
BA - 2 9 49 6 15 34 14 49 80
FHU 548
BA (Honors) 9 60 39 241 13 28 20 9 81 338
MBBS - 4 9 35 17 37 28 38 54 114
FMED 209
Bsc in Speech & Hearing Sciences - 8 - 10 1 11 4 7 5 d==36
Bsc Biological Science - 1 7 26 3 13 11 14 21 54
Bsc Environmental Conservation and Management - 4 2 10 4 12 2 1 B o2
Bsc Management and Information Technology - 1 - 1 4 - 3 4 7 6
Bsc Physical Science - 1 3 11 10 23 48 20 Bl 55
Bsc Physics & Electronics - - - - 2 - 8 5 10 5
FSC 419
Bsc Honors Biological Science 2 15 5 28 2 6 - 1 9 50
Bsc Honors Environmental Conservation and Management - 3 - 5 - - - - - 8
Bsc Honors Management and Information Technology 4 2 4 6 1 2 - 1 ©) bl
Bsc Honors Physical Science 4 11 9 22 - 2 - - 13 35
Bsc Honors Software Engineering 3 2 7 6 4 1 6 1 20 10
BA - 5 7 67 4 15 8 8 19505
FSOSC 888
BA (Honors) 4 43 54 580 9 23 25 36 92 682
Total 43 221 222 1279 145 280 274 191 684 1971 2655
M - Male F - Female
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POSTGRADUATE OUTPUT 2021

In 2021, 1,408 students have passed out from postgraduate degree
programs. Out of the total postgraduate output, 1,310 (93%) have
obtained master's degrees of which the Board of Study belongs to
the Faculty of Social Sciences. A summary of the postgraduate
outputisdepictedintables 7-3 and 7-4.

Table 7 - 3 : Postgraduate output by the type of degree program

Type of Degree Program Number of Graduates
Postgraduate Diploma Programs 45
Master's Degree Programs 131
Mphil Degree Programs 24
Doctoral Degree Programs 29

RS Acconnts 2021

Table 7 - 4 : Postgraduate oufput 2021

Bg:::y()f Name of the Program of Study Degree lzrmbe; Grad;::zld
Postgraduate Diploma
PG Diploma in Business Administration PD 1 2 3
FCMS PG Diploma in Commerce PD 1 1 2
PG Diploma in Human Resources PD 0 2 2
PG Diploma in Marketing PD 20 5 25
FSC PG Diploma in Information Technology PD 0 5 5
PG Diploma in Economics PD 1 1 2
PG Diploma in Geography PD 0 2 2
FSOSC
PG Diploma in Philosophy PD 1 1 2
PG Diploma in Political Science PD 1 1 2
Total 25 20 45
Master's Degree Programs
Master of Business Nbus 30 28 58
Master of Business Administration MBA 48 49 97
FCMS Master of Commerce Mcom 10 7 17
Master of Human Resources Management MHRM 9 26 35
Master of Marketing Management MBA 25 18 43
Master of Arts (1 year) MA 45 32 77
FHU
Master of Arts (2 years) MA 48 96 144
Master of Science (1 year) Msc 28 52 80
Fsc Master of Science (2 years) Msc 11 15 26
FSOSC Master of Social Sciences MSSc 2 11 13
Master of Arts MA 261 459 720
Total 517 793 1310
Mphil Degree Programs
FHU Master of Philosophy MPhil 8 6 14
FMED Master of Philosophy Mphil 0 2 2
FSC Master of Philosophy Mphil 1 2 3
FSOSC Master of Philosophy Mphil 5 0 5
Total 14 10 24
Doctoral Degree Programs
Doctor of Business Administration DBA 6 2 8
FEMS Doctor of Philosophy PhD 2 0 2
FHU Doctor of Philosophy PhD 5 6 11
FMED Doctor of Philosophy PhD 0 1 1
FSC Doctor of Philosophy PhD 0 3 3
FSOSC Doctor of Philosophy PhD 2 2 4
Total 15 14 29
Grand Total 571 837 1408
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Table 8 - 3 : All staff - approved cadre, existing staff, and vacancies

Existing Staff Permanent
Staff categor A d 2
gory Salary Scale Iél;l;;):;e Permanent Temporary Cadre
M F Total M F Total Vacancies
Academic U-AC3to U-AC 5 831 322 367 689 142
Staff U-AC 1to U-AC 2 280 63 217 280
U-ACS5 1 1 1 0
Library Staff U-AC4 1 0 1
U-AC 3 12 6 5 11 1
Administrative U-EX3 2 1 1 2 0
& Financial U-EX 2 15 5 9 14 1
Staff U-EX 1 5 2 12 14 1
Other U-EX 3 0 0
Executive U-EX 2 5 2 2 3
Staff U-EX 1 2 1 1 1
My m | : ]
.- T -F;AE ‘T"’ - | : ol 3 — i Medlcal U'MO 2 1 l 1 0
; i 4 Officers U-MO 1 3 1 1 2
i - is X -\.!'_'."_. -. yAayY 3 | Academic U-AS 2 53 21 7 28 3
Lo NS B s gl T AN Support Staff  j_Ag | 517 2
W W e P Tob o ind N U-EX 2 1 1
Y s A A
=¥ P S ey B U-EX 1 3 5 8
Table 8 - 1: All staff U-MN 4 17 9 26
Staff Category Number of Staff Technical Staff U-MN 3 148 1 0 1 38
U-MN 2 0 0
Primary Level 382 U-MN 1 0 0
Secondary Level 428 U-MT 1 47 27 74
Tertiary Level 73 U-MN 4 34 54 88
Senior Level 722
Clerical & U-MN 3 331 11 19 30 A
Total 1605 Allied Staff U-MN 2 4 b 6
QUALIFICATIONS OF THE STAFF EEA o 2
U-PL 3 108 3 111
Table 8 - 2 : Qualifications of the staff . 417
Primary Staff U-PL2 38 20 58 35
Staff Category Number of
Highest Qualification Primary Secondary Tertiary Senior Staff U-PL1 183 30 213
Level Level Level Level Total 1837 878 727 1605 63 217 280 232
Up to GCE O/L 303 303
Passed GCE O/L 71 10 81 * Employee categorization according to the Director General of the Department of Management Services by the letter No.
DMS/1528(s) vol -1 and dated 06.11.2019
Passed GCE A/L 8 331 4 343
Completed Diploma 45 4 1 50 Excluding the approved cadre of U-AC 1 to U-AC 2
Bachelor's Degree/ PG Diploma 37 45 114 196
Master's Degree 5 19 182 206
Mphil or Equivalent Degree 1 70 71
Doctoral Degree 355 355
Total 382 428 73 722 1605
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NATIONAL AND INTERNATIONAL AWARDS
RECEIVED BY THE STAFF - 2021

Dr. A.M.I. Lakshan, Accountancy, Best Reviewer, 12th International
Conference on Business and Information (ICBI) 2021, University of
Kelaniya, Sri Lanka

Prof. U.L.T.P. Gunasekara, Accountancy, Best Reviewer, 12th
International Conference on Business and Information (ICBI) 2021,
University of Kelaniya, Sri Lanka.

Prof. S.S. Weligamage, Finance, Outstanding Reviewers —ICBI 2021, 12th
International Conference on Business and Information (ICBI) 2021,
University of Kelaniya, Sri Lanka

Dr.J.M.B.R. Fernando, Finance, Outstanding Reviewers —ICBI 2021, 12th
International Conference on Business and Information (ICBI) 2021,
University of Kelaniya, Sri Lanka

+  Mr. PS. Morawakage, Finance, Outstanding Reviewers - ICBI 2021, 12th
International Conference on Business and Information (ICBI) 2021,
University of Kelaniya, Sri Lanka

« Mrs. KIM.K.N.S. Kulathunga, Finance, Outstanding Reviewers — ICBI
2021, 12th International Conference on Business and Information (ICBI)
2021, University of Kelaniya, Sri Lanka

« Mrs.W.B.M.D. Basnayake, Finance, Outstanding Reviewers — ICBIl 2021,
12th International Conference on Business and Information (ICBI) 2021,
University of Kelaniya, Sri Lanka

« Dr. L.D.C.J. Liyanage, Finance, Outstanding Reviewers — ICBI 2021, 12th
International Conference on Business and Information (ICBI) 2021,
University of Kelaniya, Sri Lanka

Ms. PW.G. Madhushani, Finance, Bestresearch paper - ICBI 2021 - Topic
of the manuscript: Initial Return of Initial Public Offerings (IPOs) and
IPOs Underpricing, 12th International Conference on Business and
Information (ICBI) 2021, University of Kelaniya, Sri Lanka

« Gangahawatte S.D.S., Kitulwatte [.D.G., Edirisinghe PA.S., Alwis D.,
Jayasinghe J.M.Y.K., Forensic Medicine, Award for the best research
paper of the year at the 20th Annual Scientific Sessions of the College of
Forensic Pathologists of Sri Lanka, Topic: Risk factors, nature and
effects of domestic violence among victims who presented to three
teaching hospitals in Sri Lanka during the COVID 19 pandemic, College
of Forensic Pathologists of Sri Lanka
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Thivaharan Y., Dias N.N.V., Edirisinghe PA.S., Kitulwatte [.D.G., Forensic
Medicine, First place at the competition for best case report at the 20th
Annual Scientific Sessions of the College of Forensic Pathologists of Sri
Lanka, Topic: Death of a child following a superstitious ritual of exorcism,
College of Forensic Pathologists of Sri Lanka

Uthulingam T., Edirisinghe P.A.S., Wijewardena H.P.,, Thivaharan Y.,
Jayasundara M.M.S., Borukgama N., Kulathunga D.L., Alwis D.N., Samudini
G.D.P, Kitulwatte I.D.G., Forensic Medicine, Second place at the competition
for best research paper of the year, at the 20th Annual Scientific Sessions of
the College of Forensic Pathologists of Sri Lanka, Topic: A study on victims of
Intimate partner violence reported to Colombo North Teaching Hospital, Sri
Lanka during 2019-2021 (Pre and during COVID 19 pandemic), College of
Forensic Pathologists of Sri Lanka

Thivaharan Y., Kitulwatte |.D.G., Forensic Medicine, Second place at the
competition for best case report at the 20th Annual Scientific Sessions of the
College of Forensic Pathologists of Sri Lanka, Topic: Death of a woman
following an unsuccessful endoscopic retrograde cholangiopancreatography
(ERCP) procedure for common bile duct calculi., College of Forensic
Pathologists of SriLanka

Dr. E.PD.S. Ediriweera, Health Data Science Unit, Best oral presentation
award, Best oral presentation award at the Sri Lanka College of Internal
Medicine, 4th Annual Congress, 24th — 25th February 2021, Sri Lanka College
of Internal Medicine

Dr. E.PD.S. Ediriweera, Health Data Science Unit, 2nd place in the RCPsych
Trainee researcher of the year - Junior/Trainee of the year poster prize
(Education & Training category), Royale College of Psychiatrists

Dr. E.PD.S. Ediriweera, Health Data Science Unit, Best oral presentation
award, at the Sri Lanka College of Internal Medicine, 4th Annual Congress,
24th —25th February, 2021, Sri Lanka

Madunil Anuk Niriella, Dileepa Senajith Ediriweera, Anuradhani Kasturiratne,
Shamila Thivanshi De Silva, Anuradha Supun Dassanayaka, Arjuna
Priyadarshin De Silva, Norihiro Kato, Arunasalam Pathmeswaran, Ananda
Rajitha Wickramasinghe, Hithanadura Janaka de Silva, Medicine, Best
Research Paper at the annual academic sessions (SIMCON 2020) of the Sri
Lanka College of Internal Medicine for authorship of oral presentation -
Outcomes of NAFLD and MAFLD: Results from a community-based,
prospective cohort study

Thulani U.B.; Mettananda K.C.D.; Warnakulasuriya D.T.D.; Peiris T.S.G.;
Kasthurirathna K.T.A.A.; Ranawaka U.K.; Chakrewarthy S.; Kurukulasooriya
S.A.F; Niriella M.A.; de Silva S.T.; Pathmeswaran A.P; Kato N.; de Silva H.J,
Medicine, EM Wijerama award for the best presentation - Ceylon Collage of
Physicians Annual Conference 2020,Topic: Validation of the World Health
Organization/International Society of Hypertension (WHO/ISH)
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cardiovascular risk predictions in Sri Lankans based on findings from a
prospective cohort study, Ceylon College of Physicians, SriLanka

« Motha M.B.C., Palihawadana T.S., Jayasinghe C., Ranawaka U.K.,,
Medicine, J B Peiris Award for best presentation in Neurology - Ceylon
College of Physicians Annual Conference 2020, Research award for
Research paper 'Seizure patterns, preconception care and pregnancy
outcomes in women with epilepsy in a tertiary care hospital.', Ceylon
College of Physicians, Sri Lanka

+ Bandara K.M.T., Pathmeswaran A., Ranawaka U.K., Medicine, National
Stroke Association of Sri Lanka Award for best research presentation on
Stroke, Topic: Usefulness of Timed Up and Go test, Berg Balance Scale
and Six Minute Walk Test as Fall Risk Predictors in Post Stroke Adults
Attending Rehabilitation Hospital, Ragama, Ceylon College of
Physicians, Sri Lanka

« DeSilvaS.T,, Ediriweera D., Niriella M.A., Kasturiratne A., Pathmeswaran
A., Kato N., Wickramasinghe A.R., de Silva H.J., Medicine, Sir Nicholas
Attygalle Award at SLMA 134th Anniversary International Medical
Congress 2021 for authorship of oral presentation, Topic: Prevalence,
predictors, and outcome of chronic kidney disease in a cohort of aging,
urban adult SriLankan, SLMA, SriLanka

+ DeSilvaS.T., Ediriweera D., Niriella M.A., Kasturiratne A., Pathmeswaran
A., Kato N., Wickramasinghe A.R., de Silva H.J., Medicine, S
Ramachandran Award for the best scientific communication in
Nephrology at SLMA 134th Anniversary International Medical Congress
2021 for authorship of oral presentation, Topic: Prevalence, predictors,
and outcome of chronic kidney disease in a cohort of aging, urban adult
SriLankan, SLMA, SriLanka

* Professor S.F. Jayamanne, Medicine, NRC Merit Award, National
Research Council, SriLanka

+ Kalpani A.G.S., Mohamed F.,, Hough J.E., De Silva D.N., Chandrasena
WMHNM., Jayamanne SF., Medicine, Dr. E.M. Wijerama Award, For the
best oral presentation at the SLMA 133rd Anniversary International
Virtual Medical Congress, Sri Lanka Medical Association, Sri Lanka

*  Prof A.P. Premawardhena, Medicine, T.S. Varugunam Oration - Internal
Medicine Anniversary sessions, Sri Lanka College of Internal Medicine,
2021, SriLanka

*  Prof. Menaka Hapugoda, Molecular Medicine Unit, SUSRED award
(Support Scheme for Supervision of Research Degrees), For supervision
of aPhD degree, National Science Foundation of Sri Lanka

*  Prof. Aresha Manamperi, Molecular Medicine Unit, Dr. C. Palasuntheram
Prize for best research, Topic: Clinical features & epidemiology of
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hantavirus hemorrhagic fever with renal syndrome (HFRS) in Sri Lanka., Sri
Lanka College of Microbiologists, Sri Lanka

Prof. Aresha Manamperi, Molecular Medicine Unit, First Prize for Oral
presentations category, For the research paper titled “Clinical features &
epidemiology of hantavirus hemorrhagic fever with renal syndrome (HFRS) in
SriLanka, SriLanka College of Microbiologists, Sri Lanka

Prof. N.R. De Silva, Prof. PA.D.H.N. Gunathilaka, Parasitology, NRC Merit
Award, Merit Award for Scientific Publications published in the year 2018,
National Research Council, Sri Lanka

K.G.H. Silva, B.A.G.G. Mahendra, D. Ediriweera, J. Hewavisenthi, Pathology,
Best research abstract, Annual academic sessions 2021, For abstract titled
'‘Comparison of expression of ER, PR and p53 immunohistochemical stains
between endometrial curetting / biopsy and resected endometrial carcinoma
specimens', College of Pathologist SriLanka

K.G.H. Silva, B.A.G.G. Mahendra, D. Ediriweera, J. Hewavisenthi, Pathology,
Best research paper at the annual academic sessions of CPSL October 2021,
College of pathologists of Sri Lanka (CPSL

Research group: Dr. R.P. Wanigatunge Dr. H.M. Herath Ms. C.D.V. Chithrasena
(Student), Plant & Molecular Biology, Best Research Presentation Award, at
the 40th Annual Sessions of the Institute of Biology 2020 (Sessions of
Microbiology & Chemical Biology), Institute of Biology Sri Lanka

Dr. A.A.L.K. Athauda, Public Health, School of Population Health Doctoral
Publication Excellence prize, School of Population Health Doctoral
Publication Excellence prize, University of Auckland, New Zealand

Prof. C.S.K. Rajapakse, Chemistry, SUSRED (Support Scheme for Supervision
of Research Degrees) award for supervision of a MPhil student, NSF, Sri
Lanka

Ms. T. Mahalingam, Prof. C.S.K. Rajapakse Mr. K.P. Somachandra, Plant &
Molecular Biology, SUSRED (Support Scheme for Supervision of Research
Degrees), NSF- Sri Lanka

Prof. R.K. Sriyani Dias, Zoology and Environmental Management, SUSRED
(Support Scheme for Supervision of Research Degrees) award for the
Supervision of a PhD student, National Science Foundation of Sri Lanka

D.S. Kodithuwakku, Social Statistics, Best Research Award - Postgraduate
Stream, Annual Best Research Award conducted by the Institute of Applied
Statistics in Sri Lanka, Institute of Applied Statistics.

V20 wal Repont & recounts 2021 88



PRESIDENTIAL AWARDS VICE-CHANCELLOR AWARDS FOR RESEARCH AND
INNOVATION

Faculty of Medicine

Emeritus Professors in the University of Kelaniya — 2021

Cadre Chair Senior Prof. N. R. de Silva, Department of
Parasitology
Vidyajothi Prof. H. A. de Silva, Department of Pharmacology
Vidyajothi Prof. H. J. de Silva, Department of Medicine
Prof. K. T. A. A. Kasturiratne, Department of Public Health
Prof. A. Pathmeswaran, Department of Public Health
Prof. N. K. Gunawardena, Department of Parasitology
Prof. T. G. A. N. Chandrasena, Department of Parasitology
Prof. B. A. H.R. Premaratna, Department of Medicine
Prof. N. M. Devanarayana, Department of Physiology
Dr.S. F. Jayamanne, Department of Medicine
Prof. D.S. G. Mettananda, Department of Paediatrics
Prof. G. P.G. M. D. Hapugoda, Molecular Medicine Unit
Prof. P.A. D.H. N. Gunathilaka, Department of Parasitology
Prof. A. A.P.S. Manamperi, Molecular Medicine Unit

*  Prof.Y.I.N.S. Gunawardene, Molecular Medicine Unit
Prof. U. K. Ranawaka, Department of Medicine
Dr.E.P.D.S. Ediriweera, Health Data Science Unit

* Dr.G.P.S.Gunaratna, Department of Parasitology
Prof. A. P.de Silva, Department of Medicine

Prof. Rohana Luxman Piyadasa

Prof. D.D.S. Kulatunga

Prof. Jagath Weerasinghe

Prof. (Mrs.) Sujatha Senadeera Salgado
Prof. P.S. Wijesinghe

Medals for the Vice Chancellor's Award for bringing honor to the University
by winning prestigious national or international awards in 2021

Prof. H. J. de Silva, Department of Medicine

Prof.N. R. de Silva, Department of Parasitology
* Prof.H.Adesilva, Department of Pharmacology

Prof. A. Pathmeswaran, Department of Public Health

Prof. (Mrs.) M. D. Amarasinghe, Department of Plant & Molecular Biology
+  Prof. B.A.H.R. Premaratna, Department of Medicine
«  Prof. A.P.de Silva, Department of Medicine

Prof. A.A.PS. Manamperi, Molecular Medicine Unit
*  Prof.N.K.Gunawardena, Department of Parasitology

Prof. Y.I.N.S Gunawardene, Molecular Medicine Unit

Prof. M. M. M. Najim, Department of Zoology & Environmental Management
«  Prof.(Mrs.) N. M. Devanarayana, Department of Physiology
«  Prof. U.K. Ranawaka, Department of Medicine

+  Prof. (Mrs.) T.G.A.N. Chandrasena, Department of Parasitology
# Faculty of Science «  Prof. (Mrs.) K. T. A. A. Kasturiratne, Department of Public Health
; «  Prof.(Mrs.) M. D. Hapugoda, Molecular Medicine Unit
Prof.D.S. G. Mettananda, Department of Pediatrics
Prof. PA.D.H.N. Gunathilaka - ABSENT, Department of Parasitology
Prof. S. F. Jayamanne, Department of Medicine
+  Dr.PG. Wijayarathna, Department of Software Engineering
« Dr. (Mrs.) M.R.K.N. Yatigammana, Department of Commerce & Financial
Management
«  Dr.(Mrs.) W.P. T. Hansameenu, Department of Mathematics
Dr.E.P.D.S. Ediriweera, Department of Medical Education
Dr. PW. Samarasekere, Department of Applied Computing
«  Dr.(Miss) K.H.W.L. De Silva, Department of Plant & Molecular Biology
« Dr.(Mrs.) G. Gunarathna, Department of Parasitology

« N

Prof. U. S. Amarasinghe, Department of
Zoology & Environmental Management

Prof. M. M. M. Najim, Department of Zoology &
Environmental Management
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The Outstanding Early Career Researchers

Miss. S. |. Wijenayake, Faculty of Commerce and Management Studies A
Dr. A. K. A. B. Baminiwatta, 1st Place, Faculty of Medicine

Prof. P.A.D. H. N. Gunatilake, 2nd Place, Faculty of Medicine

Dr. (Mrs.) A. A. L. K. Athauda, Merit Award, Faculty of Medicine

Dr. (Mrs.) R. P.Wanigatunge, 1st Place, Faculty of Science

Dr. (Mrs.) D.A.D. A. Daranagama, 2nd Place, Faculty of Science

Mr. T. D. Kodituwakku, Merit Award, Faculty of Science

The Outstanding Senior Researchers

B (Mresr M PN onsiR o ce; Faculty of/Commertagsagis
Management Studies

Dr. A. M. |. Lakshan, 2nd Place, Faculty of Commerce and Management
Studies

Prof.D.S. G. Mettananda, 1st Place, Faculty of Medicine
Dr.E.P.D.S. Ediriweera, 2nd Place, Faculty of Medicine

Prof.H. T. C.S. Abeysena, Merit Award, Faculty of Medicine

Prof. U. K. Ranawaka, Merit Award, Faculty of Medicine

Prof. (Mrs.) K. C. D. Mettananda, Merit Award, Faculty of Medicine
Dr. (Mrs.) A. Hapangama, Merit Award, Faculty of Medicine

Prof. (Mrs.) B.T.S. D. P Kannangara, 1st Place, Faculty of Science
Prof. (Mrs.) W. M. D. N. Wijeyaratne, 2nd Place, Faculty of Science
Prof. (Mrs.) P. A. Paranagama, Merit Award, Faculty of Science
Senior Prof. N. A. K. P. J. Seneviratne, Merit Award, Faculty of Science
Prof. (Mrs.) B. M. Jayawardena, Merit Award, Faculty of Science
Prof. L. B.D. R. P. Wijesundera, Merit Award, Faculty of Science

Prof. M. M. M. Najim, Merit Award, Faculty of Science

Prof. (Mrs.) L. D. Amarasinghe, Merit Award, Faculty of Science

Prof. G. A.S. M. Ganehiarachchi, Merit Award, Faculty of Science
Prof. (Miss) N. Jayathilaka, Merit Award, Faculty of Science

Prof. (Mrs.) D. S. M. de Silva, Merit Award, Faculty of Science

Prof. (Mrs.) P.A.S. R. Wickramarachchi, Merit Award, Faculty of Science
Prof. R. M. C. S. Ratnayake, Merit Award, Faculty of Science

Prof. (Mrs.) K. P.R. N Attanayake, Merit Award, Faculty of Science
Prof. (Miss.) C.S. K. Rajapakse, Merit Award, Faculty of Science

Dr. M. P. Deeyamulla, Merit Award, Faculty of Science

Dr. (Mrs.) I. V. N. Rathnayake, Merit Award, Faculty of Science

Dr. K. M. D. C. Jayathilaka, Merit Award, Faculty of Science

Mrs. A. M. C. H. Attanayake, Merit Award, Faculty of Science

Dr. (Mrs.) N. V. Chandrasekara, Merit Award, Faculty of Science

Dr. (Miss.) K. H. W. L. de Silva, Merit Award, Faculty of Science
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The Most Outstanding Recipient of the External
Research Grants

« Dr. (Miss) A.P. Halmillawewa, Department of
Microbiology

The Researcher with the Most Publications from
Internal Research Grants

« Senior Prof. N.A.K.PJ. Senevirathna, Department of
Chemistry

The Researcher with the Highest Number of
Publications in indexed Journals

« Dr.E.PD.S. Ediriweera, Health Data Science Unit
« Prof. (Mrs.) L.D. Amarasinghe, Department of
Zoology and Environmental Management

The Best Innovators/ Inventors in the University

« Senior Prof. N.A.K.PJ. Seneviratne, Department of
Chemistry
+  Prof. (Miss) N. Jayathilaka, Department of Chemistry

The most successful directors of the
center/unit/committee of the University in 2021

«  Prof. (Mrs.) K. L. K. N. C. Premawardhena, Centre for
International Affairs

+  Prof.(Mrs.) C.D.S. Wettewe, Career Guidance Unit

« Dr. (Mrs.) M.R.K.N. Yatigammana, National E-
Learning Resource Centre (NELRC)

The best Promoter of International Relations in the
University

« Dr. (Mrs.) D.T.D. Warnakulasooriya, Department of
Physiology

The academics with the most outstanding creative
production in the University

*  Prof. S.N.J.K. Mendis

+ Dr.U.P.Liyanage

*  Mrs.G.A.M. Karunarathna
* Dr.S.S. Withana
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RESEARCH & PUBLICATIONS OUTPUT 2021

Table 9 - 1: Research & Publications output of the Academic Staff

1 | Publications in refereed indexed journals including e-journals 6 114
2 | Publications in refereed non-indexed journals including e-journals 12 16
3.1 Papers published as full papers 26 20
3 | Conference Proceedings
FSC 3.2 Abstract publications 109 13
4 | Book Chapters published 1 8
5 Books/Textbooks published in the 5.1 By a publisher : :
area of expertise 5.2 By an author - -
1 | Publications in refereed indexed journals including e-journals 1 6
2 | Publications in refereed non-indexed journals including e-journals 12 13
3.1 Papers published as full papers 7 3
3 | Conference Proceedings
FSOSC 3.2 Abstract publications 3 4
4 | Book Chapters published 5 -
5 Books/Textbooks published in the 5.1 By a publisher 4 1
area of expertise 5.2 By an author 1 -
1 | Publications in refereed indexed journals including e-journals - 1
2 | Publications in refereed non-indexed journals including e-journals - 1
3.1 Papers published as full papers - -
. 3 | Conference Proceedings
Library 3.2 Abstract publications 10 -
4 | Book Chapters published - -
5 Books/Textbooks published in the 5.1 By a publisher : :
area of expertise 5.2 By an author - -

RESEARCH SYMPOSIA HELD DURING THE YEAR 2021

Table 9 - 2: Research symposiums held during the year

7

Faculty No. Description

01 7" HRM Student Research Symposium 2020, 12" March 2021

02 9" Students' Research Symposium, 21" December 2020

03 12" International Conference on Business & Information (ICBI) 2021, 11" November 2021

(Hybrid model)
FCMS 04 7" International Conference for Accounting Researchers and Educators (ICARE) 2021, 09"
December 2021
05 12" International Conference on Business & Information (ICBI) 2021, 11" November 2021
(Hybrid mode)

06 4" International Conference on Advanced Marketing (ICAM), 11" September 2021

07 4" International Conference on Advances in Technology and Computing (ICATC) 2021, 18"-
FCT 19" December 2021 (Virtual Conference)

08 FCT-Faculty Research Symposium 2021, 18" December 2021 (Virtual event)

09 International Buddhist Conference on Pali and Buddhist Studies, 23" March 2021

FHU 10 International Conference on Humanities (ICH) 2020/2021, 29" and 30" of July 2021

11 4" Undergraduate Research Symposium (HUG) 2021, 20" January 2022 (Virtual event)

Number
Faculty Publication Category
Local | Foreign
Publications in refereed indexed journals including e-journals - 24
Publications in refereed non-indexed journals including e-journals 78 2
3.1 Papers published as full papers 22 30
Conference Proceedings —

FCMS 3.2 Abstract publications 33 6
Book Chapters published 17 2
Books/Textbooks published in the 5.1 By a publisher - 2
area of expertise 5.2 By an author - -
Publications in refereed indexed journals including e-journals - 12
Publications in refereed non-indexed journals including e-journals 1 7

3.1 Papers published as full papers 16 4
Conference Proceedings —

FCT 3.2 Abstract publications 1 3
Book Chapters published - 3
Books/Textbooks published in the 5.1 By a publisher 1 -
area of expertise 5.2 By an author - -
Publications in refereed indexed journals including e-journals - 1
Publications in refereed non-indexed journals including e-journals 1 -

3.1 Papers published as full papers 1 2
Conference Proceedings —

FHU 3.2 Abstract publications 1 -
Book Chapters published - 1
Books/Textbooks published in the 5.1 By a publisher - -
area of expertise 5.2 By an author 3 -
Publications in refereed indexed journals including e-journals 9 134
Publications in refereed non-indexed journals including e-journals 25 7

3.1 Papers published as full papers 1 -
Conference Proceedings —

FMED 3.2 Abstract publications 35 18
Book Chapters published 2 -
Books/Textbooks published in the 5.1 By a publisher - -
area of expertise 5.2 By an author - 1
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12 30" Anniversary International Academic Sessions of the Faculty of Medicine, 30" October

FMED 2021

FSC 13 International Conference on Applied and Pure Sciences (ICAPS), 2021, 29" October 2021
14 National Undergraduate Conference on Social Sciences, NUCSS 2021, 30" April 2021

FSOSC 15 4" International Conference on Library and Information Management (ICLIM) — 2021, 26"

November 2021

” Funded by the Research council of the University of Kelaniya
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PATENTS - 2021

Table 9 - 3: List of patents

] WELFARE
— FACILITIES OF THE

Chemistry Cinnamon-based dietary supplements, and the process of preparation thereof Field
Chemistry A method for improving the shelf life of food products using coconut paring Field
residue extract (cpre)

Physics & Method and system for addressable data communication using radio frequency (rf) Field
Electronics communication S C H 0 LA RS H I PS
National
A formulation containing phenolic antioxidants in coconut oil or soy oil for Field Mah ap ola and Bursar, Y

Chemistry

superior bioavailability. Table 10 - 1: Provision of Mahapola & Bursary

A method for extending the oxidative and microbial shelf life of unsaturated oils, Year of No. of Students Received

Chemistry egg-based foods and baked cakes by application of thermostable phenolic Field Faculty Intake Year of Study Mahapola Bursary

antioxidants extracted from rice (Oryza sativa) bran.
) - - . — ) ) 2019/2020 1 - 556
A method for improving the shelf life and oxidative stability of edible oils, meat,
Chemistry egg-based foods, and vegetable and preserving the color of fruit or vegetable Field FCMS 2018/2019 2 510 58
juices using coconut paring residue extract (CPRE) 2017/2018 3 496 48
Chemistry/ 2016/2017 4 429 100

Physics .& Switching arc extinguishing method using multiple series contacts Field Total 1435 762

Electronics
2019/2020 1 - 125
Chemistry/

Physics & Vacuum manifold for the column- based solid- phase extraction. Field FCT 2018/2019 2 135 8
Electronics 2017/2018 3 120 16
Physics and Method for addressable data communication, processing, control, and 2016/2017 4 97 32
Electronics visualization based on RF wireless communication with or without an Internet Field Total 352 181

"
compeeTom 2019/2020 1 i 1046
Zoology & . FHU & 2018/2019 2 999 103
Environmental Personal Protective Helmet Field
Management FSOSC 2017/2018 3 1053 154
2016/2017 4 848 172
Total 2900 1475
SCIENCE & TECHNOLOGY OUTPUT 2021 201072020 : : 108
2018/2019 2 91 11
Table 9 - 4: Science & Technology output 2017/2018 3 83 11
FMED

Department Name of the Science and Technology Development Output Status Aoy . % 2
2015/2016 5 52 22
Development of new product/processes 2014/2015 5 57 12
Family Medicine COVID-19 APP Developed Total 357 190
Molecular Sterile Insect Technology (SIT) for controlling dengue vector mosquitoes in the 2019/2020 1 - 304

Medicine Unit field Developed
cdieme i © rse 2018/2019 2 228 158
Design Prototypes developed 2017/2018 3 192 170
Surgery Continuous monitoring of expired CO2 during fiber optic intubation Developed 2016/2017 4 38 50
Total 508 684

Grand Total
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Other Scholarships

Table 10 - 2: Provision of other scholarships

Number of
Faculty Department Name of the Scholarship Students
Received
1 FCMS Commerce and Lapton Donati 5
e Financial Management APIORL RO
FCMS Finance Department Scholarship for the undergraduates 14 P ‘ I I ‘ Es
FHU Modern Languages MEXT - Japanese Scholarship 4
FHU Modern Languages International Chinese Teacher Scholarship 17
FHU Modern Languages KOICA multi-country program for Korean 4
Language and International Development for
Intermediate Learners
FHU Modern Languages The 2nd KF-JNU-JDC Intensive Korean Language 1
Program for Next Generation Educators
FHU Modern Languages Erasmus - France 1
FHU Modern Languages German Academic Exchange 5
FHU Modern Languages DAAD 5
L : FHU Modern Languages German Cultural Institute - Colombo 22
oy FHU Modern Languages Goethe Institute - Munich 6
d FHU WCC & CC MWI Aachen Scholarship for MPhil 3
e FSOSC Geography ERASMUS PLUS Merging Voices, International 2 UN IVE RSITY COM PLIAN CE WITH TH E RI GHT TO

Mobility Program for Academic and Knowledge
Transfer Project - 2022/23

INFORMATION ACT NO 12 OF 2016

Details of information issued

i B

-.,ﬂ#w 14
The Management of the University of Kelaniya recognized the importance of compliance
with the provisions of the Right to Information Act No. 12 of 2016 of the Government. It
also complied with the principle of transparency of university decisions. Therefore, the
University of Kelaniya has released all information related to several matters requested
by citizens of Sri Lanka in 2021. The details of such requests and the university's issuance
of information are stated below (Table 11-1).

Table 11 - 1: Issuance of information as per the Right to Information act
Name of the Date the
S/N person who Date of information Nature of information
requested request was

information delivered
1 Ven. L. 2021.04.09 2021.04.20 Information of interview for the Post of Lecturer
Ariyadamma Thero (Probationary), Senior Lecturer Gr. II/I and Lecturer
(Unconfirmed) of the Department of Pali and Buddhist
Studies, Faculty of Humanities held on 31.03.2021
and 07.04.2021
2 Ven. D. 2021.04.19 2021.04.20 Information of interview for the Post of Lecturer
Chandrarathana (Unconfirmed) of the Department of Pali and Buddhist
Thero Studies, Faculty of Humanities held on 31.03.2021
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3 Ven. S. Asoka 2021.04.09 2021.04.20 Information of interview for the Post of Lecturer
Nanda Thero (Probationary) of the Department of Pali and Buddhist
Studies held on 07.04.2021

4 Mr. L.A.D. Samith 2021.04.15 2021.04.29 Information of interview for the Post of Lecturer
Kalhara (Probationary) of the Department of Pali and Buddhist
Studies held on 07.04.2021

5 Ms. K. V.J. 2021.08.16 2021.08.30 Information of interview for the Post of Lecturer of
Koshalee the Department of Archaeology held on 22.03.2021

6 Ms. W.W.R.P. 2021.04.01 2021.08.30 Information of interview for the Post of Lecturer of
Fernando the Department of Archaeology held on 30.03.2021

7 Ms. P.M. 2021.05.13  2021.08.30 Information of interview for the Post of Lecturer
Embuldeniya (Probationary), Senior Lecturer Gr. II/T and Lecturer

(Unconfirmed) of the Department of Archaeology,
Faculty of Social Sciences

8 Mr. W.G.S. V. 2021.10.09 2021.10.11 Information of the members of the Board of Studies of
Kumara the Department of Pali and Buddhist Studies

9 Prof. P. Narangoda 2021.10.18 2021.10.27 Information regarding Mr. Udagedara Sudath Senerath
as a PhD Candidate in the Faculty of Graduate Studies

10  Dr. A.M.N. 2021.11.24 2021.11.24 Composition of the Academic staff members for the
Chaminda three newly established departments of the Faculty
Social Sciences
11 Mr. R M. 2021.11.09 2021.11.29 Information from his personal File — Recommendation
Amarathunga of the Selection Committee and the letter of calling for
Interview
12 Mr. A.Y.O. 2021.10.27 2021.12.21 Information of interview for the Post of Temporary
Lakshitha Lecturer of the Department of Fine Arts held on
06.10.2021
13 Mr. HR.P. Lal 2021.10.26  2021.12.21 Information of interview for the Post of Temporary
Lecturer of the Department of Fine Arts held on
06.10.2021
14 Prof. G.J.S. 2021.12.16  2021.12.22 Information regarding the Department of Linguistics
Wijesekara Approved Cadre, letter issued by Head of the

Department of Linguistics (12.09.2027), Letter issued
by DR/AE (29.11.2017)

15  Prof. G.J.S. 2021.12.28 2022.01.03 Information regarding the Department of Linguistics
Wijesekara Advertisement for the Post of Emeritus Professor
2017, Letter issued by Head of the Department of
Linguistics (2017.11.10)

16 Ms. S.D. 2021.12.28 2022.02.01 Information regarding her marks and supportive
Edirisinghe documents for the Professor interview held on
17.12.2021
Total no of requestreceived during year 2021 - 16
Total no of occasions of not providing information during the year 2021 - 00
Accordingly, total No. of responses during the year 2021 - 16
Total responses as a percentage of requests - 100%
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QUALITY ASSURANCE

The Quality Assurance activities of the University are
facilitated by the Centre for Quality Assurance (CQA)
established under UGC Circular 2019/09. The CQA is
headed by a director, who is guided by the Senate
Standing Committee on Quality Assurance (SSC-QA).
Faculty Quality Assurance Cells (FQACs) are established
in all six faculties. In 2021, in addition to the six FQACs
two Internal Quality Assurance Cells (IQACs) were
established in the administrative divisions and Center for

Distance and Continuing Education.

The Senate Standing Committee on Quality Assurance
meets regularly and monitors the progress of the six
FAQCs, and the two IQACs report to the SSC-QA and
share best practices, which facilitate enhancing the

internalization of practice.




External Reviews:

The Institutional Review of the University was completed with
the site visit evaluation held in December 2021.

« Self-Evaluation Reports (SERs) of four External Degree
Programs (EDPs), BA, BCom, BBMgt and BSc (Physiotherapy),
were submitted for the Program Review.

Preparation of policy documents and guidelines:

* Policy on Grievance Redress

* Policyon Student Engagementin QA Activities
« StudentCharter

» Policyon Curriculum Design and Development

Workshops and awareness programs:

In 2021 CQA facilitated workshops and training sessions on several
# aspects:

. * Curriculum Design and Development
~+ PeerObservation
* Human Resource Management
* Online Assessment
« Preparation of digital teaching material

Other QA- related activities

+  The Faculty of Commerce and Management Studies introduced
the 'Teaching Excellence Award' for teacher appraisal.

* The Faculty of Commerce and Management Studies and Faculty
of Science have adopted a system for recording the workload of
academic staff methodically and developed a Human Resource
Plan.

« The Faculty of Commerce and Management Studies and the
Faculty of Science obtained the approval to introduce fallback
awards.

« ThelQAC of Administrative Divisions have initiated developing a
'Manual of Procedures' for the Administrative Divisions of the
University.
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COVID-18
CORONAVIRUS

DISEASE

Risk Management - COVID 19

The COVID-19 pandemic imposed enormous challenges on the higher education system
in Sri Lanka. By adopting national guidelines issued by the Ministry of Health and the
University Grants Commission, the University of Kelaniya faced the pandemic
successfully, and continued with educational programs for its students, inclusive of online
or physical teaching-learning activities, examinations, and research throughout the year
2021.

Specific measures adopted at the University of Kelaniya

The University of Kelaniya initiated a covid-specific control program within its premises
aligned with the national program.

Establishing a high-powered Covid response committee for the reduction of
risk

This committee is chaired by Professor Rajitha Wickramasinghe, Professor of Public
Health, Faculty of Medicine, and coordinated by Dr. Chinthaka Rathnayake, Chief Medical
Officer (CMO). The Vice-Chancellor, Senior Professor Nilanthi de Silva, regularly
participated in the meetings of this committee.

The committee comprises of 65 members including seven Deans of the Faculties,
Registrar, Bursar, Librarian, Public Health Inspector, 2 members (academic and non-
academic) from each faculty, Directors, Union leaders, Head of the Dept of Medical
Microbiology, Faculty of Medicine, Professor of Medical Microbiology, and the Medical
Officer of Health (MOH) at Kelaniya.

Committee meetings are conducted fortnightly.

The mandate of the committee is to plan, prepare guidelines, implement, monitor,
evaluate and review the situation and take timely action.

Annual Report & ecounts 2021




Educational activities

Educational activities were conducted
online for most students in order to
minimize the risk of spreading Covid.
However, examinations and practical
classes were conducted physically on-
site where necessary, adhering to health
requirements to ensure the minimum
gathering and adopting the “bio-bubble”
approach following proper risk
assessment.

Medical Centre

All categories of health staff were
trained on procedures to be followed in
their relevant fields, in the Microbiology
and Family Medicine Departments of
the Faculty of Medicine, the Colombo
North Teaching Hospital and the Office
of the MOH/Kelaniya.

Funds
Additional funds were made available for the following control measures:
a) Purchase of personal protective equipment (PPE), including face
masks

b) Sanitizers, disinfectants for lecture halls, hostels, classrooms, vehicles
(ambulance transporting positive cases, contacts)

c) Posters (displayed in all units)

d) Adequate foot operated hand washing areas

e) Infrared thermometers for all the entrance points

f) Improved facilities at the University Medical Centre
Rapid Antigen Test

Rapid Antigen Tests for SARS CoV-2 were conducted free of charge for students and
staff, at the University Medical Centre and in the laboratories of the Medical
Microbiology Department of the Faculty of Medicine.
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RT-PCR

RT-PCR for SARS CoV-2 tests were
conducted free of charge in the
laboratories of the Medical Microbiology
Department of the Faculty of Medicine
for the university community as well as
members of the public who were tested
as required by the Ministry of Health.

Integrated Home-Based Care Centre

Covitriage SL App

Covitriage SL App for covid positive
patients was developed by a team of
academics from the Faculties of
Medicine and Science, along with
officials from the Ministry of Health, for
assessment of risk and identification of
a medical managementplan.

Integrated Home-Based Care Centre (IHBCC) at UOK — the University guest house
was converted to a well-equipped home quarantine center for covid positive

patients among the university staff.

Mass Vaccination

Several vaccination programs were conducted on-site in Dalugama and Kelaniya for

staff and students:
« Sinopharm1st&2nd dose

664 staff members were vaccinated on 14 May and 11 June 2021
1164 students were vaccinated in Octoberand November 2021

« Pfizer Booster dose:

930 members of staff/students/community were vaccinated in December

2021

Welfare facilities

The following welfare facilities were provided for all covid-positive staff members:
interest-free loan scheme, traveling allowance (up to Rs 15,000), special quarantine

leave.
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Educational programs

Educational programs to create awareness among the community were telecast on
a number of TV channels, radio channels, social media, and newspapers, with the
participation of the Vice-Chancellor, Chief Medical Officer, Media Director and
Professors/senior lecturers at Medical Faculty/other faculties and students.

COVID-19 Statistics

Over the period August - December 2021, the Medical Centre has maintained
records of covid testing and the number of positive cases among staff and students.
A weekly PHI inspection report on the maintenance of hand washing facilities and
sanitizers was also compiled. The report is presented weekly (supplemented by a
monthly summary) to the Vice-Chancellor, the Chairperson of the covid response
committee and copied to the Registrar, Deans, Bursar, Librarian & other covid
committee members.

The summary report for Aug-—Dec 2021 follows.

Table 11 - 2: COVID- 19 statistics

Time period

No of tests done
Covid 19 Positive
cases - Staff
Covid 19 Positive
cases - Students
No of Covid - 19
Positive cases reported
from outside tests
(Staff only)

Total number of
Covid- 19 positive

[\
\S}
—_
W
N9}
3

August From 04.08.2021
to 31.08.2021

September From 01.09.2021
t0 28.09.2021

October From 29.09.2021
t0 31.10.2021

November From 01.11.2021
to 28.11.2021

December From 29.11.2021
t0 02.01.2022

Total From 04.08.2021
to 02.01.2022
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GREEN PRACTICES

he Centre for Sustainability

Solutions demonstrates the

principle of sustainability both in
theory and in practice through
understanding non-sustainable
practices of the University and taking
action to reduce the impact of such
practices by coordinating and organizing
various activities. As the first step, the
university adopted a policy on the
environment; this policy binds all
individuals in the university to exercise
due care to avoid negative
environmental impacts of their own
activities. The University Environmental
Policy emphasizes that caring for the
environment is the bounded duty of any
individual in the university premises that
uses, or otherwise carries out an activity
that has an impact on the resources of
the environment. There are numerous
actions and activities carried out by the
CSS annually under different aspects of
sustainability. energy management,
water management, biodiversity
management, waste management,
sustainability leadership and education,
social wellbeing etc., to make the
university move forward towards
sustainability.
CSS is involved in issuing a university
circular on energy management which
includes a set of guidelines in setting
temperatures of A/C limiting to 020C
lower than the room temperature,
limiting A/C on-off time to 10.30 am to
3.30 pm, pre-assessment of office
conditions before installing A/Cs. Apart
from that, the implementation of the
energy audit recommendations such as
the following have been carried out:
installation of energy sub-meters,
proper arrangement of lighting to avoid
use of extra bulbs, making a decision on
purchasing inverter type air-
conditioners, LED bulbs/lights to phase
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out tube lights and incandescent bulbs
toincrease energy efficiency.

The CSS has proposed to implement
green the building concept in upcoming
buildings to be more energy-efficient;
solar roofs, using only LED lights and
enhance natural lighting where possible
to illuminate the interior, uses
natural/passive cooling/ventilation,
energy efficient glasses, green walls and
shading for cooling purposes, green
cover, natural lighting, and
natural/passive cooling. Energy
management systems are to be
introduced in new and renovated
buildings. CSS encourages the
University to use more renewable energy
sources to reduce the burden on grid
energy and has taken several initiatives
to promote the use of solar energy such
as installing solar mobile phone/laptop
charging stations for students, solar
water heaters in canteen boilers, solar
streetlights and solar roofing in certain
buildings. The CSS has implemented
strategies to reduce the greenhouse gas
emissions within the university by
planting a medicinal plant cloister,
signing an MoU with the Department of
Forest Conservation to develop and
manage 150 ha of forest reserve in
Puttalam, developing a wastepaper
management program, implementing an
e-waste collection and disposal
program. CSS recommends avoiding
purchasing of equipment that carry CFC
and other ozone depleting gases. In
2021, CSS organized several awareness
programs on climate change for the
university community and the general
public.

CSS has successfully implemented a
waste segregation and recycling
program in the University. More than
75% of biodegradable waste generated
within the University is turned into
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compost in a facility that was
developed by the CSS with the
assistance of the CEA. CSS issued a
university circular banning polythene
usage in University of Kelaniya. As a
result, no lunch sheets are permitted
in canteens and fruitful discussions
were held with the Student Union to
make them aware of the negative
environmental impact of the use of
polythene in their
activities/decorations. Further, CSS
introduced dark blue colored bins for
every department in the University to
collect waste papers for recycling. All
collected papers are handed over to a
registered recycler. CSS encourages
using soft copies where possible and
print double sided wherever possible,
reusing single side printed papers.
CSS promotes using biogas as an
alternative for LPG and two biogas
facilities in two canteens in the
university produce more than 4kg of
biogas per day.

Staff who are trained on composting
technology give advise and
knowledge to small-scale
enterprisers who are willing to
operate compost yards. CSS
coordinated a chemical waste
management program with the
assistance of Holcim Cement Pvt. Ltd.
The CSS has paid attention to the
conservation of water within
University. CSS has introduced a
rainwater harvesting system at the
premises of the Faculty of Commerce
and Management. [t was able to
collect 58000L of water in 2021.
Wastewater released from the
university hostels, are being treated
and reused for gardening purposes.
The CSS introduced a sprinkler
irrigation system in 2018 for the plant
nursery and lawns. The CSS is
involved in transferring technical
know-how in formulating a waste
management system for the newly
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constructed ICT Faculty. A
Sedimentation Management Plan for
Managing Land and Water Pollution
Risks has been developed. In addition
to these wastewater treatments, It
plans to implement (Under
construction) a sewage water
treatment unit and use that water for
recycling water for toilet flushing
purposes. This can minimize the
portable water usage within the ICT
faculty.

Further, the CSS is into two other
important sustainability initiatives: (1)
Online Transport Management
System for optimization of energy
usage of campus vehicles. This
system will assist in online
reservation of university vehicles,
opportunities for pooling, tracking
distances travelled by each vehicle
thereby automatically calculating the
carbon footprint, engine efficiency
calculation etc. (I1) Waste face mask
management system within the
university. CSS is taking a proactive
initiation of face mask disposal
identifying it as an emerging waste
category as surgical and N-95 face
masks contain nylon and is
considered a clinical waste. The
separate handling of such waste is
needed. The CSS will introduce light
blue bins for the collection of face
masks and build awareness among
the university community to dispose
masks as recommended by the WHO
andincinerate the collected waste.
The CSS is widely involved in
education, awareness, extension and
outreach activities locally and
globally. A Sustainability Leadership
Certificate program is offered for
undergraduates of all the faculties of
the University. More than 500
students from different faculties
participated in this program during
2021. This program consisted of 10
modules: Human Society,
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Environmental Issues and Sustainable
Development, Sustainable Living and
Green Fashion: Role of the Youth, Non-
conventional Energy vs Conventional
Energy, Energy Management, Waste as a
Resource: Solid Waste Management,
Environmental Pollution and Human
Health, Water Management, Green
Buildings, Sustainable Production and
Consumption, Environmental
Sustainability Leadership and a group
project. The CSS is currently working on
obtaining SLQF standards for the
program in order to open it for students
who have finished their A/Ls island
wide. In addition to these activities, the
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FCT organized a webinar on promoting
zero waste practices in universities to
educate university students. CSS
commemorated the World Biodiversity
Day, and contributed to delivering an
invited speech on Green Initiatives,
plantated trees to combat climate
change and to reduce CO2 Emissions,
commemorated the World
Environmental Day, contributed to
delivering an invited speech on eco-
system restoration in the global south.
CSS also organized an invited speech on
the impact of Covid-19 on the
environment of Sri Lanka Green
Dialogue organized by CIR.




INFORMATION ON SPORTS
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+ Total No. of Teams (Men & Women) - 40
«  Number of Students Involved in Competitive Sports - 446 (virtually)

SPORTS TRAINING PROGRAMS & EVENTS®

76 students were appointed as Captains & Vice Captains (Men & Women) for 23 sports
disciplines apart from yoga.
Total Number of Training Sessions conducted - 34 online sessions per week

(16th March—20th May and 08th July —03rd October 2021)

Table 12 - 1: Sports events and student participation

Events No. of Student who Participated
Training Program (virtually) 664
No. of Friendly & Dual Matches 04

* Training sessions were not held due to the pandemic during the periods from 21st May to 07th July and 04th October to 31st
December
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PERFORMANCES AT THE NATIONAL AND INTER
UNIVERSITY LEVEL IN 2021

National Taekwondo Championships

Indumini Gunawardhana won Bronze Medal in Lightweight
weight women category
R A lrushani Madusha won Bronze Medal in Welterweight

weight women category
+ KM Sameera Wijesinghe won Bronze in Medal Heavyweight
weight men category
ond 2 National Karate Kumite Championships
1 1 s

“wvv + T.L.S. Prabhaashini (HS/2017/0865)50kg (Women)
Gold Medal
« H.L.M.V. Aminugama (PS/2017/006)55kg (Women)

| Bronze Medal
J “$ National Karate Kata Championships
' = B |

PD.G Randil Senior (Men) Black Belt -
Gold Medal

et « H.L.M.V.Aminugama Senior (Women) Black Belt -

Bronze Medal

National Scrabble Pool

+ Janindu Dheshan Karunaratne (ME/2017/073), a student of the Medical Faculty has
been selected the national Scrabble pool

Inter University Virtual Taekwondo Championships

*  The University of Kelaniya secured 3RD Place in the women's Category & 4th place in
the men's category

Inter University Virtual Karate Championships

+  The University of Kelaniya won 1st Place in Women Category and 3rd Place in the
men's Category
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Invitational Universities Rapid Chess Championships

M.L.C. Mendis (PS/2017/123), student of science faculty ranked number 1 in
overall Mens' category

Sports Article Challenge Competition on International Day of
University Sports

* Sinhala Language: 1stPlace Hiranya Dissanayake (University of
Kelaniya)

* English Language: 1st Place Verosha Aeygoonewardena (University of
Kelaniya)

* Ms. Chathuri Hashani, 4th year student of Faculty of Commerce & Management
has been appointed as the National University student Ambassador by Sri Lanka
Universities Sports Association (SLUSA) for the year 2021/22 academic year.
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OTHER SPECIAL EVENTS CONDUCTED BY THE
DEPARTMENT OF PHYSICAL EDUCATION IN 2021

Inter-University Virtual Taeckwondo Phoomse Championships

The first ever Inter-University virtual Taekwondo Phoomse Championships was
conducted with the collaboration of Sri Lanka Universities Sports Association. The
competition was held on 12th & 13th of November at the New Gymnasium under the
patronage of the Vice-Chancellor. 10 state universities participated in this
competition and the financial contribution was made by the Sri Lanka Universities
Sports Association with the University of Kelaniya.

Affiliated Sport Controlling Bodies in 2021

The University of Kelaniya was affiliated with the following National & Provincial
level Sports Controlling Bodies of Sri Lanka (with executive voting power) for the
year 2021.

National Associations

« SrilLanka Cricket

+ SrilLanka Weightlifting Federation

« SriLanka Wrestling Federation

« Table Tennis Association of Sri
Lanka

« SriLanka Chess Federation
SriLanka Judo Federation

« National Aquatic Sports Union of Sri
Lanka (NASU)

Provincial and District
Associations

+ Western Province Rugby Football
Union

« Gampaha District Cricket
Association

* Gampaha District Netball
Association
Western Province Badminton
Association

« Gampaha District Basketball
Association
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Other Associations

+ SriLanka Universities Sports Association

WM. Other Positions held by Staff members during
_.‘*# the year of 2021

Mr. GGU Saman Kumara

- Executive committee member of Athletic
Associationin Sri Lanka

- Hon. Recorder of Athletic Association in Sri
Lanka

- Recorder of Sri Lanka Universities Sports
Association

- Member of the Panel of Judges for
Presidential Sports Awards

- Chairman of Statistics, Records & Standards
subcommittee of Sri Lanka Athletics

Mr. HDSP Wijegunaratne
- Chairman, Table Tennis Sub- Committee of
SLUSA
- Member of Badminton, Rugger Sub-
committees of SLUSA
- Vice President Sri Lanka Table Tennis
Association

Ms. K.N.S. Kumari
- Member of Karate and Carrom Sub-
Committees of SLUSA

Ms. GASG Godamune
- Chairman, Taekwondo subcommittee &
Member of Karate, Netball, Basketball &
Hockey Sub-Committees of SLUSA

Ms. HMKT Karunarathne
- Member of Chess and Elle Sub-Committees
of SLUSA

Ms. I.PK. Mahadula
- Member of Tennis and Swimming Sub-
Committees of SLUSA

Mr. A.M.A. Athukorala
- Member of Volleyball, Rugby and Baseball
Elle Sub-Committees of SLUSA

Mr G.R.C. Kularatne
- Member of Athletics and Weightlifting Sub-
Committees of SLUSA
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CAPITAL
INFRASTRUCTURE
DEVELOPMENT

Several infrastructure development projects continued during 2021. Table 13-1
provides the relevantinformation.

Table 13 - 1: On-going projectsin 2021

Estimated Estimated Student Awarded  Progress
Project/proposal Cost (Rs.  Project capacity  Value (%)
Million) Period

Ongoing/Existing Projects

New lecture theatre complex of the
Faculty of Science

Building for the Information
Communication Technology Centre (ICT)

Four Storied Pannarama Hostel Building
at Hattiyawatta

Construction of a new building for the
Faculty of Commerce & Management
Studies
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ACTIVITI ES ON SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT GOALS

Policy Statements

The university conducts its activities ensuring compliance with relevant environmental
legislation and regulations existing in the country.

The institutional framework for sound environmental management is strengthened by
the university through capacity-building, legislative instruments and improved inter-
institutional coordination and linkages.

The university environment and the environmental impact of the institution's activities
are managed through a pre-defined Environmental Management System that is
continuously updated and maintained.

The environmental impact of institution's activities is continuously assessed and
reported through an appropriate and institutionalized monitoring framework based on
acomprehensive set of indicators and necessary improvements are made.

The framework for setting and reviewing environmental objectives and targets is
provided by the University.

The University's environmental policy is accessible to the public and every stakeholder
should clearly understand the institution's environmental policy, his/her obligations
under this policy and abide with the contents of the Environmental Management
System.

The economic value of environmental services is recognized so as to assure the
sustainability of such services for the benefit of the university.
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Strategies

Reduce wastes generation by promoting efficient use, reuse and recycle (3R)
Implement composting processes for organic wastes

Collect metals, glasses, plastic/polythene, and paper and establish a mechanism to
dispose them through registered recyclersinaregular manner.

Facilitate the proper disposal of electronic waste by creating a continuous disposal
channeltoresponsible recyclers.

Establish standardized chemical waste collection and storage from the laboratories
andtransportthemtoregistered companies.

Introduce the autoclaving method for the disposal of bio-hazardous waste.

Promote sustainable construction principles in new constructions and refurbishments
and practice green building principles in new constructions.

Reducing the negative impact on climate change through the implementation of
various projectsincluding a Carbon Management Plan.

Minimize environmental impact through environmentally friendly procurement plans.

Preventing pollution by managing and reducing emissions to air and discharges to
water.

Introduce rainwater harvesting.
Promote wastewater collection, treatment, and reuse for gardening purposes.
Promote the efficient use of energy.

Managing the University to create and enhance wildlife habitats through the
formulation and implementation of a Biodiversity Action Plan.

Promote respectful behavior towards the environment among the university
community and in society by using environmental education as a primary tool
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NO
POVERTY

Tl

SDG 01: NO POVERTY

The University of Kelaniya has awarded 84
scholarships to the undergraduates of the
University other than the Mahapola and Bursary
scholarships in 2021. Apart from that, the
University's Alumni association annually awards
monthly allowance to the undergraduates who are
in need of financial aids.

Moreover, the Department of Commerce &
Financial Management of the FCMS has helped 15
students with laptop donations.

SDG 02: ZERO HUNGER

SDG 03: GOOD HEALTH AND
WELL-BEING

“Ayati” National Centre for Children with
Disabilities

Ayati is a state-of-the-art center for children with
disabilities and their families, providing expertise in
health and education through scientific and latest
modalities of intervention to enable children to
reach their best potential and to contribute
positively to society. It is with this understanding

Title: IRecent Advancements in
Audiological Assessments and

GOOD HEALTH
AND WELL-BEING

\ 4

There are 10 canteens and 4 milk bars in the
University with affordable food and beverages.

The University has started a solid waste
management program within the university. As part
of the program, the University produces high quality
compost and sells part of them to external buyers
and generates income to the University. In addition,
this compost unit acts as a model for Pradeshiya

I'I'_'-'
\- |

Saba and other universities for compost making. It

Title: Impact of Social Protection on
Sustainable Development Goals

Name: Dr. G.K.R.Jayaweera, Senior
Lecturer, Department of Economics,
Faculty of Social Sciences

Type of Work: Research
Contribution Level: National

Description: Dr. Roshini Jayaweera
together with a team of academic staff
attached to the department of
Economics, Faculty of Social Sciences
is involved in an AHEAD funded
research project titled “Impact of
Social Protection on Sustainable
Development Goals.”. The research
periodis from 2020 to 2022. The project
isfunded by the World Bank.
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gives knowledge to local farmers, who
have large- or small-scale planters or
owners of compost yards. It also gives
access to research students for doing
their research related to
composting.Moreover, the University has
a campus food waste tracking system in
which it has identified an average of
200kg of food waste per day. All the food
waste is collected separately and is
removed as piggery food for the piggery
farmers. Other than these food waste if
any food waste mixed with any other
waste types, on average 650kg, is
transferred to the Municipal Council
waste collection.
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Interventions

Name: Ms. N D Dantanarayana,
Lecturer (Probationary), Department
of Disability Studies, Faculty of
Medicine

Type of Work: Symposium in Audiology
as a continuous professional
development activity for
undergraduates and graduates who are
currently working as audiologists

Contribution Level: Local

Description: An Audiology Symposium
on "Recent Advancements in
Audiological Assessments and
Interventions" was organized by the
Department of Disability Studies along
with the 30th Anniversary Celebrations
of the Faculty of Medicine. This
symposium was held on the 30th of
October 2021 and resource persons
included one local speaker who is an
expert in the field of audiology in Sri
Lanka and 2 foreign speakers who are
university professors in audiology from
India and New Zealand. Undergraduate
students in audiology, practicing
audiologists and other interested
groups participatedin this event.
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that Ayati (meaning 'Hope' in Sanskrit)
was set up to help significantly improve
their quality of life and independence and
provide them with the opportunity to
develop and blossom.

The AYATI center is built within the
premises of the Faculty of Medicine,
University of Kelaniya, located in Ragama.
The Centre, which has been designed by
the renowned architect Channa
Daswatte, spreads across a two-acre land
in Ragama with a 42,000 sq. floor area.

Services at this center are provided
primarily by the Faculty of Medicine
University of Kelaniya, the Ministry of
Health and with the collaborations of
Ministries of Education and Social
Services. The multi-disciplinary services
provided at the Ayati centerincludes,

* Audiology

« Education

+  Medical and health

*  Occupational therapy

*  Physiotherapy

*  Psychology

+ Social welfare

« Speechandlanguage therapy
+ Telehealth
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Title: A parental education program
and a hearing screening for children
with Down's Syndrome

Name: Ms. N D Dantanarayana,
Lecturer (Probationary), Department
of Disability Studies, Faculty of
Medicine

Type of Work: Project
Contribution Level: Local

Description: A parental education
program and a hearing screening for
children with Down's Syndrome were
organized by the Department of
Disability Studies and the Ayati
National Centre for Children with
Disabilities of the Faculty of Medicine
of the University of Kelaniya to
celebrate the World Hearing Day 2021.
This program was organized with the
World Health Organization (WHO)
along with the WHO objectives for the
World Hearing Day 2021. This project

Benefactors in the form of generous
business giants and philanthropists such
as Hemas Holdings, MAS Holdings
contributed towards the cause and Sri
Lankan Cricket legends Kumar
Sangakkara and Roshan Mahanama
joined hands to raise funds for this
national level cause. The Sri Lankan Army
also contributed by providing the labor
required for the construction of the center.
The AYATI Centre, which is designed to
serve children with disabilities, was
estimated to cost approximately 450
million rupees. The ongoing management
of the center is overseen by the Faculty of
Medicine, University of Kelaniya.

Services at this center are provided free of
charge for Sri Lankan nationals.

The center possesses highly skilled
personnel who can handle any complex
task pertaining to glass blowing. The
fabrication of specially designed scientific
glassware is a special service offered by
the center. This is the only scientific glass
blowing center currently established in
the country.

In addition, training programs are
conducted by the center to disseminate
scientific glass blowing skills to interested
personnel from other universities,
institutes, schools and entrepreneurs.
The center also manufactures ornamental
glassware such as gifts and souvenirs.
However, priority is given for
manufacturing scientific glassware due to
the lack of humanresources.

GENDER

SDG 05: GENDER EQUALITY

El]"A“ﬁ The University adopts the strategies indicated in
the book “Preventing Sexual and Gender-based
Violence (SGBV): Strategies for Universities”. The
University of Kelaniya has a Center for Gender
Studies, directed by Dr. E. A. D. Edirisinghe to
promote gender equity and equality. The Center for
Gender Studies is the first ever gender center
established in Sri Lankan public sector Universities.

was held on the 3rd of March 2021.

SDG 04: QUALITY EDUCATION QUALITY

As a state University, the University of Kelaniya EDUBA“U"
offers free education to its students up to the

undergraduate degree and additional financial aid
is provided for those who are in need. In addition,
the University offers several first-degree programs
(part time/ external degree programs) at affordable
costs and certificate level programs and diploma
programs are offered for those who are not
attending a university.

“Professor P A S Edirisinghe, Cadre Chair, Department of Forensic Medicine,
was nominated as 16 USAID's Heroes All Over the World for Activism Against
Gender Violence Campaign 2014”

Glass Blowing Center

Her work on women and children subjected to violence in Sri Lanka has been recognized
by the USAID and nominated as 16 USAID's Heroes All Over the World for Activism
Against Gender Violence Campaign 2014.

The glass blowing center at the University of Kelaniya provides an excellent service in the
manufacture and repair of scientific glassware for laboratory use. This includes the
fabrication of totally new special purpose scientific glassware as required for research
and the repair of expensive broken laboratory glassware.
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SDG 07 AFFORDABLE AN D Technology premises. This building will be built at a cost of Rs. 4.3 billion under the project

Science & Technology Human Resource Development Project, Asian Development Bank.
CLEAN ENERGY

The Faculty of Medicine, University of Kelaniya has SDG 13: CLIMATE ACTION

established the Green Practice Committee (GPC) to

plan, implement and oversee its sustainability Th . . . . . 13
e University of Kelaniya is the first Sri Lankan
activities. Being a Faculty of Medicine, good health . . y . y . A[:"EIH
. ; . national university that adopted an environmental
under all circumstances is our primary concern and . .
theref tend o b 4 th policy, and as such it expects to demonstrate the
ere.z ore we extend our mission beyon © theory and practice of sustainability through taking
physical borders of the Faculty and reach our . .
) ) p . o action to understand and reduce the unsustainable
community with the theme “Sustainability for a . . - :
healthier future” impact of its own activities. In this context, the
cafthieriuture-. University of Kelaniya has planned to reduce its
energy consumption and hence to reduce its carbon

Title: Carbon neutralization by footprint by adopting energy conserving strategies.
increasing the efficiency of renewable The Green Society of the Faculty of Medicine,
(solar) energy conversion system University of Kelaniya has taken several initiatives

towards energy conservation and as part of this effort, a webinar was held under the
Name: Dr A L A K Ranaweera, Senior theme “Energy Conservation: opportunities and challenges” on the 4th of August 2021.
Lecturer, Department of Physics and
Electronics

Title: Climate Resilient Integrated Water Management Project (CRIWMP)
Uipe@itlls Ressancl Name: Dr. S A N P Sakalasooriya, Senior Lecturer, Department of Geography,
Faculty of Social Sci
Contribution Level: Local acuily orwoclal sciences
:Project
Description: Research work toward USTERGI e S Piojoe
Carbon neutralization by increasing
the efficiency of renewable (solar)
energy conversion system

Contribution Level: National

Description: Dr. S A N P Sakalasooriya was the Leader of the Divisional Planning
Team for compiling and editing the Hotspot Area Agricultural Development Plan
(HSAADP) of the North-Western Province, Climate Smart Irrigated Agriculture
Project (CSIAP), a World Bank Funded Project, which the Ministry of Agriculture is
implementing in Sri Lanka. He has conducted much research for and compiled
several reports of UNDP projects, especially the final report to GCF of the midterm
evaluation of GCF-funded Climate Resilient Integrated Water Management Project

SDG 11: SUSTAINABLE CITIES ‘a4 cleTANAMEATES (CRIWMP).
AND COMMUNITIES w

An agreement has been signed between University
of Kelaniya and Green Building Council of Sri Lanka
on 14th of October 2021 at the Vice-Chancellor's N
Office of University of Kelaniya. This agreement has o Y =l
been signed related to the evaluation of receiving i [ -
the platinum rating issued by the Green Building —1_ . |==inm=
Council of Sri Lanka for the proposed building B e e B
complex on the Faculty of Computing and
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SDG 15: LIFE ON LAND
Solid Waste Separation and Storage

s L\

The Green Practices committee initiated a solid
waste management program in 2014. The solid
waste management program includes waste
separation, waste collection, and the direction of
recyclable waste for approved waste recyclers.

N
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The University of Kelaniya has a rainwater ~ t© co_ntro.I SOi_I bor.ne plant pathogens for
harvesting system with a total capacity of ~ thefirsttimein Srilanka

60,000 L which was implemented on July
28th, 2015. The water collected is used for ~ Name: Prof. R N Attanayake, Professor,

the Compost Yard, Plant Nursery, Department of Plant & Molecular l Iy A E A N
Gardening, and cleaning of equipment Biology, Faculty of Science N N U L CC O U T

used by the Landscape Division.
Type of Work: Research &

b

| A . S R

N I 7

More than 250 bins with standard color codes -ial i.l .

(Green for organic wastes, blue for paper, orange for T X e —

polythene, red for glass) for different waste types wd ] ¥ L™

are placed in the university premises for waste =. 1.‘ e —

collection. === "-_;. ] -

; ; e— L L =

Rainwater Harvesting Title: naerobic Soil Disinfestation (ASD) 'h..-:! - — ,
St PART TWO -

émm-
AR\

Biogas Production
ibuti :Global
There are two biogas units in the Contribution Level: Globa

University. The biogas unit | is at the Description: Prof. R. N. Attanayake who A U D | T | N I: O R M AT | O S

Faculty of Medicine (Volume - 5000 L)
which is used in the faculty canteen for
preparing food. The biogas unit Il is at the
Base canteen (Volume — 500 L) which was
established and managed by the
Departments of Zoology and
Environmental Management as a pilot
project.

is attached to the Department of Plant
and Molecular Biology of the Faculty of
Science is involved in the project on
Anaerobic Soil Disinfestation (ASD) to
control soil borne plant pathogens for the
first time in Sri Lanka. The project was
funded by NSF, Sri Lanka. The project is
directly related to the SDG goal 15- Life
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Solid Waste Management Project on land. 7 k.
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The University of Kelaniya has initiated composting projects to make the university
environment a beautiful and better place. There are two compost yards in the University.
Unitlis atthe Faculty of Medicine and Unitllis atthe landscape division.

The compost production at the Faculty of Medicine: The building was donated by the
Central Environmental Authority and was operational since December 11th, 2013. The
composting in Compost Yard Il, commenced on September 14th, 2015. Compost is
produced using garden wastes received from the daily accumulation from the university
premises.

Gliricidia maculate, Tithonia diversifolia (Mexican Sunflower), Crotalaria juncea (Sunn
Hemp) has been planted within the area as a Nitrogen source, in order to maintain C:N
ratio of the compost. These composts are now being used for the fruit and vegetable
garden.
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UNIVERSITY OF KELANIYA -
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

] : 2020
For the vear ended 317 December in LKR Mote 2021 k ; ; - 2020
{Restated) As at 31* December in LKR Note 2021 {Restated)
w1
REVENLUE ASSETS
Government Grants - Recurrent 4 4, 1 28 000, 000 4,089 000,000 NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Govemment Grants - Rehabilitions & Improvements 14560 OR6 26,934 4] 1 }'r1l|'||_'rt:l. Plant & Equipment 14 12693 126976 12,956 2315 478
- . T R Library Books & Cloaks 15 19,954,553 22 387,757
Internal Income 5 1,.250,051.520 1.380.421.505 ; . Z e e
Capital Work in Progress 16 2.513,229.838 270265323
Amortization of Government Grants & Donation 504,540,598 441 688616 Intangible Assets 17 9022164 18,799,505
Girants - Mahapola |04, 144 600 83,138,300 Financial Assets 18 4,085,645,186 3.752,118.898
Grants - Bursary 92,944,000 66,856,000 19.321,178,717 17,019,807,062
MT ASSET?
Cirant - STHRD Project 24 843201 6,196,354 CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 19 440200, 794 38,251,750
snakicis to Endowment-furds A41.800 S00.000 : ; = 2 2 ST
Doaations to Endowment funds 441,51 M0 Sundry Debtors & Receivables 20 217,454,638 393,828,812
External Research Grants 62167470 65,172,014 A dviances to Sl 7 957 730 1323 897
TOTAL REVENLUE 6, 182,703,175 6,159.907,201 Advances & Prepayments 22 86,336,872 151,767 386
Y PE e Cash & Cash Equivalenis 2 429,229 658 360,279,207
EXPENSES
Personal Emoluments 6 1094, 238,762 :".H 16,116,835 ??Jff?g,ﬁﬂj 9‘_‘.‘51,{152
oo o TOTAL ASSETS 20,095, 358410 I17.965.258,113
Travelling Expenses 7 3,354,920 2,507,449
Supplies 8 93,996,682 80,813,609 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Maintenance Expenses & 32,731,197 27,698,706 EQUITY
Contractual Services 1] 130,504,968 174 877317 Ditfered Capital Grants 24 5.368.452.809 5460.682,100
Capital Grants Unspe 25 137.005.108 21731229
Other Recurremt Expenses 11 104,620,431 B6, 164,725 :d;|!11|{-r41 s E;ur . e Y
Cabinet Approved Building Project - 1 011 848 17.407.275
Provision for Gratuity 193,684,243 217,991,302 Fund i i St
Expenditure on Fee - levying Courses/'Special services 176,331,856 148,251,896 Revaluation Surplus 8,129,394,471 8,129,047
E Devel fund 2 98 853103 1 14.447 750 Retained Earning 2.385,744.227 354,322,007
“xpenses from Development fun 2 08,853,103 14,447 25
. 16,021 608 462 14,179, 118,140
Rehabilitation & Improvement Expenses 14,569,986 26,934,411 RESERVES & RESTRICTED FUNDS
Depreciation T32A88.639 623,218,562 Internal Restricted Fund 27 1,334,781,124 1LIT2,018,147
Amortization of [J'I'I.'l.ﬂ!.'lh'--c.' Assets 9 7717342 10,274,786 Endowment Funds 2B 22 875,783 M.934 987
R carch Cire 29 136, 168916 6,028,147
Expenses - Burssry 52,944,000 66,856,000 s 9168, I'_ : |
: Income Received im Advance 11} 915.767.159 T62 472536
Expenses - Mahapola 104,144,600 83,138,300 2,409,592,982 2071453810
STHRI Project Expenditure 13 22,362,731 6,196,254 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
External Research Grants 62,167,270 65172014 Provision for Retinng Gratuity il 1371839011 1,397 445943
TOTAL EXPENSES 6, 006,8.30,931 5,750,661,516
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Refundable Deposits 32 102,204 935 143,178,816
SURPLUS/ADEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 115,872,244 409,245,685 § S X 2 HE .
Accrued Expenses & Other Payables 33 190,113,019 180,061 398
292,317,954 325240214
AN ' 095,358,410 e mea
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 20,095,358, 17965258113
w
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These Financial stafements have been prepared & presescoil i oomphiahie @ th Publc Sector Accouniting

Seamards aansed by the bisiviube of Charterad Acopuntamis of Set Lankas
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UNIVERSITY OF KELANIYA
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31" December

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Surplus/A Deficit) from Operating activilies
Adjustments

Depreciation

Interest From Investments

Provision For Gratuity

Amortization of Government Grants & Donations
Amortization of Intangible Assets

Government Grant-Rehabilitation and Mainlenance

Income Contributed to University Funds™on Monitory
Adjustment

Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities before Working
Capital Changes

{ Increase)Decrease in Inventories

{ Increase)Decrease in Sundry Deblors & Receivables
(Increase)Decrease in Loan & Advances to the Sialt
(Increase)/Decrease in Advances & Pre Payments
(Increase)/Decrease in Accrued & Other Payable Expenses

(Increase VDecrease in Deposits Refundable

Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities Alter Working
Capital Changes

Gratuity Payment

Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities

™~y

Unaversity of Kelaniya - Financial Stalements 2021

2021

732,488,639
(232,349,230
193,684,243
{504,540,598)
0,777,342
(14,569 986)

(474,249 864)

(173,887,210)

531,426

11,704,495

65,430,514

10,051,621

(40.973.881)

(124,765,503)

(8 3.421.1 r-"h_J
(208,186,6T%)

(Restated)

409,245,684

623,218,562
(362.077.358)
217,991,302
{441,688,616)
10,274,786
{26.934411)
(306,903, 483)

123,126,466

2986, 707
(70,110,309)
5,603,293
19,809,584
(19,101,293)

(11,372.674)

50,941.774

(97,412,924)

(46,491,150)
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
AND ACCOUNTS

Notes, Comprising A Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other
Explanatory Notes — 2021

1. Corporate Information

1.1. Reporting Entity

The Umversity of Kelamiya, situated at Dalugama, Kelamiyva, Sn Lanka, 15 a fully
government-owned higher educanonal Institute established under the Universinies Act No. 16 of
1978 and subsequent amendments to it. The University is functioning under the Ministry of

Education,

1.2. Nature of Operations and Principal Activities of the University

The University consists of Seven Faculties: Faculty of Commerce and Management Studies,
Faculty of Humanities. Faculty of Social Sciences, Faculty of Science. Faulty of Medicine, Faculty

of Computing & Technology, and Faculty of Graduate Studies,

{ts Vision 15 to become a Centre of excellence in creation and dissemination of knowledge for
sustainable development. The main activitics of the University are teaching, leaming and
promoting the research. The objectives of the University are as follows:
o To create high quahity and flexible teaching and learming environment
*  To develop the highest quality facultics and staff to attain the strategic goals of the
University
o To create a multi-disciplinary research culture of global standing
o  To improve the image of the University by widening the range of economic and social
engagements
* To develop an excellent system of governance through the efficient and effective

admimistration and financial management

1.3. Date of authorization of Financial Statements

The Financial Statements were authorized to issue by the Council of the University at its special

council meeting, which were held on 23™ February 2022

Annual Report & ecounts 2021 131

1.4, Responsibility for Financial Statements

The Management is responsible for the preparation and fair preseniation of the financial statements
in accordance with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards and for such intermal control as
the management determines 15 necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material nusstatements, whether due 1o fraud or ermor, Components of Financial

Statements are as follows:

s Siatement of Financial Perfonmance

» Statement of Financial Position

Statement of Changes i Net Assels’Equity

¢ Cash Flow Statement

e Statement of Comparison of Budget and Acteal Amoum

o Notes, Comprising a Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory

Boles

1.5 Reporting period

The financial penod of the University represents twelve months from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021,

2. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

2.1, Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Financial
Performance, Statements of Changes in Net Assets / Equity, Cash Flow Statement, Statement of
Companson of Budget and Actual amount as well as Notes, Compnising A Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory MNotes, These statements have been prepared in
accordance with the Sr Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards (SLPSAS) Volume 1, 1T & 11
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and adopted by the University Granis
Commission by its Financial Circular Letter No. 22018, The accounting policies adopted are

consisten! with those used in the previous financial year. However, Sri Lanka Accounting
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wiangdards | LEKAS) also have been uted n the aregs where no Publie Sector Accounting Standards

are avarlable

2.2 Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statcments have been prepared on a historical cost basis and applied consisent]y
Mo adjustments have beer made for inflationary factors affectmg the Fmancial Stalensents excepl
for the property, plant and equipment measured of fair value and retirement benefit obligations
measured based on the actuarial valustion method. The specific policies are explaned in the

'!-l..l'l.'l'.'l.'l:'l.il!ﬂ!g.' LS

23, Going Concern

Financial Staternents have been prepared on the sssumption that University is a going concem
The Codaneil has made an assessiment of the University's sbility to conlinee &% & going concee in
the foreseeable future.  Funthermore, the Council is not aware of any material uncertainties that
may casl significant doubt upon the University"s abifity 1o continue a5 a going concem. They do
ol indend either 1o liquidate or cease operation of the [Iniversity. Therefore, the finand<ial

siplements continue 1o-be préparcd on the going concerm basis.

24, Accrual basis of Acepunting

The Financial Statements, except for information on the Statement of Cash Flows, have been
prepared following the-acorual basis of accountmg

1.5, Functiome! and Presentation Currency

The financial statements have been presented in Sei Lankan Rupees (LER), which is the
Lniversity s functional and prisentalion currency

2.6, Materiality and Apgregation

Each matertal cliss of similar items have been presented separately in the fimancial siatements.

hems of dissimilar nature or function have been presented separately unless they are :mmatcrial

Uwpweruily OF Ko lamipcs - Difusncid Shalemners oG §
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1.7, Comparative Information

Comparative information, ineledmg quantilstive, narmtive and descrnplive information as relevant,
& disclosed in respect l.":rrﬂl."'. i Financial Statemenis. The presenimion and classification ol the
previous vear's Financml Statements are pmended, where relevant for betber presemiamion and 1o be

corm parable with thase of the curmenl year.

28 Rounding

All financial information presemted in 5n Lankan Rupees his been rounded 10 the nearest rupes
except when otherwise indicated as permitted by the 5 Lanka Public Sector Accounting

SLofEnnds,

2.9 OMTeciting

Aszets and Liahilities or income and expensed are nod offaet unliess .'rq_u.irn!- ar permitied ‘h:. S
Lanks Public Secto: .-\n;q,'nunlir.-g Seandards

210, Transaction of lordign correncies and balances

Foreign currency transactions ane translated into the funcional currency using the exchange mics
prevailing 81 the dates of the tronsactions or viduation where tems are re-memsuned,  Foreign
exchange gams and losses resulting from the settlement of such trarsactions and from the
trundlation s vear end ut—;.'tht.:l; rabes of monelary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currendaies are recognired in the ingome statemeont

3. Summary of significant Accounting Policies

L1 Application of SLIFSAS

The University has followed the SLPSAS when peeparing and presenting (inapeisl statements ol

the Unaversity for the year 2021,

AL Changes in Accounting Policies

o significant changes in accounting policies taken place duning the year under neview

Linivrraity of Esangvs - Mnanciol Biermeeds 507 e
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A Significant Accosnting Jodeenients, Exstimates and Assumplions

Prepiration of the financial statements of the University requires the management to make
judgements, estimates and assumplioms, which may aflect the ncome, expenditure, Rsets,
leanilitves. and disclosure of contmgent assels & congent lighHities as af the end of The financaal

yoar

3.4, Adsets and Basis of their Valuation

A4k Property, Plani & Equipment

The Uiniversity opplies the reguirement aof SLPSAS 07 on “Propenty, Plam & Eguipment” m
gecounting for its owned 3ssets which are held for and used in the provision of the services or for
administradion purpose and expected to be used for more than one vear. Property, Plant &
Equipmeni (FPE] inclades Lands, Buildings & Improvements, Office Fumiture, Cihce
Equipment. Lab & Teaching Equipment, Motor Vehicles, Water & Eleciricity Supply Scheme,

Library Books and Peniodicals, Cloaks, Machinery and Other Assets

X4l Basis of recognition
Property, Plant and Egquipment is recognized if @t is probable thar future economic - benefit

associated with the assets will Dow to the Univer ity and eost of the nsel can be reliabiy mcasuned

X45  Initial recognition

Froperty, Plant & Equipment are intially recognized at cost icluding the cost of purchase with
any incidental expenses incurred in bringing the assets to its working conditions for its intended
use, subsequent to niial recognilion, property plant and eguipment are messured of cost less

accumilated depreciation and accumulated impaimment boss

14.4. Subscquent cosis

The cost of replacing componenl of an (e of property, plant & equipment s recognized in the
carrying amaunt of the gem ol it ks probable that the fisture sconomic benelits embodied within the
purt W il M b0 the 1 niversity and iis cost can be micasured relahle. The carrying amount of the
replaced par s -.I-.:|:'._lu:-5'|'.|.."-.*.:i 1N acoordance with the -|-.'r\':;.:-\.""':.'l'.llu.ll'. piacy given I diahy

Thie costs of the repair and maintenence of property, plant & eguipment are recognired in the

Stalement of Financial Performance a5 incurresd

L'nibeeracty of Kelisdya - Nsase lal Seeesns by 2021 11
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L5 Derecognition

The cornying amount of an item of property, plant & equipment is derecognited on disposal; or
when o fulure cconomis bencfits are expected from s use Any pains and losses on
derecognition are recognized (calculated as the difference between the net disposals proceeds and
thi earrying amount of the assess) in the Siatenrent of Profit or Losa  Gains are pot classified =

revinue

d46  Depreciation

Depreciation 4 recognized in the stotément of Financial Performance on the straight-line basis on
each componpeni of an em ol propemy, Plant ond I4_||.|:|:lr|1-.'-|:.l other than Trechold land
|‘.'¢|:lrcL|_1I||1|1 of an et 1:-::::-_:n'-. whien it 1 avainlable for uie and cemees at the earher of the date that
thie oot 15 clatsied as hald for ande sodd the date that the poeet = de r.,-.,'nglu.u:d.

The estimatod wselul lives for the current and comparative periods are 43 follows:

Asscts Category Estimated uselul life
Huildings & Improvements 20 Yeurs
Oftiee Fumitune 10 Y ears
Office Equipment 05 Years
Lab & Teaching Equpment Q5 Yewmrs
Mator Vehicles 05 Years
Water & Electricity Supply Scheme 10 Yemrs
Library Books & Periodicals 03 Years
{loaks 05 Yiears
Machinery 05 Years
Chber Assets 0% Years

The assels residual values and useful life are eviewed, and adjusted of approprmde, st the end ol
each reporting period, as assets camying amound is writlen down immediately 10 i35 recoverable
mmcan i the assel’s carrving smaunt 15 greater than s estimated recoverable amouni

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the camying amiunt
and gaindLoss) 5 recogniced in the dalements of comprehensive income

afmraty O Kelanhya - Pinshswil] Seseshents D02 ) =
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347 1 c—ﬂa.l CHECE Againsi the I"n:prr“'h subviegueni accumulmled impamment esses. | hese classss of assets are revalued af a fregquency of
Thdaigh ihe absoluie ownershap 5 vesied with the Lniversity of Kelanya, there are pending Count cade once in overy live years
apanmad fodlowing two plits of lands denated o The Limversaty Carrying vabse of propenty, plant & equipment and intangible assets are reviewed ot each reportng

: & .
date 1o dedermine whether there i anv indication of AEpairTeil i By snch indbeations exist, then

Frogerty Legal case
the asseis recovermble amount is estimated. An impairmend 1055 is recognized il the carmying

Lot B ol Damminoagabavwattain | -
| Dstrict Cowrt Marawils Case Mo, 153871, . f - ; ; ey - "
ymasuent of an assedl exoedsts if recoverable amoont.  lmparmeend losses are reconided in the

Dummaladeniva (Donation)

Extend - 00 23,33 Filed b third agains the Linsvératy and the Repstrar, claiming statement of financial performances
o rEiop 0o Ihe land  called ChEmmaiadendys selunked 6 Detnils of Revaluation of assers gre as follows
Wiennapuwas belonging 1o ihe Liniverssty, The vasoe of the scson s LR
LK & K Ik : Hevaliied ;
| | — Dt of Revalied t Carrving valoe sanut of Hevalustion
I - = = ' LR LY r| ¥ 4] i i}
Thalagollawatts  Land i | District Court Gumpaha Case No. 12251 oz revaluntion G of mascts " P vrplis
e freerd o
Ragama Thalagolla {Doaation) Latsd L1 13 S01E Ih:. |: 1 [ 145 750 76T 204,580,000 (MR 839 317
Exteni - H: 45916 Filed by outside againg the Liniversity, the Viee-Chamcellor, snd — o
1wl Ol .00 20 % liv | 3000 kNl nal (A RACH Y
the Hepsirar, calming tetle to part of the Ragama Medscal Facuiy
DT which i staie land. handed aver to the University by (he Bl dines (I e i3 - ::‘;'r"'_--."_'l'l 8 VTS B30 (W) " -i;I_li;,'-j'l;;?l
i [Ewistonal Secoret ATy Jagla for ihe purpose of The L Filrvers: {3 (15" Bailldings O 0] 201N e | 18,599 G 018,505
waloe of the sction 5 LKR | (R0 Cloaks B 120K da ER4 446 1200320 11,135 874
:"I' e 0l.01 2018 dos - 27838 50) | 14,540,000 BT, 100,35
vichicies
4.8, it Assets
4 Hertage Asse | ansd Vi, 132000 fir 5% 514,788 447,160,000 ARR 45,213
The University of Kelaniva processes several Heritope Assets such as Hisoncal Anelacts found 3 =
) ' Flubldings ¥1.12.3000 ki 19,826 718 B2 RS0, N0 11,023,781

during archeological excavation carried ot by the Depanment of Archology, the Facully of Social
[ETLET 7,00, 1 34 847

Soiences. A collection of old coms apd books in the Mann Library and a collection of ancient ol
; Hevalumton sarplus Balanoc as @i 11212640134

keal manuscripts maintained by the Departmient of Library and Information Sciences 0101 20i8 |
Revalustion surplus Balance as al i va
§,12.2021 F - Bl AT
4.9 Cost Model

i T —— | 4] ol armHFrmane aveant tha clnocess of nd nre carmied af i _ X 5
Afber recapnitiy &kl Ehie | roperty Flani and equipment except the CHSSEs | |.and are carried af its Revaluation surplus would be trunsferred to the general resérve ol the time of disposal of the

el less accumulaied deprecialion. Lands are aracd at its coste ety
ek

A4 00, Hevaluation Model
After inital recognition below classes of Property Plant dnd equirpiment (Lands, Buildimgs, Cloaks,
Motor vehicles) whose Tabr walue can be measored r‘.'i'.l':l_'- has been camried sl revalised amounts

which &g fair value gt the date of revaleation less any subseguent accumulatid doprecialion and

Aunual Report & ccounts 2021 Aunual Report & ccounts 2021
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3411, Investmenis

Investmends represent nvesiment 10 fixed depossis and savings accounts. These imvestments have
been accounted i comphance with SLERS 09, The investment i fined deposiss snd savings
accounts have sech classified af pmoetized codt as per SLERS 08, They e invitially mcasured st
faar walve and subsequently mersred &t fair vabue less amortized cosl by wsing effective inlenes

rate a5 required by SLERS 0%

3412 Stall Loans

The stail boans inclede Dhstress boan, Computer boan, Special Distress loan, Yiehicle loan, Siafl

loan and Yice-Chancellor Fund loams, The staff loans have been classified x= financial asseds
amartered ol as per SLFRS (9 [I1'.||.|.|rl:||_'|'|' boss dn mny stafl loan have been recognered on

expecied ¢cosf method as stipulated m SLERS (9

L4013, Capital work-in-progress
Capiial expenses incurmed on PPE which ane not completed as at the reporting date are shown as
Capttal Work — i — Progress and cost incusred on Capital Work - in - progress 15 transfermed to

Progerty, Plamt and Equipment when it 15 nvaikable for use

A4 04 Intangible assets

L ompauder sofbaare and online pournals have becn recogmied s ii':.'\.l.:.:'l'l:-..' aasels whch o 8%
probable that fuure economic benefits that are atinibutable 1o the assets wall fow into the enterprise
and the cost of the assel can be measured rehiably. Intangible assets atquired ane sipted at oost less

pocumuisted amorlization and scumilated imparment osses | hese costs ane anmodtized over a

period of 5 years

A5 Current assets
Curreént Adsets Claszified in Sutement of Financial Position are those swhich are cxpecied to b
realived in, or consumed in the University' s nonmal operating cvele, expected to be realited widhan

twelve months aiter the reporing dale or Cash or 4 Gash equnvalenl

JA16, Inventores
Inveniosies are stated st cost and determined on Feesz in Fiest out (FIFO) basis. Inventores masnly

CoMTiprise ol sEEnanary and spare parts Ifvertnries sre {or cor SUmipLo v et T resale

Annual Report & ecounte 2021

LANT. Cash & cash equivalenis

Cash and cash SO UIVARETILS 37C- O

ped &5 cash in hand, demond deposits and short term highly
liquid investments readily convertible to kooam amounts of cash and subject fo instgnificant nsk
ol change in value. For the purpose of cash fow sistement, cash & cash equivalents include cash
in hd @ndd .;l.:p.':;,-_:x i badiks. Investments wikh short Lerimn I'I1.i:i1ri'.I'. ol 2ix months o less from the

date of acquisstion are also treated as cash equivalenis.  The cash flow statement is prepared based

on the indirect method

3.5 Accounting for government grants for capilal expenditure

1.51. Recurrent grant

Recurreni granis pre recognized in the Stajement of Financial Performance on cash basps, Cost of
rehabilitation of FPE and capiial grants for construction and new work are recognized crbher as

work In progress o Capial Assels whiere necesaan

Y82 Contribution o capital ouilay from owiside granis
| e walue of !’r:.'-;'-l.':ll. Plamr & | Qe p'.|.'..".|-.-.'11 ot of geperated funds & vanous propec

funds were shown 88 “Uantrbution 10 Caprial Uutlay trem sutSiie Urants

LE3, Capital granis

wovermment Orants [oe the Capiial expenditure hos presented on the rinancial SMalcments in
mecordance with e LEAS 20 duse 1o the gheonce of SLPSAS Accordine tothe LEAS 20 Capinal
Liranis has been r-ﬂ.:--,_":ln.'.i 1% deferred income e the statement of flnancial pasiiion and amon red

pver the usehul life of the zxset

L&, ||:|l|.'|‘nall:|- restricted funds
Intemally restricted funds include funds committed for specific puspose.  Faculty Development
[ursds represent the cumulative position of Faculties i;]-._'p.l.r!_|1-..;|1lw-. Fusds wikh ret unspent balnoes

ol the year end

3.7 Endowment Fund
Endowment funds mclude restricted donations receivad by the | niv Erstly and imvestinen! retomms
1

genernied  from endowment funds which e used n accordance with the vanouws purposs

established by the donors

WErwly Of Relinipa - Doddrss il Siddmenis
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3.8 Taxes
381, Income Tax
University s naal hable to pay income 1ax on 18 income of the ondinary course of the basiness

acconimg o the prevarling tax regulations,

382, Value-Added Tas
Universaty 15 exempted from paying Value Added Taxes sccording to the prevailing tax

e ulations

AR.3 Advanced Personal Income Tax (APIT)
I'he University currently remits APIT Tax deducted froem monthly malaries of the emplovess who
are hable for payment of income tax which is nod 4 part of the University expenditure. Hence,

payment of APTT tax is not accounted in the accounts of the University

3.9. Employee Benefils

9.1, Definkions

S0 Short-term employee benefits

Short-term emplovee benefits are enpensed as the refated servide is provided. A liabiliy is
recoenized for the amount expeciod to be Filli,l TR TR neversity has o present |I\:F.t! o consimneciive
|r'|'||t'.|::||.'| o [y this amound &% 3 resull of the past service '|"'[|.HII£{'|;| i::-*_. The |,'rr|]'-|-:'-:. ee and the

odxligation can be estimated relsably

3.9 2. Defined contribution plin

1:|:||'\-!4'-;\- o arg L'-II!.'Il"lI.' for Liniversty Providemt Fund (UPFy Comtribotions, | mplovees’ | rust
i |:||'||.‘| I_| | | 1, Lin VErsily ]_','en.i-::-l'l !i.l.-1-.| .Jn-,! u:-r|lri1:-|,.|Li.lr|'. A ifi ;.Eln,' wilh the r:_"\.[h'l.li'n..‘ Siaiues aand
regulations,  The University of Kelanive pays fixed contributions on basic emoluments plus
cost-of-living  allowances, academic allowances and monthiv compensation allowances of
emplovess to the Uiniversiy Provident Fund, Employvees” Trust Fund and Unpversity pension (und
and will have no legal or constructive obligation to poy lwrther smounts. This oblgation falls
within the scope of the delined contribution plan SLFSA 19 on employvment benefit.  Oblipation
for contribution ta defined contribution plan are recognized in profit or loss as the related service

15 prosided

Annual Report & ecounts 2021

A9.01.8. Deflined benefit obligation
In accordance with the Gramity Act Moo 12 of (983, o liability. arises for a defined benefi
obligation to emplwvees. Such defined benefit obligation is a post-employmenst benefit obligation

falling within the scope of SLPSAS-19 on 'Emplovee Benefits”

A9 14 Measarement of defined bemefit obligation
The liability recognized in the Ststement of Financial Position is the present value of the defined
benefit oblyation af the reporting date. The calculation is performed annoally by 8 qualified
actuary using the Projected Linit Credit method (PUC), Re-measurement of the defined benefit
linbility, which comprizes actuarial gains and losses are recogniced immediately in the Staterment
of Financial Performance. The University recognizes the increase in defined benefit liabiliny
siributable 10 the services provided by emplovees duning the year {current service cost) n
Statement of Financial Performance. The discount rale has been denved, and approximation of a
long-term interest rate of | 1.5% pa. (2020 - 1 1.0%) has been wsed 10 discount Tuture liabilibes.

The liabality 5 not externally funded

39.1.5. Accounting Estimate

The actuanal valuation involves miking sfsumpirons sboul discount rales, fulsre salary increases
and mornality rates. The complexity of the valuation, the underlving assumptions and i1s bong-term
natore, the defined benehil obligation is highly sensitive 1o changes m these assumplions. All

assurmnplicns anc reviewed af each reporiing daie

Uity of Krliinsed - Dinaheiil Stvemeesi 200 1 I8
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3592 Acivarml Valuaiion of Retirement Garatuity

An actuaral valuation was cammed out a5 al 31

December 202 | by Actoanal & ?'.‘F:'Iﬂ:.ﬂ_,:_"{"rlll.'l"l[

Consultants (Pv) Lid, & firm of professional actuanes. [The summansed reporl of the Aciuaral

valuation 5 a5 follows:

Assumpiion
Fimancial

Rate of discount

Salary escalstion rale

Avalonnic

Nowpedvesdemic

Iemographic

Mortakizy

Retirement Ape
Academic
Mrar=Acadenik

Stall nomower rule
Academic
Mon=Academa:

E'];h;'|.5'1:|:t:.

doademic & Non-Academic

Sensitivity Analysis

2021

11.5% pa

Bassc Salary and allowances
] (00 pa 2021

Biasie Salary and allowasnces: 8.00%

P

2020

(08 %% pa

Basic Salary and
allwances: 07000 pa, N0

Basie Salary End allowances:
500 poac

A 1967770 Monaliny Table, issued by the Institute of Aciusrhes, London

% Yieard
62 Years

L00 % pa scroms the board up to
age =4 and therealler zero
0,50 % pa. wicross the board ug 1o
age 54 and thereafier reroe

1% of the Monality Table

65 Years

&0 Years

1.0} %5 poa. across the board up to
age 54 and thereafier zero
0.50 % p.a. acrods the board up 1o
age 54 and thereafier 2ero

0% of the Mortaliny Table

Seasitivity Analysis of Present Valoe of Defined Benefit Obligation (LKR})

A one percentage pomt increase (*13%) in the discount rate

A one percentage point decrease (-1%6) in the discount mie

A one percentage pont increase 1% m U :'u'll'-ll":l- Esca ation rate

A one percentage decrease (- 1% in the salary Escalation rate

1.256,0 14,310
1,305 87T 380
1300, 743,433

1.253.533,720
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L1, Lisbilities and Provisions

Current Liabilities
Current Liahilities are gated ol ther book value
Prowisions

Provisions ane n_*u-,u._'_nl..ri.-.d when the |.'r||~.cr:.1l:|. s @ present 1.='|1h:!.1l|-;'-n a% o resalt of o piad cvent
aned 11 15 probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be reguired (o
settle the obligations and reliable estimate ean be made of the amount of the obligatien. The
provichons are shawn under te acorued expendilure. The Uiniversity arrives o an estameate on the
basis of an evaluation of the most lkely outcome. All knovwn provisions have heen accodnted for

in prepanng these Financal Sistemends.

A1 Contingent lmbdlitics and contingent asscts

& contengent liakility is o possible abligation thet arises from past events whos2 existence will be
contirued by the occurrence o noa-oecarrence of one of mone ehcertain fulure events bevond the
control of the prograrmme or 8 present obligation that is pot recogmized because it 15 nof probable

that on outflow of rescurces will be required o settle the obligaiion

A contingent liability also anses i extremely mare cases whene there s a liabiliy that cannot be
measured retiably, The uncenainly does nol recognize o contingent lability but disclose iis

existence i the inmncial statement

A coadin pent assel I 5 p-,.-:.uhh: assel thad ansey from past svents whose existonee will be confirmed
h:. the ocourmence of pof-occurmence of one of more uncertan fuluse events 1"1':- o e condnol ol
the University. The University docs ot recognize contingent assed bat dizcloses if existence where

mfbow of economic berefits 15 probable but not vertually cenam

fiivereiy of Erkaniva - Toune gl Sabrmenmia 208 sl

L'riivessaly o Kilamna - Vimamcis| Sabmsenby D02 i
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- APVENUE recoEnmiiion '-'.j 1 i . i'- 2 APy Dy [ R il\.lllhll fevel s Iim ETIRETIL, COTLHINALE g mMHINELOE £ PrCYER
1 gnili th LI the apex body s n | i pl L final d tor the | {

1L, Income from fee levving courses operation while extending technical, and operational expertise as and when needed

Income from fee levving courses and other activities are recognized on accrual basis over the ) ) - 5
) Details of the project activities cartied oanl are a5 follows
F‘I.']'!l'HJ ol course and dt‘{..'H‘i.".-—

LkR
3022 Finance lacome
_ - _ _ _ Main item 2018 2019 1020 2021 Total
Interest imcome ia !'L'l.'-l'lFHI.-"'I:l.I il ACCTuemg hasig sy ellechive ilefest e method accorduig to
sLFRS 09 due 1o the absence of SLPSAS Compister & Accoisones 4 10,700 12,472 RS IR0 KRO A 02 T80 0o, (0, 1 35
Furmature 2 1 24650 f, 984, 720 4 (RL BES 25,743 554 J5.01%. 772
3123 Expenditure Recognition
; . . Lab & reaching equpment 30 1ES D00 £33 (00 2 400 900 6 0% IR0 S0 02 R0
Expenses incurred in carrving oul all activitics of the Unsversity are recognized o an acorual snd osbes 130
! Fies I : ) G € 5 318 T i 3
charged to the statement of Finenclal Performance VATIOE KA precr i Hei%; 128 A, 0 13,531,612
Cioher Equipmicm 140500 I 10 79 76213 i, [ (8 2RO 6,017 382
X124, Statement of cash Mows
Mant & Machinen 3,005 HE4 A3 684
Ihe cash flow staternent has been r-n'piuhl 1'-:. {he |'.'.-i|-:i_.1 the indirect Method in sccordanice wath
- ; AT CoRd fioheT - . IS0 &1 1008061 R
the SLPSAS 2 “hcrcl:-:. Hn'-:uﬁ:.-\.h recepls ] gross cakh pJ.:.nlum-.-.:-l operating selrviteg, fiaiece
TOTAL 12058 RS0 2LI2TRAS4 47 497,189 13T ERE 150 230,189 491

sctivities and av CRUInE AELIvILIES have been n,.11.15:||_.rl.'.,j Cash and cash S ey zlenls con prEse ahirt

LT, hig'!‘l.l_'.' Jiqtlid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are

; . ) In addition to that, OMST of the AHEAD Operation in coordination with UGC initisted a plan 1o
Sufy et 10 an |155|1.:|'.:!I'||.'.'|r|'| risk ol ..'!k.l:l!.'_-l.'-\. e value

provide financial suppon 1o the University to pay the expenses incurred for the procurement of

Annual Report & ecounts 2021

4. Explanatory Notes
4.1 Aceelernting Higher Education Expansion and Development Operation (AHEAL)
Frojec

AHEAD {Accelerating Higher Education Expansion and Development) Operation is snother
World Bank funded propect aumed af SUppOMng higher educEnon sector in the entire shunlry {oom
2018 10 2023, The scope of this operation will be the higher education activitics under the Ministry
of Higher Education, the UG, and the 15 universities, SLIATE, ATls and non-state HERs

The Operaiions Technical Secretnnad (OT5) at University 15 the apex unit ol LUniverssty Levvel 1o

facilitate the project implementation, beaded by a Director and other stafl handling Finance,

Procurement, Administration ond Project Coordination. 1t is the responsibility of the project stafl

al the OTS, to coordinate, monitor and facilitate project execution. Finance operations of the
prodect is handled by team headed by Director - Finance under the supervision of Director- 0TS

The Operations and Monionng Suppon Team (OMST) of the Minisiry of Education, infegrated

Linpremisy' of hotaneys - Pl SLalams nfi na ]
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cyguipment and civil work, regarding the “ Addironal Infrastreciure required fo facihiate
Additional Stedeit Intake - Academic vear IR0 under this armanpement University of

Eelaniva utilized Ra. 86 408,501,

4.1 Sehenee anid Technology Human Hesourees Development Project

The Science and Tochnology Human Resource Dewelopment Projoct [usded by e Asion
Development Hank (ADH) appons the governmenl 1o deselop technobogy Faculties in theee
amversalies vk Liniversaty ol h,'.'.Jl'.l:.:l Ramrma University of S0 Lanka and ‘."-'.n|1:||u:.'.|:l|||'.-._1
1 ARty ol Nor Lankie and the Faculiv ol | figirgering af the Unmversily ol S0 Jayowardoncpaira
aid ibiaifasie o pew beged ol I.,-.._'Inu-l-.-_;:- T T LA LY |_._'r-I|.||t.|f'|."\1 cguipned with morkel-n¢ley i ko] 1 pnad

enilreprencunal spird

Liarwrrsy of Erlennsd - DNnaise sl Stalemeens S0 &
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The Faguhy of Computing and Technology of the Ulniversy of Belaniva has been allocuted a todal 4.3 Pending legal cases as at 31* December 2021

wigimh of IS0 292 Mallvon under thibs project and & further s o USEY 10 Million i available (i
i i Fending legal cases as st 11" December 2021 as follows
the Iowir unrversities o b ulilived under conpelitive propossl Bisis

District Court Gampaha Case No, 641 1/M

Ihe Faculty of Compating and Technobogy will unilize the ghove limdimg to construgt a buikdimg

commprlex at the proposed Muodun Bla premiscs, procure books, soltware & couipment, iram the Fibed by & member of the academic siafl of LW AL agmmnst the former Senor Assiiant Internal

stafl, establish partnership programmes with repuled nternational universitics wisd develop Auditor of the University, claiming compensation for damages alleged to hove been caused to the

collzborative PR rammes willy Thee sty sasd member academic staft by the action ken apainst him on the basis of an aodit investigalion

Composition clamed 5 KRS0 (00, {0
Ihe overall propecl 15 manoeed by the Progect Maapement Last (PMLD) establedsed wunder the J i Ce Y

shnestey of Edaecation wihile the progect coordination gt the anversily bevel i handled by the
Fropedd Implementsbgn Unad (FIL ) headed by o IZI..'plu:'- Propect Ehnccior. |he responsibhiies of
the UL v lodies maonistering and sapperviesane oomstrioction of the focalty builldings o .._I-_'--:Ln.n;:'

agt |l'||1:;r|1.:|1r|n-._- mroect elivitbes e ludinie priscugermend of i i services, svathin Uhe Scope

District Court Colombo Case o, 3TRS 16 TMER

Fibed by the | niversity agamnst a meermiber of statl who scted i wviolation ol the sprecmient he hend

entered in o owith the Lins eriny lor s purpose of graniimng -Jl:.i:. and mgainst e wo Ssurelies 1o

N

ihe bond, The University i seeking 10 recover 3 sum of Ri.3.233. 787 in this case

o the project 1o develop the Geculty with sssisance of the Universdy CouncilSenate and
S . . N
university academic stalf, Finance operattons of the project is handled by team headed by District Court Colombo Case No. 2896/19

Tirecionr- Fimance unsder the saperyicion of Dep *rodect T ereciion- VI . K
Director- Finance under the supervision of Deputy Project Dirce Filed by the Uiniversity against a member of staff who had acted in violation of the agreement he
had entered with the Liniversity for the purpose of granting stedy leave and agmnsd the Dwo sufeties

I Is iof ihe proect solivilie T ;| = s Tolioas
Jetanls of the project sctivities carmcd ol are a5 fol ! ia the bond, The University is seekong 1o recover o sum Ba3.919 751,33 in this case

Dsriet Court Colombo Case Mo, 2515719

Irshursemenis
Eatimated

Project Component Cost

Filed by the University sgainst a memiper of stafl who had acted in viedatson ¢f the agreement he

2015 pLIpH 0z Towl

lad entered smto with Liniy eraiky for {hg plarpess of pranting dudy Jeave and against the two sirefics

Lonstraction ol th i Bl Bonad, The i werialy i seekime 1o fecover o sum of K4 B AT IR] 49 i this cace
building complex forthe 3650, 000,000 B 00, SN0, 0 L 1AZ 100,000 21 48,600,000

i :!'._-.

Disiriet Court Colombo Case Mo, 2514719

Capital 1668023 B4, 1R HZ0 57,560,124 168371, 98

720, O (0

Recurrent | 50, 354 17,543 301 19,430 S85

p Filed by the Unreersity agadnst & member of 2all whs had acted in violation of the apreement he
TN e 18

nt of Croads haed entered with the | fIvErsEly 1or the purpose of gramting siudy beave and agams iwo suretics to
the Bond. The Liniversity is seeking to recover o sum of Bs 7,194, 53880 m this cose
Short Term Trining 18,620,000 TOE 000 1, S0, Ol FRi R

Long term training 73,980,000 R 6 RCR0L, CRD ]

Total 4.502,600,000 16628013 LIDGESOAT 1224500326 1348011523

e Vir o] aleriw it 0 | |
Lnivweeidy of Eelafovid - Mg ] Wasmesis 10 ' Ry Ao
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION FINANCIAL INFORMATION

AND ACCOUNTS AND ACCOUNTS

LT 31 6R 2020 4.7 Eventrs After Reporting Date

WO Circumstances have arisen since the reporing dele which would require adrustmenis o
4 4 b . F . - -
Une of the retired sub warden what wax imterdicied by the Liniversitv with effect from 03, 102010

ST . I* i M T r - '] 1 -
discrosene ufh the Finance] Statements o lver than disclosed below

and whose service was terminated by the University & per decision taken by the Council af i3

HIE dge ol the nod academee stall have been increased Irom G0 vears 1o 62 vears with

178th meeting held on 11,02 2020, has filed this case calming » reasonable compensation | he reliremen

eilect trom lanuary .l
P'wo pending legal cases againg the properties had been reported under the sub heading 34,7

Related Party Disclosures

ke Universiiy camed out transpctions in the ordinary coorse of busingss on an arm's length basis
with partiés who wre defined as Related Panies as per the 56 Lanka Accounting Standasd -1 KAS

24 o0 “Helated Party s losures”

And there were no ransaclions entered rte by the Unversaty with the ofganEalions wisene

Council members are ey Management Personnel of those organizaiions.

4.4 Presentation of Budpet

| he i"-.,h'|__-|_". o Uhe | RIVErsity 15 prepuned based on accrinl basis ol aceoanting. | |aszification bais
adopted in the badpet is the nsture of expenditure which 1s the same method followed n the
preseniation of financal statemenis of the | niversiy as well The classificatson of meome and
expenditure is done by the University as per the guidelines issued by the Treasery. Since the budipet
pned Tinancial stiteménts are prepared on accmial basis of sccounticg, need for reconciliolion of
budgpet and actusl amounty does pot arke. The budget covers the fiscal period from Juruary 01 -
Lhecember 31, 2021, and includes all Faculties, Centers, Divisions and Linits of the Liniversidy

Staternent of comparison of budget and sciual amounts ane shown | SSpardic aRnexXue

4.5 Bond Violators

Asgm ol LER 174 825 340 kot been due froon 258™ Bond violarors 65 ot 31 December 2022

4.6 Wia h-.'-l[HFL'I Grants for the Students
A sum of R 162077605 has been paid 10 the students as Mahapola Cirants durimg the year and

all these povments direclly had been done by the Mahapola [ros Fumgd
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“arbes ko the Financial Statemenis Sb
R _ 1 Oher interosl income Sehehale
 For the year ended 31% December in LKR . NN e

E Remt from Propertic 6274, 730 B A49.625
f  Ceovermmend Corandy for Recurreni | 1.||t.-".lr-|'1rr.|n' ! Pripe = . " o
s Sale of Ok Stores G2 352 3501, 550)
Personal Emoiumenis 1,955 O G0 5 Sl SO0, Dalip
Rale of Prodoce R K 14k 474
(xher Recurmernd R ] TR SN O - o . = i
gl o LN Sale of Publications 141,500 321, A0

fadarf d, 1 28, (R, v of (UE W, S, A Libeary Fimes s 810 a7 07

Medical Foes 1501 & 4810

.-'l.r-.lli.'lrj- Actveiies - Hosnels 24 510 LT RS

s ;_I.l_ Sliscellaneos Income 510 | 1E.&L 1 579 13097 20
LR i

T e - T
Cub Sehedal Tatal 126,378, 703 4,867,051
1 ;I'l:rrl']u; .FHI:“'"‘II' ' ’

Tuition Fees (Undergradisate) 1.551 437 33200
A1 Miscellancous income i
Tuition feet (1 RCTErAdusie - Forergn) $3533.68% 18,764,179 o 2 T P ol 5 . e
Cenificaie Fees 1525 50 | el N
14 wg-f i ol TN el T, 7 : 137 = hr .
Tuition Fees {Postgraduste ) 6 122660 17,366,013 Bines for Closks 3790 41.800
Examination Foes { Undergradisaie) b2, B, S G471427 Cloaks Hiring £ 40 43,550
Exzminahion Fees { Postmeduale) | S0LD5R 12250 Hire of Viehicles ’ 16, T35
Registration Fees (Undergraduste - Local) 4,637,653 3,162,055 Registration Fees from Suppliers 3230 459,600
; orvocation Fee 1333720 B OG5 550
Repiuration Fees (Postpraduate) [3 7000 1623, 000 . "y
i 5 ] Postgraduste Libary Income T DO 178,100
frierest from Invesiments 212349230 M2 OTT 338 Apalication & Other Fee 0216828 £ 70003 14
Imierest from Loknd 3T R 5 729 4K Provident Fund Clhasges 4 4 KAN 5, 16 I8
Chbver lontermml Incomae 5.1 | 2 1R, R ot LRI Library cardi & ldentity Cands 4,125 s
Dentad Clinde Clugges 5,350
Income from Exiemal Exaninstson 53 163300433 361, 320.655 L h g . s
Fine From {ofiracton 1.384 348 I 759055
Inecne 1o i ik b P et pa | e e T 455471 33T B0 S - 1
Income from Fee « levuing Coursesapecial services 371 A6 AT B (Eber miscellaneous Income &6 [0 G564 71 783,643
Iransfer from Devclopment flasd 0,5 30, Tl SO0 1005.AZN Total 1I8.&11.97% AR 0R7 2
Univeraty Conmbition Seminar fee e, 50 = ME
Fenud 1250058 520 1 280421 508
ey o B kb - Do il Sateieerdas 2007 TR

AAAFEREDY O R WA Fisase el Soasemer iy 20
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Regisiration fees

Exnmination foes

Certificale fees

Fostage foes

Seminar income
(eber Course Income

Certificate Confirmation feem

1LY Charges

Sundry income

Sudy Ligide Foe

Toral

Salaries & Wapes

Prowdedt Fuand
Pemsion
ETF

Actmg Pay

Ciost of Living Alkowance
Acsdemie Allewanced
spediad Allowande 2006
Rewea-ch Allowance
Vistimg Lecturers Fees
Oabeer Adborwances

Fotal

Fmare@al Eabrme ey o470 |

:..*;‘_'ifl:'-[':ﬁ.l:l'.l
I 5,854,700
§44.550

| 120

| 48] i)

| 2R 6,530
L]
25,800
333
137,000
163,300,433

ERR A4 940
S0 (6R 3179
1 11.504.97)

B 538 506

1823328

[ 1681 56660
151,229,197
238,085, 59

T, e e T
25,930,059

2078, Tad 601

2K, A0
), 224, 30
334,95

3, el
BT
259,870,500
122,000
43,150

1194
S14,40x)
ek 329,651

861,651,889
W1, 560,910
OB Dl 7
&Y, 120 2T
132,262
#7100
AEE 1B 083
145,168,057
242,091,599
158,233,338
28,570 00

2845 5TH A5
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(b} Now-Academic
Salaries & Wapes
Provident Fund

Pemsion

E.T.F

Acting Py

Crver Time

Haliday Pavments

Linst of | IVIng Allowance

apecial Allowances 209

Rescarch allowance

Additons] H-:.'Il‘.f:h Allowance 2084
(e Allowancs

Tatal

Ttal fa)+{h)

Fravelling Expenses
Dormestic
I-'ufu:lgr.

Toval

B Supplies
Stmtionery & Office Reguisiie
Fuel & 1 ubricass
Liniform & Tailoring Charges
Mechanical & Elecincal Cioods
Chemaeal & Glasswane
Medical Supplies
Crher Supplics
Toial

Lividwwrhity of Kelidbva - Mnancisl Sadrmeeds 307 |

Annual Report & ecounts 2021

463, 121,179

56,667,520
45,178,993
22,367 850
BilE 45K
27,444,125
1179473
84,999,003
KB.662,459
12982 135
191,585,529

10,507,362

120 AT 6T
S804 218, 62

442,292 862
65,296,928
dli,llll'_-n"' :|'. 1[3
2.214.524

“ili.f!,_qiﬁ
16,055,700

| 091,092
§2.508.053
84,476,225
9,157,126
188,248,968
9,028,851
970,540,505
1.816.116,825

EUFRTI
2200458

2307 409

14,773,510
0,563,755
I

198842

B 103 268
30, 10

15 473,450
LR

RO TR
£ 264 240
2A487.349

72114
202 344
1334679

51280830

BiLE T8, G0
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r ¥ Maintenance Expenes I Other recurrent Expenses
Vehicles §.540.752 6.151.809 Special Services - Council & Committees 7,052,740 4,739,183
Plant, Machinery & Cfice Equipment 21,198,099 2L.178.059 Special Services - Professional & Other Fees 54,000 45,000
Building & Structures 1|.54.637 435,033 Workshops, Seminars 2,990,941 2,982,408
Fumiture ; 141,709 Iz?lmﬁ' Academic Research 2,670,447 1,872,543
Total £2, 751,197 27,698, 706 Staff Development 468,307 698,299
Holiday, Warrants & Season Tickets 1,163,653 980,447
Entertainment Expenses 3,573,050 2,079,600
i, ¥ W L Bank Charges 41,161 14,550
I Comtractil Services Awards & Indemnities 150,500 127,500
Trampon 66,250 161.061 Contribution & Membership Fee 2,092,527 4,654,582
I elecommumcation b b 60,033,330 Convocation 5,740,834 4,808,528
Postal Chargrs 1.442,267 1513.341 Examination 77,600,791 59,652,804
Electricity 63,419,003 0,201,253 Others - Newspapers, Magazines etc. 630,747 1,130,874
Securivy Services 2,500,119 00.641.57) Field Trips 379,173 2,322,227
Wit Bcmtiio &1 404 T Students Development Initiative 11,560 56,180
KIS e CEMET AN Total 104620431 86,164,725
Fiemi & Hire Charpes 41,644 003 50,781,047 —
Rates and taxes 1 local authoritses 1, D64, 851 2,315,963
Printing, Adverthing eic 1% 805 447 2 547 K50
khers | 1,765,176 996,412 i Y.
Total 330,564,968 374877317 g ——— ,
12 Expenditure on Development fund
Personal Emoluments 26,018,542 35.024,307
Travelling Expenses 71,700 910,887
Supplies 6,147,359 6,862,285
Mainenance Expenses 21,840,852 9,647,021
Contractual Services 22,316,313 12,854,927
Other Recurrent 22,458,337 49,147,823
Total 08,853,103 114.447,250
. =
Uriveralty of Ketiii, - Fiiew al Susensoiy 202 51 University of Kelaniys - Financial Statements 2021 32
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

AND ACCOUNTS

As at A1% December in LKR

i3 Lobrarry Beoks & C ks
Dexcription

Lomevalued Balance a8 of 1™ lamary

Library Books &
Feriodicaly
’ W 722,283 12000320

Al o 11928 /5%

Cloaks

Sl fdh 9 5E 12020220

Halonce a5 af 31* Decomber 202

cumialate Sepeeciation Halance a5 af 1°
:‘_- '_'I_‘l” prexjation Halance 25 0 §34, 546,718 1 B08, 125
Deprecantion For the ™ elr | 5% TS S A0 T

Halance ai af 31* December 2071

Dot Casrying amonnt z2 a6t 31% December
2020

Sd6 5005013 T 12,0192

15,175,565 T212192

ol Carrying amoant & ot 31= December

v 4
121 15146 425 4,808,128

e A sam ol LER 2325524 relatmg bo 4 books had been donaned 10 ke Linversay |

thioe Books had Been inchided g ibe assis sddstions durine 1he veaz

As at 31° December in LKR 201

Ty { .r,n.-r.u.' awrk i F'qu‘h'u
Halance o the begmning of Uhe vear 170,265,333

Add

hidditions the dienng the vear o bl A0 aRD
Lipss
Aowound Capetslized during the vear 23,305 Mlrr

Balance al the end of The vesr 2514, 209 818

T Building 165, 269 517
Ten Stoned Building
FUMS

CWOLD Buadlding
Fpcuhy O M edacine
“orw Lecture Theaber ¢ :-:I'.!'\':-\."H. Facuity of Scierce i IR el
Hamichng {oe UK DL Information & Hessareh Lonter

STHRD Project Buillding LR R

Total 251,219 838
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Tstal
W1 T
i1 024 BAS
37667158
130 354 K48

14 357 B5%

12,387,757

19,954 553

brary and

| BT OiSE S86

#7400 81

| 19 LM N
270 265333

e o e L e

165 TEg 317

21 450 §19

13 0% 167

S THLIBE A2
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As af 31° December in LKR dazi

J fnl'.r.lr_];.lhl'.- I gt
Coatevalued Balunce as af 1* January 202) 52 13363
Adhdinom Danng the Year

Halaoce 55 st 31" December 2021 43 113,432

Accumulated Amoriizatien Halance s at 1* Januwary 2021 13 535 127
AL ZaT0m BT el yoar BUTTT 341

Balanee as ol 3™ Decem ber 2021 L1 410 AnE
Mol Carrving amount & &t 15 Janwary 202] 18, T 205

Ml Carrving amount as af 531 Deoem ber 2021 BT 64

gt
IR Fimancigl Aduvers e Al e

1
invesimen 19601231, 750
Uhatress Loars 1K= | 115,638 191
SindT Losns 1E-2 1, 164
I'mansport Loans 181 1 0] BSS
Lompubsr Lodns 15-4 2 19T s
ity b T Llstress Loar
Vice Chancetlons bund Loai 2371022

Provsson for Impainmend loss on salf lnsns

Foral 4 R A48, 1 Bé

188 Dhires Loans 20

2d BOE
Ralance ai the beginaing of the vear [ 26, A58 {12

Loan pakd dusing the vear i ] 21

165,137, 246
Lass
Recoveries duning (he vea 19, 600 52

Balamce of the ond of the vear 115633, 1493

L i iy o Kelamivn - Ml Satem
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1 66567 1544

1 26,406,027

4% 652

{752 118 89K

RS e SRR

11,025,966

1 2, 02T
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18.2  Stalf Loans

talance ol the begomnang of the Vel

Add

DN Priibd dunng the year

I..."'-"‘
HeCaverics dunng the vear

Halance ai the sl ol 15 vt

18} Tramport Loans

Ralance a1 the bepinnine of the vesr

Add

Rl 1§ ;-r'-‘l -:l_lll'l;.: '!I.\, VUAr

Ly
Riecoveries during the wear

Halance al the erd of 1w year

184 Computer Lioans

Halance al the Bepimne of he vess

Add

Loan pald danng [ vea

Recoiverios duringe the wear

Balance al the end of tue vear

A ad i Decemibe n LAR
1% fervennories

Stationarny

\

¥ & .
v ST FANEE

3 THEL) Projest Inventony

Provizion for Nonmoving, s3ow moving

Tl
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i 1

171,700

] 5
(RIS 1]

2021

£ H12.871

4] 93K

fo, N9 )

B L ERHRL

L

031

AL

1.0l4 B7S

ERTT i

ESIT0T
§50 4 T0
o Lemaorlelip Sk i 7 446 4

40, 200, 704

2

L0 R0

=tk ALK

241.230

G4 A

1 s, 5400

L
0490 T Y

1,886, T8
LH1207Y

o

LI

40, SO0

1415525

SRISE, TS
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As @t 31" Deceniber in LKR
I Yindry Delrors & Kecrivabiles

-
IFILETES

‘ahapols Scholarship
Hairs ey

Eeceiverbles from Pressdent Fond (UKD
Hecerverbies from CLC]

Sumndry Leblors

Tl

Asat 31" December in LKR
el fulvieinces fo Nearff

Fetbival Advances

Salary Advances

el Advances

Total

]

23 lifvances & Preparmeni

dvanced for Sapplees & SErvices
CEber Advandces & Deposiis 21
Prepayments Ly
| Jepaaia 22-4

Fodal

L1 Advances for Supplies & Services Desoription

Research Advance

Imtermationad Conferemce Advance
Miscellaneous Advance

Statulory Hoards & Local Authoniics
L agathi Advance

Fodal
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8,25 60l
s

A NIR KNS

i E5a
B7.836

bR

86, Era 872

B R E | )]

iy Ol
A

TR 40] 92

H1,520.969

R0 T3
1% T
197 443

[ 328,897

1 4% 130055
£y 3

P

Hjata o, EALD

LIE W)

131, 65,286

1985107

T 0 B
O 920

134 293 971

45, 330,00055
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212 Other Advances & Deposits 20 0

Fuel lJ-l:p-;-\.i:

External Research Advance %1 (0
Departmaent Develooment Find Advance 17,064
Cienerated Fund Adwvance | 56,640 169 (5E
Confucms Institute Advance - 195 401
Advance for Research Cenmtre-Sociad Sciences . SO0 D00
Advance for Seeds Programme 168 (KM

Pl

Lo

rd
=

dvance for Cender S1udies Programme 3

Rescarch Centre Development Fund Advance 1 50,0040

Tl 178,540 1679525

Service Agreements 1,621,197 | 567,954
(Khem 2 844 14T 2550 B52

Tl 4065 544 4,211 8k

124 Deposits . NeiEED T A AR

Fisel Depoit 3720 35NN}

Total ST1.720 LALA L1

o Casd awed Casle Egenfvielenn Sub Schedule Mo

. e -
Lasf Halanoe 2841 479 719 658 L STE BT

Turval 9. 210,658 a0 reNT

e bR o e S R

31 SubSchedule 2021 2020

(4} Cash Balances = Treasury Fonds

PE Reelangva -A'C 1515 S 5= 1 <(r) | = | -y 1309 19,791,130 14,972 295

P Kelaniva- AN 272 (55- 1 -00 | <B-(Wss 7 | & 57,067, 06 116,554,598

PE Ragama A C 38 316100 | -2 -4 560 002 5218 07TH 1], A2542%
82 e9T. 123 201 892 T11

(B} Cash Balances - Non-Treasury Funds

P/ Kelaniya 4544 (1550 | =) | B o(aeb X054 e 673,723 8. 726419

Uinlverany of Kelisva - Tinancisl Sesboments 302 1 ¥
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ME Kelamya {7552) 065 5 1001 - 506657552 S0 200

PR Kelamiya | 3300) DS | 00 G087 T 16 L [ A § S
PB Rapama AT (309 3 0= [ 0] A 55 6 3 b bk AR5 A M)
P8 Rapama &' C(2735) S0 00100554019 111030232 TEITE S
E Kelaniya {TTR2} 045 | 001 -B-066871G e, e TATE 168

P NEFC AT * Tod 0 | RO 22TANG 19, 00k 12,159

Confuscivs WA | A0S - 20 ] Sl .00 T8 (R ERLIE
H Kelanivs OS5 00 -200) 7238 T 140
PH Kelaniva 55 | 00 ] S-O000%5 7 | 110403
PrH etaniyve (8519 554001 - 10667543 831 490

Callection AT {CDCE) (V%5 1 -002-0-002TH35 LR LLE LR
Collection AT {CDEES (5 5= 0 0011 -00T 7655 TEPLE A Blh O
Pri Kelaniya (550 <001 =00 36795 23 k) AT5 000
P B Relaniva - CRCLD Progect 0555 1-001-9-004 5504 £, 005 S

6537 818 |57 286, 405
Total jaih) {10, 220.658 o0 279207

 AcaIrDecombermIKR o awn o ame

S Ihffered ©apial Corant

Hlalunce as af 01 January S AGNLGED [0 S AT ISIIRT
Copitsl Gramt 5THEL 1 I ] B3
Capatal Gramt AHEAD H3T34 343
Petvioid veaf Amarization (12] W6 TEK)
Addjusted Onenang Halince 5 460,682 100 £ ERl.ER] TS
Add

Capital Gerants spent Gunng the

65 S57 Ga4 G G2 BTD
yr
Donartaons recerved dunng the yea 135E 562 856,111
Copital Grant STHRD 2 20, Dl 12
Capatal Gram AHEAD 137,555,150
1712661 482 Rl AT 8]
Lass
Pervious yvear Amdriisatson 221 0RN S 24 WEE (M)
Previous year sdjusirment |.281,034.232
Amorturabion of Cirant foc the Year S S0 5 44 6Eh 616
| Fansfer 10 iRCOmE | D] 9058 G

Suh Total 204 590,778 Al 6T i ]

Halamee as a1 31" December iA6E 450 R0 R
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020

Lintversity Development Furd A0S 106 115 317 B3R 187
v Fuge 5 4G | ]
Balance as at 01 Jarary 217.312.3%0 131464984 60th Anmiversary Fund 9,191,936
Liniversity Welfare Fund 1. 175,00 1,250,000
Asd International Fellowship Fund T Gk BRE
Fumd Reveived During the year 200000 000 TR (o) O T Development Fund =1 6% 5089 907
Onber Fund Received 20,0000 (0K T4 744411 Green Practice Sustanable Developmiend Fueiad A B26. 55D 4834 804
ISTI22N 514,209,395 L M LT 1 14861668 7,955,779
Management
: Research Center Development Fund-Humanshes 5,776,509 1430481
Rehabilitalion and lmprovemnen (2T.6TSA5H) T6. 91591 Rissearch Center Development Fund-Science £932 06] 1,537,756
Actpasition of fived assets (6T.633.734) 110, Tod 018 Research Center Development Fund-Social Sciences 6, 7R A5 4, 0B 609
Reseanch Cefiter Development Funsd-Medicine 1215771 B3l 51
Consdroction proseck (07, 05 632 &7 ANZ811 : T =
' i f Research Service Center Fund - Sclence 1275308 e R
Human Capital Development (2.045.948) 35784658 Research Council Fund 6220800 14034972
Strengthening Reseanch {3.055.009) FEDIB4T Social Scienge Faculty Developmens Fiamd BI.96E 653 T7.245 252
(mMhers (31337 159) 1,312 060 Beience Faculty Developmen: Fund B.290.241 1,989 204
L Madical Faculdry Developenert Fund 115218257 T 335, L0
Sub Toral (220,307,182 296,897,105 o gy TP
= Commerce & Managernent Stuclies Facully 86390011 BRTTT. 233
- 5o 0 (M | B, TTT, 23]
Balance as at M Decomber FRr0a8 fog ol e F P Development Fund .
Humanities Faculty Development Fund 21,858,159 15714672
Facultyy OF Computing and Technolopy Developmem BATS 295 4TS M5
: F 11 D K Furnd
2 T ——— . . 1 Dhirvborams: d 4 052 3,902 T4
26 Cabiner Approved Boilding Project Fund Faculty OF Crraduate Studies Development Fun I-I_ﬂ?q.ﬂ"-l_ I AE 720
: i i Gereen Environmenzal Fund 217 623 21T 423
Halance . m.01% Juncy Rt el Ofa Leaf Library Fund TABA12E  T4B4RIS
Adld Hequests of Microbiodogy | 56 B54 2 740, 99]
Fund/inierest Recelwed i 138,726 Requests of Botany 2309884 191,134
Lic Requests of Mathematics 91.865
B . {1t i 454 TH4 464, 954
['earsfer 1o Linivessan, PPLLETT Hoquests |.|!.1. hernlstry v H 6 ?l
1y ey P v . Tl dm ¥
Edevelopment Fund : Regquesty of Physdcs 48,057
- simsts of Jooko rirpmsenital | f 3, LN
Balance a5 af 31" Dicenmber 1,011,848 ITA0T.2TS Reguess of Lok gy & Emviirommental Management L] LR
Reguess of Industrial Manapement 491 GRS 458 883
Regissts of ICT Centre 14, ek -
e STHR D-Performanoe Guaranies 3.5, S0 3995, 900
Sub Schedule Department Development Fued 223,522 B Fislts, TR, THD 3
I'Hh:'f‘ﬂlfr Reatricted ;'HHIIJ- N D‘:‘I.'.E"I'l"l:r i m%ﬂlumﬂflr F T I-'d,:-u'h:,. ..r-"l,.l..'-.]p_-“hll ] H,]ﬂ:l: 1. :"':I_"-I"bj
| il veriely F s 271 1 R 458 X AR TA2T Ilnpn'-'.inf.: Students Activibcs 120128 158 215
P Tl + b ¥ I B 3 £49 €3]
Funds Received for Special b a1 882 00 237 %3 180 COCTDD Bublding Fund (MF) 251850 251050
Puposs L bl L Sl Contre For Infernational AfTazrs 24063 1940, 186
Onbser Reservies 373 el e 2004 T Cinmemmnac glvion and podia Lot 2631695 el
Library depoait for Main Libaary sA11.134 1550543
Totad T334 780004 L7818 147 Library deponir for Faculty Libranes 3567, 004 240K Ak
Tkl [OAT A9K Rird wrd BFT a2
Liniderrey of Belanaya - Fnancial Suisemerrids 10X | 41 Uirverainy of Eelania Mnancial Sisemenss - 2071 4z
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172 Fumds Received for Special Purpose 2021 010

Special Donations- Rev, Daa OO . £.421.868

Bwh Schedw'e

| Fomdsrwnrend Faenily

special Donations- Kong Meng San Phor Sarc See [ (76 800 N
Momnastery R Prize Funds 2.1 4,299,69) 4.249.69]
LG - CHG b, 1S, 700 Scholarship Funds 8.2 7280, 198 5 RUT I9E
Sradents Reliel Fund 75T 109 LASE910 Income Balance - Prre Fonds 2.3 6,264 498 602,773
Viee Chancellor's Fund ), 386,132 *7.103.797 Income Balance - Scholarship Funds 184 5022, 104 4553570
. ) { xher Funds SB35 41,546
Bond & Agrerments Yialatton Fund 153,218,650 11R615, 724 Balance ar the end of the year ._"_1'1.[.‘."'5_ b L OE4 NET
imterest of Bonds & Agreement Vielations 271933518 29 100,136
Ciratuity Fond RIS 48,079,684 : = ¥ 5
k- Eearming Centre Fund ABE, 342 488 347 M1 mm ﬁ] i 020
Vidya 2017 Science Exhibition Fund 25,000 25,000 alnCE M The DoRiOmng of the yeu paciieoict I o e
CRIDA Infermatien Hesenrch Centee Fund 252 8i4 18 32T Add
CNCLD Project Fund- Medical Faculty 5,008,500 Rontioos Received During The you 30,000
Total ITLRKD 994 217,152 380 Balence a the end of the year A0naal 4349651
173 m m'. Serves " _ -'H:I: -lm Prize Funds - Descripteon . d | 2
SaafT developement fund - UG 2 AR5 464 306507 ¥e Fu."d B s =g
Medha Sri Arvawanse Prine Fund 2,500 1,50
p".'l:hldf'.l'l.l.'_'. Exkhibitian fund BRTT B TVE B A A Chandrisekans Piize Fund 7 3% 044 3 817,944
Career Guldance Uni depaosit 1,135,028 1.1%3, 628 Prof. F.R. Javasusiva Prize Fund 15,000 15 0
Gilass Blowing Uit deposit | 004,735 708 084 M.A P Manthriraine Prize Fund 3,000 500
Centre for Gender Studies Deposit 20734.3%0 356,010 A EL - RORRIERTE Frios Fund Iiﬂ_‘ 50
Dt oof Ind Mng. Prize Fund 10%.34 108,347
Funids Received from Mahapola trust fund <5040 = B 10407 Prof D.). Wijeratme Foundation Prize Fund 42 (00 142,000
Project for Special Degree 23 268 Rev. Pandith Mudubk atuwe Sei Cranarama Prize Fund S0 (W) R
Seed Programme 998,279 1,139,873 Rev. Dr. K, Anuruddha Prize Fund 50,004 AR
i i R Derick De Sowen Memonasl Prise Fund LA s )
International Conferences 6228, 148 5 366,029 Rev, K. Wangeesa Prize Fund 0,000 i1 G
Cher Depouts '.j!'l,l-i".:H! -'._?:}E-.,'.'-ju.- Budhadasa Galappwtthi Prize Fund Hih 00 0,000
Taotal 28,199,320 20,048,744 Hev, Sk Vin S Pree Fund iR e 1040, 00)
Botany Society Prize Fund £, ) 0, O
Frof. A5, Dhsanayakn Frize Fund 275,000 275,000
Prof. Calo Fenseka Prize Fund T L] 1 O, 3001
Etsmen Kodsk Prize Fund 50,000 501,003
Prof 5 B.P. Wickramasooriva Prire Fund 75,0 75,000
Family Medicine Prize Fund 200,000 ELLR L
Peal LK P Amyaratne Prize Fund JERREEE 1A} N
Toral 4,299, 649] 4,249,691
Uity off Klatign -« Tinandial Ssaesmenis 202 ) L3
Lritwematy o Kelanhyd - Fruecial Yatens ity 207 | LR

Annual Report & ecounts 2021

Annual Report & ecounte 2021




FINANCIAL INFORMATION FINANCIAL INFORMATION

AND ACCOUNTS AND ACCOUNTS

181 Scholarship Funds 021 oz 83 Income Balance - Prize Funds ikl 0
Ralance at the beglnning of the vear Hinlp, (aield & 497 40N Halance o the beginning of the year 6042771 LRHE 440
' ' Add
Interest mcome received during the vear FIE V1S 20 811
L
Balance at the end of the year 2.0F ] e SHT NN Frize Awarded Dueing the veas [ 57200 T 500
Balance at the end of the year b, 244,497 6,002,771

s e P

Add

Daoriathons Recedved Tharing the year I EG | A S0, 0K

Scholarship Funds - Description 2021 2020
PP, lavawerdena Scholarship Fund b5 Ooed 15,000} Income Boalance - Prize Funds - Description 2021 i

Perter Silva Scholarship Fund £ 0ea 5,0 Dpetof Ind. Mag. Price Fund -[ntenes 3l o M
[¥. Chithra Fermando Schodarship Fend e I ERE L] 2 CHX Prize Fumd-Botsmy =Interest 5 742 R i
Howanpela Sri Bathanasars Schalarship Fand HEERE L 1 W) (W Frod. P Javaseniva Pose Fund sInterest 16, 11 13883
Lemues Salva Scholarship Fund (LR 1] 10 O wiedha Sn ARy wanse FPrive Fond <intehes fa fy By bl Al
Agnut Peduru Scholarshp Fand 320463 132,063 Rev. K. Wangessa Prive Fumd -Inienest 14,773 [ Mgk
Marv's Foends Schsdatship Fond L Co s | CHn Rev. 5ik Yin Sin Prise Fund -imercsi 23353 197613
Rathnakars Scholarship Fund ] 00 MR | 00, 80 Rev, D, K. Anaruddha Prize Fund -Interest 220,404 254171
Frof. H.H. Costa Memorial Schodarship Fuand SR, CHD) S0, 0 Pudhadesa Calappetthi Prive Famd -Inierest 21,286 25,361
5. Jayawardena Scholsrship Fund 200 (WX 2Rk O Frod, D Winerame Foundatson Pree Ford - ntere 1) AKK IR TIR
Lirmas Salvia Apmis Peduru Scholarship Fuand R 274 44 274 Berick De Soura Memona] Prize Fund -inberest 24, 00K 21 518
Frof. Shelton Cumaratne Memoral Scholarshp Fund 1,181 Uad 1181062 Botany Society Prize Fund -Interest 63,043 59 601
Rmamanthres Schalarship Fuand 150,004 1 5k, 00 PAP.A. Chandrasekera Prize Fund -Inderost b ASE &9 1,309, 668
Student Trem Scholorshup Fund (HEM b TO0 0 T O Prof. Carfo Fonseion Prize Fund -Interes 111,338 103 250
Prof P Hanasinghe Scholasship Fusd 200, D00 200, T Prof. A%, Dissrayaks Prive Fund -Indenest 115525 15421
WS arungthitake scholerdhip fund Ll LR 1] Sk (MM Frol. &5 B P Wickramasaonys Poze Fond -Inferest B2 58506
K MLP Kadaseboars Scholarship Fond FLPRICEH 1O (e Etsmen Kodsk Prize Fund -Interest 63336 G 534
Laxmi and Dharmasena Memorial Scholardup Fund BRI 1 Ak 00 Family Medicine Prize Furd -Enterest 1785 171,927
i‘r--1 Lhlwhi Sandaken Hettiarachchi S&holarshup SO TN < OO0 Frof. J K. P, Arvaratne Prize Fund -Intenei 22769 17181
; :
;.'II:'Il:I'I'.ln Prof-Mamgala Hangasinghe Scholarship |75 D0 : S = P
Fund D, P[0y Kannangara Prize Fund-Inienest 10,225 G5, 10
Prof Kalingn Mudali & Hes Famuly Scholarship Fund 1216800 K.MP Eilscekars Seloal. -Interest A5 111 506

7 309 10 £E971 e
Fotal AR " Total 6,264,498 6,092,771

Lipdwrily' off Krldmira - Flradcds] Sabemen A e Lriverrily & Balindira - 1liafiede Malimmendli St= 1 li
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184  Income Halance - Scholarship Fonds o 020 IS5 Other Funds 201 2020
Balance @ 1he beginmang of the year 4651 5T 4,551 484 Balance at the beginning of the year 4655579 A 551454
Add Add

Inkerest mcome received during the year VR 1 231005 Interest income received dunng the year 13817 253,593
Lo Lem
Prize Awarded During the year 125,000 JE Prize Awarded During the year 125,000 151,450

lamee sk ihe foft LT B0 4653 5T
Ealance at the end of the year Tkt Balance ai the end of the year 2022 30 4651579

income Balance - Scholarship Funds - Description 2021 2030 Other Funds - Description 2021 2020

: = LAGC Scholarshin fund - £, 2
[ !-I|"..|-'I|'I'-:|-"3.,_!:-|=.'=!'|-: il inberesti 3 O5A 3T | ERH 51K
i 2 . Prizes Awarding Schodarship Funds 18 595
Perter silva Schocarstup Fund {Tnterest) 21 G el el 1] E } .
T i . . o Drorations for Schalarshins 16650
P lavawardena Schodarship Fuand | Interest) 52.91 2l

sdisp o -ladenesd 65851 L] Todand - 41,548

Lirmes Silva/Apms Peduru Scho

7}

Aeriigs Peduru Scholarsh :I 1%l -imberest ERLE 15351
Mary's Friends Scholarship Fund ( lntereat) 129,433 HEL IR
5, Javawardena Scholars 41 Fuimsd Irdepess 167 &3 146 D
Rathnakara Scholarship Fund {Interest ) 1 110, BS54 L1

Prof. H.H. Costa MWemoral Scholarsh o s

i ke

Prof. Shelion Cumaratne Mersomal Scholarshl o Fumnd
{ [rsteresd

Raamantheres Schalarship Fund Inreresi 4% G55 §32.4925%
Howanhols Sri Bathe

i SChalarship Fuond

198,215 FBR.63]

Siudent Trast Scha |"\-|'.:i': iced { RS -Interesd 126112 FinmE R
Frof ' Hanaseighe =cholarship Fund -Interesl SLHD | 132,016
WS karunashilake schalarsh &} Fursd -Inieresd B4 800 T5 A4

Tarl D ies 4 A51 5T

U versity of Kelimnys - Fleaec il Satementy 207 § 5
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As at 31 December in LKR 2021

L X}
Kesearcl Grranniy AT

II..
Lrrants reconved from Nak ] T BST 19T 12,54 &
i & T iy iy - L e 3 —en g
Lirants recerved Trom Mimastry of bouono .3 | 146 785 £ TR
& Technology x
Cirants received from UG fat o l.dad01d i63.4a42
Liraniti received from ofber inshitules gt o IS5 176812 G 205 OET
Limaversity rete R prans it I L5800 IO85T 844

Halunce af e end of the year

%1

93
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Grants recetved Mrom Natoaal Scienoe Foundation (NSF)

Balarce af the beginming of the veu J2. 909 ] 606

Addd
Crramits peceived duning the vear 2 0K 545
I,r\.i

Paviments during the vear 142 954

78571907

Balance at the end of the yesr

Grants réceived from Minkstry of Scicace & Technology

Balance at the beginning ol the yea 1512, T98
Add
Lerands recelved dufimg e Yosr S0y ey
Less
Pavments during the viear G56.513

Balamce at the end of the year

1356, 285

Granis rectived from University Grants Commission (1GC)

Balance it the beginming of the vear 51,912
Cirmnts received during the vear 1. 3Ed
|iss

Paymnenta during the vead =24 G0N
Halarce at the end of the e 1.243.1123
| 1] S5 T} i

16 f689]6

ileo628 147

12 347 644

12,901 s

10,915

32 1 a0y

B19 117

1.512,7948

55, 200

465 912

173
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29.4 Grants received from other institutes
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add
Grants received during the year
Payments duning the year

Balance at the end of the year

29.5 University research grants
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add
Grants received during the year
Payments during the year

Balance at the end of the year

30 Inceme Received in Advance
Fee - Levying Courses - Diploma &
Certificates
Fee - Levying Courses - Postgraduate
Fee - Levying Courses - Medicine
Fee - Levying Courses -Others
(eher Internal Programmes
Extermnal Examination - Examination Fee
Extermnal Examination - Seminar Fee
Others

Balance at the end of the year

Iniversity of Kelaniva - Financial Staternenis 2021

Annual Report & ecounts 2021

90,205,987

75,021,847

(50.051.012)

115,176,822

10,853 844

2,693,047

2,991,391
10,555,500

SRS IE T T TR

145,660,622
360,578,192
5,049,270
15,010,497
50,565,872
207,668,050
68 633,778
62,600,878
915,767,159

96,120,174

40,108,303

(46,022,490))

00,205,987

12,946,424
2430983

4,523,563
10,853,844

a0

131,763,358
253,430,749
4454718
I 7,885,660
37,259,503
215,822,280
68,424 168
3,432,100
762,472,536

3
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¥ FProvinioer for Ketiringy Corafidrly

Peovisacy for P/ DB a5 i [ Janussrsy | 30 4459413 1 267 115087
Inberest Cost for the Perod L5655 1 33,047,079
Lureents Service ol for the Pernid R1 368 567 4044 123
Less:  Payments made during the Year B3 4XE. 1T o432 a1

Actusl (GampLoss on PV-DB0

Bataonce af the end of the yenr

i} Refumdable Depasis
lender Depasits
Security Depoiits

Library Deposils

Halance af b ead of the pear

{129 B40 909 1T SR

L A71 B39.001 1490 445 040

AR AR L R

01, TTR TE9ITR
117136311 84 134,994

18 26T 448 L4 Ok 645

f02 004,715 I TR Al

| AsatirDecemberistA®. e e

A0 Aceewed Expeoies & ftlver Payabiles

Aceroed Audit Fees S 1 10O T 10 (i
Accrocd expenses for Contracinal Servedes {].TRE 530 o, RO G E
Accrued Expenses of Fee levving Coures 1278 054 1 740 M

Accroed Maunenande Lanenoes
Accrued othey Recurrent [operites
Ageroed Perional Emoluments
Accrued Bores Supplics
Accrued Supplics Expenses
Accrued |ravelling Expensos
Chhers

Returmed Paymem

Sl development programite
AT SECUny Goposils

sanmp Leposits

Suinidry credilors

windry Deposits

I'nx Pavable

THMI

Uniscrsity of Bolsrayva - Dneesciad Sasemeresy 5008
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ST SH% Bhrl s

%4051 %12 34,735,791
18,436,195 13,521, i54
18.27),747 7,558,719
2379162 1 E24ATS

526 006 | 70,27

1560070 (43R 251
ddn 312 2119258

§
|
WEREL 2 TZ0 48]

Gy A5 Bl ATH
fd.175 A4 178
LEEE R - Pl
11, 338 564 | P, Tl

7514 [ B9.950
TR el 9K

all
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UNIVERSITY OF KELANIYA

STATEMENT OF THE COMPARISON OF BUDGETED AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS - 2021

CATEGDHY

ISR

Lovernmen] d.rani

Crpvermimed Liranty fof Rosurmonl Expendaiae
tMher lacome

Total lecaar

Persomal Fmoluments

Peruonal Emaolusnents - Agademi
Personal Emsplusments = Mo Acsdeiing
I ravelling baypenses

[ hmari

Foretgn

Suppleirs

stonery and CHce Kagusibe
Vil & Labvicants

L mitorTe

Wiechanical & lectrical gocds
Chermacels & Cflasywase
wisdical hugppoies

bt

Mantenanee bapenitis
Wehicles

Pland, Machinery aad bgiiipmend
Hucldengn and Sinsctuses

F reribusre

ither

L oatraciuil Services
Tt

Peeitil arwd ©oenmainazalion
EleciricEy & Waler

Hengi and Loeal Taves

B CLN Ty eV B0
Clearmg Serviom
Frimang Advemsing ek

[N

it rury of Kela i - DEvi sl Edemesls 20
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Aerimnl 2021

4.1 25,000, o)
&1 2R (00, O
| 230,05 520

S ITROSI S0

3,704 358 Tl
3 aTE T e
e 2 N
Ay S0

(e Ao

3,078

LN WS
HTTASN0
G 563748
X376
198 247
L1
e B [

34 477 40
12 TR 197
G546, 753
41 198 (R
Bl ENT

141,79

Hadgit
2020

o, 1, (e (3
i, 1 000, 000

2%, 1
AE 063 (00

A0TH SEA i
T O B0, 350
UL T el
A, D, o
2050 (WA

o Rial (3N

pe U R
LA AW D0

4, S0 000
et A E 0]

K a1 (o
R OO
A0 o0
31,744, D
TR
i, 60K, CCH
IRl
§50 000

(L]

AR, 1 TR

T CEE]
a2 S R
Bk OmEk FEE]
L0 i ERM)
< 5 (W _EHM)
1 e, 00
| L R i

| 3 SiH (0

IMifesence
Hudgat aid
N Tl

s 2 (W8 T3
0400 (3
LL R R ]
{55808, 510)

2 L
(4. %014, 0555
J0.5TH

B 8 K

ol
24,00

AT
P
i 755}

1A TG
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IR 6Ny
{20.007)
h Y
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155040
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THOS 052
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR
GENERAL

[hher Hecwrrent 138200400 1 s, B LMD 1A 5% 1% HED/E/UOKE/1L/21/11 June 2022
Traved graets to University Teachers
Specl Servies - Councll & Commitioes T a3 T4 T 0 R [ kb i1 1%
D Profesions) & Cther Pees L4 [ 45 000 AT g .
Wiorkshops, Somsnan el T b0 D00 A 4185 ey Vice Chancellor
Academic Resesarch & Publscabionm 2ATO 447 3 B0 000 (e L) LRl UI]i\'EI’iil}’ ﬂfKEhl'li}’ﬂ
Stafl Development { Training For Teschon, i
Admantstraton & Other Employees) s St e o
Fomapraduare Rescarch & Scholardh '
~ - B Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements of the University of Kelaniya for
Lniversity spors sctivities 1 00 00 the year ended 31 December 2021 in terms of the National Audit Act No.19 of 2018
Sogder wellare, Sudest ol & Socual -
Harmsony 100,600
Imsdustry Imiernahaps, Practical & Coreor 1. Financial Statements
Cirandance 5
.'lll'u-‘.ll:ﬂt' .Fkvvil.rﬂ'rhrr'! EmEiatves & TR 4 800 3440 23
Commanity Retatioos 1.1 Qualified Opinion
Employes Welfire & Medical [nsurance V207 000 | 9, KA, D SRR L : ; ; = ! i
The audit of the financial statements of the Umversity of Kelamya for the year ended 31
Imteress Svhaady om Property Loan 12 085 000 1 2 0, nC) 9 el 1% o ) B
i o : December 2021 compnsing the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021 and the
|‘Lll|..|.1.:'. Wrnnis Season Teokets 1.iEi6%1 1k D) LY oy
coaversation expensis L 740 B3 BB, B0 158, 166 £ statement of financial performance, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for
Frreriainmeont Expenses EATI050 1, 300,000 i T3, 050) 2% the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
{iarik h 41,18 a1,161 X W . T ; S . .
i : ) accounting policies, was carried out under my direction in pursuance of provisions in Article
Buards & |sdemnitics 140,500 LT {40} (i
Conaribotions & Menbinshis Pess * 0003 427 3 340 600 187 473 P 154 (1) of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sn Lanka read
Exzmnination Feey 7600, 791 TAL AN 0N Ari 200 I conjunction with the provision of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018. My conunents and
il 3 Jo0 .5 I ; ; ; : : ; o 3
Ot Lkt LN el observations which I consider should be published with the annual report of the University in
otal Ecpeases SAS0I00061 AARL300,000 a1 0% 2 terms of sub-section 108 (1) of the University Act, appear in this report. My report to Parliament
in pursuance of provisions m Article 154(6) of the Constitution will be tabled in due course.
In my opinion, except for the effects of the matters desciibed in the basis for qualified opimion
section of this report, the financial statements give a tie and fair view of the financial position
of the University as at 31 December 2021 and its financial performance and its cash flows
tor the year then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards.
Fage | 1
Llrirweruiry off Krlansd - Tinancai Baiomenty 2021 b3
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR

GENERAL

1.2 Basis for Qualified Opinion

1.3

(a) Since useful lifetime of the non-current assets had not been reviewed amnually i terms of
Paragraph 65 of the 511 Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standard 07, property, plant and
equipment costed for Rs.1,582,224,300 and library books and graduation cloaks costed
for Rs.293,815,186 were further in use despite being fully depreciated. As such, action
had not been taken to revise the said estimated eror in terms of Sri Lanka Public Sector
Accounting Standard 03,

(b} Capital grants of Rs 140,000,000 received during the year under review had not been
identified and measured n the financial statements i accordance with S Lanka Public

Sector Accounting Standard 11.

I conducted my audit in accordance with S Lanka Auditing Standards (SLAuSs). My
responsibilities, under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my report. I believe that the audit evidence

I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified opinion.

Other information included in the University’s 2021 Annual Report.

The other information comprises the information included in the University's 2021 Anmual
Report but does not include i the financial statements and my auditor's report thereon, which
I have obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report. Management is responsible for the

other information.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I do not

express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially mconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If based on the work [ have performed on the other information that I have obtained prior to
the date of this auditor's report, I conclude that there is a matenal nusstatement of this other

information, I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to report in this regard.

Page | 2
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1.4 Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards, and for such intemal
control as management determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Umversity's
ability to continue as a going concern. disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management either intend to

liquidate the University or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the University’s financial
reporting process,

As per Section 16(1) of the National Audit Act No. 19 of 2018, the University of Kelaniva is
required to mamtain proper books and records of all its income, expenditure, assets and

liabilities, to enable annual and periodic financial statements to be prepared of the University,

1.5 Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objective is to obtain reasonable assurance abowt whether the financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but 1s not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing
Standards will always deteet a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise
from fraud or emor and are considered matenal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an andit in accordance with 5n Lanka Auditing Standards, 1 exercise professional

Judeement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the andit. [ also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether

due to fraud or emror, design and perform andit procedures responsive to those risks, and

Page | 3
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obtan mudl evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for iy opimon
The nsk of oot detectsng & msatenal misstatement resulting fromn (e 1 higher than fos
oape resubtigg from emmor, as frand may mvolve collusion, forgery, udentional onsssions

nusrepresentations, of tle ovenide of internal contral

s Obtun an understanding of mtemal comrol rebevant 1o e audit 10 order 10 design auda
procedures that are appropriate in the circimstances, bit not for the purpose of expressing

an opmion on the effechveness of the University™s imlernal contriol,

»  Evaluate the appropristeness of accomnting policies used and the reasombleness of

accounting esimates and related disclosures made by the management

e  Conclude on the appropratenzss of the masagenent’s use of the going concern bases of
accounfing amd based op the suedit evidence obtained, whether o material wocertainty
exksks related 1o events or copdiftons thal ey cast sipnaficast doall on the Universihy
abtlity to confie as a going concern. [T I conchede that a matenial uncertmmnby. exiats, |
amy requined to-draw attention momy suditor’s report bo the related disclosures my the
financial statements of, if such disclosures are imadegimte, o modily my opipon by
copclusions are based an the aadit evidence obtained up 1o the date of my auditor's
report, However, [uture events or conditions may cause the Unieersity fo ccase o

COnNneE 8% 5 gOuig COncean

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
meloding the discloswres, and whether the fnancea] statements represent the anderlving

transaciions and events 10 o manmer that achiéves Fair ].:lll.‘il.'ll.lil-lili.i-li

I commumecate with those clerged wath povemanee regarding, among other maflers,
signaficant awdit Dmdings, incloding sny sigmificant defickencies i anfemal contied that |

pdentify dunpg moy andit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

EEEET NN TEY RN TR TET EIT ETE TR TEY RN ITE TS SRS ETT ISR TR TSR ET ST T BT

Mational Aundit Act, Noo 19 of HIE mcludes specific provisions for  following

T e meaLts

Except for the effects of the maners described in the basis for qumtifed opmion section of my report, |
have obdamed all e mformation and explanation that regpuired for the andit and as far as
Appears [Tom my examimsaion, proper accotmtmg records have been ket by the Umversity as

per the reqgurement of section 12 {a) of the Natonal Audst Act, Mo, 190l 20015,

Page | 4
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The fmancral statements presenied B consistent with the precedmg year a5 per ihe

requirenent of secton & (1) () (1) of the National Audit Act, Ko, 190l 2018

Except for the observation nsade wsder section (a) in the basis for the qualified opinion of my
repord, the Onameial stalements presented inchades all the recommendations made by me 1
ihe previous vear as per the requrement of sectnon & (1) (@) (v of the Nanonal Auadasr Agt,

Mo 19 of 2018

Based on the procedures performed and evidence obtamed were Bmited 1o matters that are

mpatereal, notliog has comne 1o my atteniion to make the followimg statements

to state that any member of the. povermung body of the Umversiy has sy direct or andarée
uterest in any coiteect entered into by e University which are oul of the sommal cause of
business as per the requiretnent of section |2 (d) of the National Audil Act, No, [90f 2018;

to-state that the Unmversity has not comphied wath any applicabde wntten law', geneml and
spectal directions sswed by the govermng body of the University as per the requarement of

section 12 (fof the Mafional Anedit Act, No. 19 of 2018 excegt for

B frrenor fo law) [ Diescription
Drirecton A A e S 8 5 2 223

[ () | Financiad Regulation 371 | Advances should be seitled muenediately  after the
complelion of the purpdse for which it 15 pramted ad ol
Iafer thig the 31 of December of the fuancal vear in which
the - amypwest 15 issued, Howewer, 38 advances aggregale
anonpting to Re 80405 752 relevant fo the peniod from the
viear 2015 fo the year 2021, have ol been settled a< per the
Financial Begulations nll 31 May 2022

(i) | Frnancial itmllanul. 571 | Action had ot been taken in accosdance with the Financial

regutanons regarding 115 tender and secunty deposits amounied

Lo B 20664 876 remnanss] over o vears and hbory deposis

w5
5

amounted to Ba 23, 221500 remamed over 05 years,

to state that the University kas not performed according to its powers, fimetions and dutics as

per the requiremeit of section 12 (g) of the Natwnal Awdit Act, Ko, 19 of 2018

Page | >
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[
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s

fo siale that the resource of the University has not procured nnd ulilized economically,
efhicienily amd effectively within the tume franes and i compliance wath the applicalble laws

as per the regurement of secteon 12 (bl of the National Awdsi Act, Mo, 19 of 2018

23 Oiher Matters

]

-

Although provisme of Bs, 7.714.0000 had beeiy nisde 1o combict 25 tesearch aclivabies i the yeai
021, abde fo the fact that 14 research progects had not been stared, a |:-:|-|~1.'a-.|.~||.4:-|'Rh A9 479 consld
mid be whilized. Although Bs. 737 403 lad been gramted for 06 pesearch works which shoiuld e stated
in. 2018 and shonld be completed by 2021, extensions of tinwe had been obtxined withom completing
those researches nll 31 Becemter 2021, Albouagh propress reports shoild have been fubimared in
every & manths dunng the wr:l-u-:l of ressarch. there were also 08 research acthivahies which werns 1w
dome i that way

{b) Alhough 2 tolal méerest come of Bs. 11,286,893 was earmed a5 of 31 December 2021 by mnvesting
Tl n 53 scholarsheps, prigses and other Tunds it was not eent foe the inlenden purposes for whisch

rhse ks were evtalbiabed.

(¢} 156 cheops nenosmytmge fo Bx. 2638608 ssoed 1o vanous creditors were cancelled dunng the |1-..-|||.l|.1
from 2018 to 2021 bat action had nof been faken to seile those ll 31 Deceinber 2021
{d) Action bed mot been ken to dispose 187 connumer ilems with & cost of Bs 4204 684 which were
wiemiified ad obsoleie and damnged. relsted ro the penod from 2007 e 2020, 1w the board of wmvey
repart on ihe vear 202 1. Adso, 446 ek iteins costmg 10 BsE 01 3,155 remained as slow moving and
moq-Eoving sbenas duoe 1o purchases were made withour entifving the requirsment. Further, oost of
179 stock ibews which were remained & excess stock ampounting to Ra 1. 108,577 had not been takeen
ity 1o B ook and acteon L] not been @koen 1 ternes of Financial Repulation 3 regarding 91 shoriage

SIOCK §bens Cosled] of B 90, 2 4

WO Wickramaraifins

Apditod Cretberal

Fage | &
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Audit Committee Report - 2021

Compaosition of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the University, established as a sub-committee responsible for the Council
consists of three non-executive members. The following officers were engaged in Audit Committee
activities in the year 2021.

Members [ Participation in the Committee in 2021

| {Participation /Due to participation) |

1. Mr.L.E. Susantha Silva (Chairman) | 4s
2. Mr. Sanjaya Bandara [ = 2/4
3. _?Lti-r._L.'ani Wijeweera il 4/4

The members of the National Audit Office were also invited 10 participate as observers,

Meeting

As per Public Enterprises Circular No .P.E.D./31, Committee meeting should be held at least four
times a year. The Committee met four times in the year under review and the internal and external
audit reports were discussed at these meetings. The Committee reports were submitted to the

University Council for information and necessary actions.

Main responsibilitics

The main objective of the Audit Committee is to assist the Council for the efficient functions of the

financial and it's related management activities of the University.
The main responsibilities are,

l. Review and Supervision of the financial statements, financial reporting and Continuation of the

Audit Process.

d

Examine any matters related to the finance of the University and other related matters.

ad

Approving the annual internal Audit Plans and Programmes.

4. Supervision of the Internal Audit Plan and Programme.

L]

Investigate the external and internal audit reports and take follow up action on recommendations.

Annual Report & ecounts 2021
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Audit Committee Report - 2021

Composition of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the University, established as a sub-committee responsible for the Council
consists of three non-executive members. The following officers were engaged in Audit Committee

activities in the year 2021,

‘Members - Participation in the Committee in 2021

| {Participation /Due to participation)

'1. Mr.L.E. Susantha Silva (Chairman) 4/4
2. Mr. Sanjaya Bandara [ 2/4 Il
3. Mr. Upali Wijeweera — N 44

The members of the National Audit Office were also invited to participate as observers,

Meeting

As per Public Enterprises Circular No .P.E.D./31, Committee meeting should be held at least four
times a year. The Committee met four times in the yvear under review and the internal and external
audit reports were discussed at these meetings. The Committee reports were submitted to the

University Council for information and necessary actions.

Main responsibilities

The main objective of the Audit Committee is 1o assist the Council for the efficient functions of the

financial and it’s related management activities of the University.
The main responsibilities are,

1. Review and Supervision of the financial statements, financial reporting and Continuation of the

Audit Process.

2. Examine any matters related to the finance of the University and other related matters.

3. Approving the annual internal Audit Plans and Programmes.

4. Supervision of the Internal Audit Plan and Programme.

5. Investigate the external and internal audit reports and take follow up action on recommendations.
pnaal Report & recounts 2021
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Review, Supervision and examination the compliance of the effective performance of the system
controls.

Review performance at regular intervals for cost effectiveness and to eliminate wasteful
expenditure Etc.

Ascertain whether statutes, regulations, rules and circulars are complied with.

Activities within the year.

The Committee was engaged in the following activities within the year under review.

1. Approval and Supervision of the annual internal audit plans and programmes.

Annual Report & ecounte 2021

The Committee approved and supervised the internal audit plan and programme for the year
2021. The Committee reviewed and supervised the effectiveness and performance of the internal

audits, audit queries and the performance of the Internal Audit Division.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The compliance with the relevant laws and regulations were reviewed with the reports submitted
by the external and internal auditors. The Committee further followed up on the preparation and
presentation of the annual accounts reports of the University and the settlement of statutory

payments such as Gratuity, Pensions and the Provident Funds.

Continuous review and Supervision on the violation of Contracts.

lhe Committee continuously reviewed and supervised the recovery process from the staff
members who violated bonds. As a result, it was able to recover the complete bond amount from
03 persons and approximately Rs.30.1 million was recovered in the year under review. There
were 23 bond violators at the beginning of the year 2021. 5 persons were paying the installments
in cash and legal actions had already been taken to recover the relevant amounts from 03 persons.
Reminders had been sent for 04 persons who had dues, informing them to pay the installments

on ime.
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KELANIYA ON THE REPORT OF
THE AUDITOR GENERA

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

. Review and strengthening of the internal control system.

Mecessary recommendations had been made on the control of Fixed Assets, regulating the
expenditure for contractual activities, lending library books, annual board of survey of
stores/survey of fixed assets, recovering the unsettled advances, settling the unrecognized and

settled loan balances and strengthening the internal controls. Further Committee continuously

My no. UK/IA/ 04/ FAR/2021/1/21/11
Yourno.HED/E/UOK/1/21/11
15th September 2022

reviewed the action taken to correct the weaknesses pointed out by the Auditor General’s Report

and the Audit Queries issued during the year 2021.

5. Audit Committee Meetings Auditor General
National Audit Office,
No.306/72,

Polduwa Road,
Battaramulla

The Audit Committee meetings were held at four occasions within the vear ended as at 31%
December 2021. All the Audit Committee members actively participated in all the Committees.

A representative from the Auditor General’s Department participated at every meeting of the

i T S ER A R T AUDIT REPORT OF THE UNIVERSITY OF KELANIYA IN
TERMS OF THE ARTICLE NO. 12 OF NATIONAL AUDIT
Conclusion ACT NO. 19 OF 2018 IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED IN 31ST
DECEMBER 2021

The Committee was satisfied with the success of the follow up activities based on the

recommengdations on the matters considered by the Committee in the year 2021,

\ /\ The explanations in respect of the above number and the audit report in terms of the
k V Article no. 12 of National Audit Act no. 19 of 2018 in respect of the financial statements for
B S theyearendedin 31st December 2021 are as follows;
=
Chairman 1. Financial statements

Audit Commitiee

Univessity OF Kelaiiiya 1.1 Situationally assessed opinion

1.2 Foundation for the opinion

(a) It will be amended in the coming year
(b) It will be amended in the coming year

Annual Repont & ecounts 2021 187 Annual Report & ecounts 2021 188




REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND

REGULATING REQUIREMENTS

2.2.2

Explanation

Annexure 1 indicates the status of paying advance.

Advance have been paid for the relevant completed
contract activities from capital advance which provided
for capital activities, and steps will be taken to pay
advance once the ongoing work complete.

The relevant contract institution must make a request to
get repayable tender deposits and assurance deposits,
and the necessary steps will be taken to immediately
exempt the deposits of all such contractors.

Library deposits are relevant for the students who are
registered in post graduate courses. When paying back
the library deposits to library or when taking extended
deposits to the income, the students who are relevant to
the deposits must finish their student period, and must
submit back all the library books and documents after
completing all the examinations. A report consists of
the details of the students who should be paid by the
faculty of graduate studies will be sent to the library
and, if there is any amount to be charged, the rest would
be paid to the relevant individuals. Accordingly,
necessary steps will be taken to add the relevant
deposits to the income of the student who completed
student activities and who requested/not requested to
get their deposits exempted.

No Reference to
rules/orders
2.2.2 Financial regulation 371 of
financial regulations code of
Democratic Socialist
RepublicofSriLanka
2.2.2 Financial regulation of 571
Annaal Report & recounts 2021
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2.3 Others

(a)

Number of projects to be done in the year -25
2021 by gaining the financial facilities by
the grantsofthe government

Estimated amount for the projects to be -7,714,000.00 LKR
doneintheyear2021
The numberofongoing projects among the -11

projectstobedoneintheyear2021

The amount of money spent for the 11
projects among the ongoing projects to be
doneintheyear2021

-1,224,521.00 LKR

The number of cancelled projects among -01
theprojectstobedoneintheyear2021

The number of projects commenced on -23
contracts among the projects to be done in
theyear2021

Annual Report & ecounts 2021

These research projects will be completed in the future since the time period of three years
can be obtained to complete these research projects. 06 research activities which were
extended, were not completed up to 31st December of reviewed year, and the final reports
are to be sent after sending reminding letters. Although progress reports should be sent once
in six months during the period of research, messages have been received notifying the
difficulties in submitting progress reports on time based on the circumstances in the country.
Reminding letters were also sent to the relevant researchers regarding submitting progress
reports on time.

(b) The Academic Division maintains the document files relevant to scholarship funds and
gift funds, and 31 of them are in operation. Funds for three non-operating scholarship funds
were invested in the year 2021. The following are the details of the grants for scholarship
funds, gift funds and other funds operated by the academic division.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND
REGULATING REQUIREMENTS
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No Name of the Date of Scholarship — Amount Student
Scholarship Scholarship Medal/Cash Rs.) Number
Faculty of Humanities Awarded
01 P.A.P.A.Chandrasekara 02/06/2022 Cash 20,000.00 HS/2016/2046

Prize Fund 20,000.00 HS/2017/0976
20,000.00 HS/2017/0980
20,000.00 HS/2017/0500
20,000.00 HS/2015/0861
20,000.00 HS2015/0883
20,000.00 HS/2018/1506

DerickdeSouza 13/05/2022 Cash 1,200.000 HS/TE18/034

Memorial Prize Fund

Rev. Sik Vin Sin 02/06/2022 Cash 5,000.00 HS/2018/0904

Prize Fund 5,000.00 HS/2018/0230
5,000.00 HS/2018/0051
5,000.00 HS/2018/0864

Hawanpola Sri Rathnasara 02/06/2022 Cash 10,000.00 HS/2017/0107

Scholarship Fund

Rev.Kudawelle Wangeesa 27/06/2022 Cash 10,000.00 HS/2018/0513

Prize Fund

Prof. W.S.Karunathilaka 28/06/2022 Cash 8,036.00 HS/2018/0513

Scholarship Fund 8,036.00 HS/2017/0070
8,036.00 HS/2016/0349
8,036.00 HS/2015/1181

Faculty of Social Sciences

F.R.Jayasooriya 05/07/2022 Cash 3,500.000 HS/2018/0942

Faculty Sciences

S.Jayawardena 27/06/2022 Plated Gold 5,000.00 BS/2014/222

Scholarship Fund Medal

S.B.P.Wickramasooriya 16/08/2022 Cash 10,000.00 PS/2015/175

Scholarship

Total 222,846.00
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND
REGULATING REQUIREMENTS

© Cheques amountto497,390.01 LKR among the cheques which were cancelled after issuing for the
date of 31st of December in the reviewed year, have been reissued on the request of cheque owners, and
cheques amount to 2,065,631.44 have been transferred to the university income with the approval of
Finance Committee due to the reason that none of the relevant cheque owners requested (Annexure —
2). Further, necessary steps will be taken to identify the cheques of the cheque owners who no longer
request, and to take them to the university income.

(d) Kelaniya Premises

Deficient and excessive stock values of A and B stores located in the university premises.

Rs.

Deficient stock

Store A 910,372.82
Store B 39,735.08
Total 950,109.90
Excessive stock

Store A 908,414.50
Store B 76,803.07
Total 985,217.57

Reasons for the deficient and excessive stock are sent to the finance committee, and necessary steps
will be taken to amend the stock ledger according to the physical stock balance on the
recommendations of that committee.

Annual Report & ecounte 2021
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REGULATING REQUIREMENTS

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND
REGULATING REQUIREMENTS

Following are the values of the slow- moving stocks, unissued stocks, damaged and expired stocks;

Rs.
Slow moving stocks
Store A 496,206.72
Store C 62,150.00
Total 558,356.72
Unissued stocks
Store A 1,181,871.09
Store B 713,605.25
Store C 295,226.98
Total 2,190,703.32
Damaged and expired stocks
Store A 3,841,532.95
Store C 73,525.00
Total 3,915,057.95

193
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RAGAMA PREMISES

(1) Deficient stocks

15 deficient items can be seen in the stores of the faculty of medicine. Most of them exist due to
the reason that issuance of other goods that have a similar price as of the deficient items. A special
attention will be drawn to this in the future and necessary steps will be taken.

(i1)) Slow moving stocks

Relevant divisions are informed, and necessary steps will be taken to issue them immediately
paying a special attention.

(i11) Unissued stocks

Most of the unissued stocks of the faculty of the medicine are toners. Toners that were obtained
for the changes in printing machines, remain unissued. Further, there are goods that are not in use
anymore. Relevant divisions are informed regarding this, and future steps have been already
taken.

(iv) Damaged and expired stocks

Most of the damaged and expired stocks belong to expiring. Other division that are in need of
them are informed, and necessary steps have been already taken to removal.

(v) Excessive stocks
The reported excessive stocks are the goods that were requested by many divisions and that were
delayed to take over after the issuance. Excessive stocks occur due to the reason that they are

added again to the existing stocks. Steps have been taken to match these stocks with store stock
book balance.

Senior Professor Nilanthi de Silva,
Vice Chancellor

Copies: 01 Secretary to the Ministry of Education
02 Secretary to the Ministry of Finance

03 Chairman of the University Grants Commission
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